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Financial Highlights
BT

Revenue was approximately RMB1,181.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 11.2% over

last year.

Gross profit was approximately RMB209.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 15.6% over

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately RMB54.4 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 22.4% over last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.06.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.022 per share for the year ended 31 December
2020, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB19.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (“Suchuang Gas” or
the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present to you the annual results
of Suchuang Gas for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”).

2020 is a year full of challenges. The novel coronavirus
developed into a global pandemic. All countries around
the world were affected by the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic. The economy was stagnating, and the society
and people’s lives were facing severe challenges. However,
the governments at all levels in China worked hard to
coordinate prevention and control of the pandemic and
advance economic and social development, to restore
production and livelihood of the people in an orderly
manner, which has achieved remarkable results. In 2020,
the GDP exceeded RMB100 billion, with a year-on-year
growth of 2.3%, making China the only major economy
in the world to achieve positive GDP growth, which is
remarkable.

STABLE ADVANCEMENT OF CORE BUSINESS

At the beginning of 2020, due to the short-term shutdown
and weak economic activity caused by the pandemic, the
demand for energy has decreased, resulting in a negative
growth in natural gas sales. However, as the pandemic
has been brought under control, production has gradually
resumed, and the economy has improved significantly since
the second quarter, and the sales and imports of natural
gas have steadily increased. The economy and social life of
Taicang City have gradually recovered to the level before
the pandemic after the midyear. As the largest natural
gas pipeline supplier in Taicang City, the Group, serving
thousands of households in the city, has a relatively stable
sales volume of natural gas during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®RE

GRASPING OPPORTUNITIES TO DEVELOP LNG
BUSINESS

At present, the Group has sufficient infrastructure covering
more than 90% of the natural gas pipeline network in
Taicang City. After laying a solid foundation in Taicang
City, the Group has been actively preparing for business
expansion in recent years to seek further growth. As the
integration of the Yangtze River Delta region becomes a
national strategy, the region will become one of China’s
economic development focuses in the future, and the
demand for energy will also increase. However, there has
always been a long-term shortage of gas sources in the
area, which has restricted the development of production
and even the economy. On the other hand, as the demand
for energy consumption keeps increasing, China has also
continuously promoted the use of new energy sources
to improve the environment and ecology. In particular,
PipeChina officially started operations in 2020, which will
gradually improve the country’s efficiency and market-
oriented mechanism in the natural gas transmission and
distribution link, thereby comprehensively increasing the
natural gas utilization rate nationwide.

In this context, the Group is determined to solve the restrictions
on gas sources and small equipment scale in the region.
Meanwhile, taking the geographical advantages of the perfect
deep-water condition and wide-spreading functional space of
Taicang Port at the exit of the Yangtze River into the East China
Sea, the Group vigorously expanded the promising liquefied
natural gas (LNG) business. During the year, the Group entered
into long-term cooperation framework agreements with many
large energy and infrastructure companies, including Bp
(China) Holdings Limited ("BP”), CNOOC Gas & Power Group
Limited, and Taicang Port Group Co., Ltd. (“CNOOC Gas
& Power Group”), a subsidiary of China National Offshore
Oil Corporation Limited (“CNOOC”), which mainly focus on
the construction of LNG infrastructure in Taicang Port, such
as LNG tank and container terminals, storage yards, LNG
receiving terminals, construction of refueling stations and
floating refueling stations, so that the Group can purchase
LNG through tanks and containers and supply LNG to users.
At the same time, the Group also made significant progress in
gas sources. It will import natural gas through LNG ISO storage
tanks of CNOOC in the Haikou LNG Terminal, thus ensuring
low-cost natural gas supply. Leveraged by the technological
and resource advantages of these partners, the Group will
accelerate the development and construction of the LNG
market in the Yangtze River Delta region, to ensure the steady
supply of gas in Suzhou and the Yangtze River Delta region.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020
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ACCELERATING BUSINESS DIVERSIFICATION
FOR EXPLOSIVE GROWTH

2020 is an important year in the development of the
Group. The Group has made unremitting efforts to take a
solid step towards business diversification. 2021 is the first
year of the T4th Five-Year Plan. In response to the PRC
government’s high emphasis on green energy development,
all provinces across the country have launched specific
plans to accelerate the promotion of green and low-carbon
development. It is believed that with the strong support of
favorable national policies, China’s natural gas industry
will usher in a better period of development. In the coming
year, the Group will seize the opportunity to continue to
deepen the close cooperation with partners to focus on
LNG business expansion, strive to obtain the LNG tank
container terminal qualification, and actively conduct tests
on the carrying capacity and safety of LNG tank container
transportation. Upon the completion of relevant preparations
and obtaining approvals, the Group can officially launch
its LNG business to supply clean and low-cost new energy
to Taicang and other cities within a 300-kilometer radius of
Taicang. If all the plans are rolled out, the Group’s future
earnings will usher in a substantial increase.

In addition to the layout in the Yangtze River Delta region,
the Group will further strategically develop markets with
good growth potential outside of East China. It plans to
achieve geographic and territorial expansion through equity
acquisitions or various cooperation models to expand its
business scale.

WORKING TOGETHER TO CREATE A
BRILLIANT FUTURE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers and partners for
their long-term support for the Group and would also like
to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management and
all employees for their hard work and contributions despite
the severe challenges brought about by the pandemic over
the past year. In 2021, let's work hard together to achieve
further sound business development and generate greater
returns for our investors.

Su Yi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENSNEEERERE

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

S
BPNESERKANL2ESENX  BREN
FRTEF MEBEFATEER=RBUIF
WITES - TRINMBBEARBESETNAF
HERNEOER

Name Age Roles and responsibilities

6 Fie BUNEE

Executive Directors

BITES

Ms. Su Yi (Chairman) 48 Overall strategic planning and business direction and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group’s strategy

AL L (EFF) BRI LERBTT RN NEE RSB RN
ERNITHER

Mr. Du Shaozhou 68 Managing the day-to-day operations of the Group

HARREEE EEAEENAFEE

Ms. Su Wen 45 Assisting the chairman in formulating the overall strategic

planning and business direction of the Group

MEZL 13 B) £ i Il FE AN SR B B R SR R AT &) S R 5 0 )

Mr. Li Jianyi 47 Implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategic
plans and inter-departmental coordination within
our Group

FE—tE BT RERARENRRE 8 A RE B A%

Non-executive Directors

FUTES

Mr. Xu Lei 52 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

AFEEE FEITIFAITE SRS

Mr. Jin Bo 50 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

DREE [EITIFRITE SRS

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFBITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 88 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

FEREE 1T IFNITE B

Mr. Zhu Tong 52 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

PN 2t FETT L IFNITE A B

Mr. Feng Yijing 39 Performing roles as an independent non-executive

HEREE

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Executive Directors

Ms. Su Yi (BRZE), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 June 2016. She was appointed as the
Executive Vice Chairman of the Board on 21 February
2017 and was re-designated as the chairman of the Board
on 19 August 2019. She is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business direction of the Group and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group's strategy. Ms.
Su has more than 10 years’ experience in computer software
and project management. She worked at the New York City
Housing Authority of the United States of America (the “US”)
from May 2005 to May 2015 and served various positions
including computer specialist (software). She worked on
human resources administration for the City of New York of
the US from November 2002 to May 2005.

Ms. Su obtained a master degree in science from Pace
University in January 2003. She has been certified as a
Project Management Professional (PMP) by the Project
Management Institute since July 2006. She also obtained a
certification for people program at the TOGAF 9 certified
level in December 2015. Ms. Su is the sister of Ms. Su Wen,
an executive Director, and a daughter of Mr. Su Aping
and Ms. Zhu Yaying. Ms. Su is one of the several eligible
beneficiaries of two discretionary trusts of which First
Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited acts as their trustees and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited and Total Honest International
Investment Ltd, each a substantial shareholder of the
Company, are indirectly wholly owned by it as trustee for

the discretionary trusts.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (#:# /&), aged 68, is the chief executive
officer of the Company and was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has
over 45 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du served at
PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited
(FERERAARFABRAF]) as deputy general manager,
deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee,
secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and chairman of
the labour union. From April 1995 to September 2008, Mr.
Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen Petroleum

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Industrial Co., Ltd. ORIIEHERBRRRE]) such as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From June 1978 to April
1995, he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum Industry of
the PRC (FREIAMIEER) (later known as China National
Petroleum Company and China National Petroleum
Corporation) where he held various positions including
secretary and secretary (deputy division chief level) (BIEZ#
MZE). From December 1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked
at the Locomotive Team of Daging Oilfield Construction
Headquarter (KB hHMEEZEAEBAER). From October
1969 to December 1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe
Oilfield Geophysical Exploration (EJAlHEYRE). Mr.
Du obtained a diploma in Public Administration from Staff
University of Continuing Education of the Party School of
the Central Committee of the CPC (Ff Hrh R BB T ¥ 64K
£ in the PRC in July 1990.

Ms. Su Wen (8 58), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 August 2019. Ms. Su has been the executive
assistant at Argus Holding Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in the US since January
2019. Ms. Su is responsible for assisting the Chairman in
formulating the business strategies of the Group. Ms. Su has
extensive experience in international trading. She worked as
an export supervisor at Mediterranean Shipping Co. in the
US from June 2005 to December 2008 and an import and
export supervisor at ACT Logistics in the US from January
2009 to October 2009.

Ms. Su obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration, majoring in international business, from
Schiller International University in the US in May 2001.
Ms. Su is the sister of Ms. Su Yi, the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, and a daughter of Mr. Su Aping
and Ms. Zhu Yaying. Ms. Su is one of the several eligible
beneficiaries of two discretionary trusts, of which First
Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited acts as their trustees, and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited and Total Honest International
Investment Ltd, each a substantial shareholder of the
Company, are indirectly wholly owned by it as trustee for

the discretionary trusts.
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Mr. Li Jianyi (F#—), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director on 19 August 2019. Mr. Li joined the
Group in November 2013 and has been the investment
controller of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategy plans
as well as inter-departmental coordination within the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Li was the chief branch
secretary of the Communist Youth League of Henan Oilfield
and Oil Production First Factory Feiya Company (7 FEfH H
FM—MREEAR]) from July 1997 to December 1998. He
worked at Shenzhen Huayou Enterprise Development Co.,
Ltd. (RIIFEREXERERAQTF])

including sales manager, assistant to general manager and

serving several positions

the deputy general manager from December 1998 to June
2006. During June 2006 to March 2010, Mr. Li served as
the deputy general manager of Zhanjiang Shenyang Cage
Techonology Co., Ltd. CEILRFHEER AR AF]) and he
worked at Shenzhen Greenwheel Electric Vehicle Group
Co., Ltd. ORIITEEM A FEEREBEELBABRAF]) from
April 2010 to November 2013 with last position as the
project controller.

Mr. Li graduated with a bachelor degree in management
engineering from Southwest Petroleum University in
July 1997. Mr. Li obtained a master degree of business
administration from Macau University of Science and

Technology in June 2004.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (FF&), aged 52, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 15 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(BRI EEIR(LB)AMRAT]) in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEREE

Mr. Jin Bo (£38), aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 3 September 2018. Mr. Jin has been the vice
president and secretary of the board of the directors of
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (L
BRZABEXREERMNEBRAF) (“Shanghai Dazhong
Public Utilities”) since May 2017 and February 2017,
respectively. Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities is a
company listed on both the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
stock code 600635 and the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1635 and is a substantial shareholder of the Company
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dazhong (Hong Kong)
International Corporation Limited. Mr. Jin joined Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities in May 2010 as the investment
director and served as a director and the general manager
of Shanghai Dazhong Group Capital Equity Investment Co.,
Ltd. (LBXREEEAREREGRAT),
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities, until September 2015.
From June 2016 to September 2016, Mr. Jin served as the
secretary to the board of directors and assistant to the

a subsidiary of

president of China Grand Automotive Services Co., Ltd. (&
[T B ARG AR 5 A 7)),
Stock Exchange with stock code 600297. Mr. Jin rejoined
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities in October 2016 as the
investment director. Mr. Jin has been an executive director

a company listed on the Shanghai

and the general manager of Shanghai Dazhong Municipal
Development Co., Ltd. (EBRBEHWHRERBR AR since
August 2017. He has also been an executive director and
the general manager of Shanghai Xiangyin Road Tunnel
Construction Development Co., Ltd. (LGB BB E R
RABRAE]) since August 2017.

Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor degree in industrial management
engineering from Shanghai Institute of Building Materials
(EBEEMBITEER) (now known as Tongji University)
in July 1993 and a master of business administration from
China Europe International Business School in September
2008.

Mr. Jin was granted the title of senior economist by Shanghai
Expertise Qualification Review Committee, Economics Series
(Sphere of Urban Construction and Transportation) (/&
REZRI(BHEREABEL S REERMBBTRERSE
EZEE) in May 2005.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (JBBE1H), aged 88, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (SR ERBMZEE) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (FFEIAAA AL THE
9T ®). From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of
the Advisory Committee (2% 85 &) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (¥ MRS I/NCID
From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (Bl HRKARAEDF]) (now known as
China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.
Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (%758
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(A EKIER D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(5BARBAE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shaanxi Yanchang Oil Field (BRPEEE K )MEE) as an accounting
clerk and secretary.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was
awarded professor-level senior economist in September
1989 by China National Petroleum Company.
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Mr. Zhu Tong (5:#%), aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 13 July 2017. He is currently a
professor and doctoral advisor at the Research Institute of
Thermal and Environmental Engineering (RAEEERIRIR TA2H 5%
FfT), School of Mechanical Engineering (#2585 TF2ZFt) of
Tongji University (EEARZ). Mr. Zhu has co-authored teaching
materials relating to engineering thermodynamics and heat
transfer. His fields of research include distributed energy resources
and high efficiency energy utilization, and he is currently involved
in research projects relating to natural gas, renewable energy
and low emission micro-turbine technology (A &m (K HE
BUREE). Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree, a master degree,
and a doctorate in thermal engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology (FaERE T3 KZ) in July 1991, March 1994 and July
1997 respectively. Mr. Zhu was also a visiting scholar at Helmut
Schmidt University in Hamburg, Germany, from November
2001 to November 2002. Mr. Zhu currently serves as a council
member of each of the Chinese Society of Power Engineering
(“CSPE") (FEIENHTI2E®) and the China Electronic Energy-
Saving Technology Association (1B FEFRER AT 17 &). Mr. Zhu
is also a member of both the Boiler Professional Committee of
CSPE (TEIB N TIZLSMEFREZEZEE) and the Cogeneration
Professional Committee of the Chinese Society for Electrical
Engineering (FEI B T RS2 EZXEE D).
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Mr. Feng Yijing (5% &), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 June 2020. He
has over 15 years of experience in the accounting and
auditing field. From August 2004 to October 2016, Mr. Feng
worked as a senior audit manager at Ernst & Young and he
was responsible for annual audit for various enterprises,
planning and preparing for listing on the Stock Exchange
for various corporations in the People’s Republic of China,
and other assurance and advisory services. From October
2016 to April 2019, Mr. Feng was the chief financial officer
of Wansecheng E-commerce Group Co., Ltd.* (BEHE
FrEBEEBMRAF]). Since May 2019, he has been the
chief financial officer and Company secretary of Nanjing
Howking Technology Co., Ltd.* (B REBAEHEIAR
A 7\l), a company principally engaged in the research
and development and sales of 5G products and network
infrastructure solutions. Mr. Feng graduated with a bachelor
degree in audit from the Nanjing Audit University* (F§ R %
FTRZ) (formerly known as the Nanjing Institute of Audit*
(FARE&2Ft)) in the PRC in June 2004. Mr. Feng was
accredited as Certified Public Accountants by the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in March 2009,
Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants by the Association of Chartered Certified
Accounts in January 2013, Certified Internal Auditor by
The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2010 and
awarded with the independent director qualification
certificate by The Shanghai Stock Exchange in April 2017.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEREE

The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, if any, within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2020 are disclosed in the “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures” section of the Report of
the Directors on pages 63 to 68 of this Annual Report.

R2020F12A31H » EERARQ A KEE
BEB RO P HEENER (WE) (EER
BELHEKRFEXVE) RAERF3IE
BEEFEMEEFREIZTHAERR
- HERDREEZENES AR ] —E
WEE -

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SRERE

The following table sets out certain information about our R~XRFIEHABREAAD PEEBRNERHB

senior management personnel as at the date of this annual  HIF9Eln & X} :

report:

Name Age Current Position

e Fiie AR

Mr. Xu Xihua 65 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RPESRLE KR RAREBIBKRE

Mr. Yuan Qing 46 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RrRELE AR RAREBNAEE

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 47 Chief financial officer and company secretary of
the Company

REGEE ARBMHRERATWE

Mr. Zhou Jihui 58 Deputy general manager of the Company

[E MR S AR BIBEE
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (%R 8%), aged 65, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (KE&ABIEERILRITIE
BMR 27, where he was a manager from January 1999
to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of
operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division (RREEEREEK) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /NT&EREIE &%
E Q7R (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company.
Mr. Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and
later promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau
from December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (R #£ A RER IR KK L) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (B}
B THD) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since
July 1991. In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced
Productivity Worker award (JLiEEE(T{E)#E) from the
Lanzhou Railway Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang
Outstanding Communist Party Member award in June 1999.
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EEREREEEREE

Mr. Yuan Qing (R%), aged 46, joined the Group in
August 2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang
Natural Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August
2004 as a manager of the production division, responsible
for gas supply service and scheduling, manufacturing
operations and safety management, and was promoted to
deputy general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang
Group from January to July 2004, responsible for internal
operation, regulatory compliance and external relationships.
From 1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s
Liberation Army in Beijing Military Region (Jt RE[&) and
retried from the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of
captain. He graduated from China People’s Liberation Army
International Relations College (FFEIA R E BEREEE
B7) in July 1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal
Processing (2B IKEEIE) and from Correspondence
Institute of the Party School of the Central Committee of the
CPC (A RERHZZERT) in the PRC specialising in law
through its distance learning programme in December 2001.
He was awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#), aged 47, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company,
responsible for the oversight of the Group’s financial and
accounting operations, as well as company secretarial
and internal control function. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng has been
an independent non-executive director of Immunotech
Biopharm Ltd (Stock Code: 6978) since June 2020. Mr. Ng
has been an independent non-executive director of Great
Wall Motor Company Limited (Stock Code: 2333) since 11
May 2017. Since December 2010, Mr. Ng has been a non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee
of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 951),
responsible for oversight of the financial management and
reporting. From January 2010 to December 2010, he served
as the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited, responsible for
oversight of financial and accounting operations, company
secretarial and internal control function. From March 2000
to December 2009, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and
Advisory Business Services Department of Ernst & Young.
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Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in
November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2003 and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2006.

Mr. Zhou Jihui (E#1E), aged 58, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (FEIT
TP m R TR & AR 2 A]) where he held various
positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior
engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (FAHE
mARARFNAAERALF) where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (¥ T ¥A 28
BEfLETF2) from Chongging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EERZETI22 ) (now known as Chongqing
University (EEAZ)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (% BIFRAZ (L il
ZESHEASERHRBORNEZR®)
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (FEIETATREBGNRDEBERBBRAAREXEZES)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.

and the Professional
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Looking back on 2020, the world was affected by
COVID-19, and all countries and even all trades and
industries experienced unprecedented challenges. However,
the active and scientific response to the outbreak by the
governments at all levels and people in China, as well as
different measures to stimulate the economy taken by the
government in due course, made China the first country
in the world to resume work and production, and the first
country to maintain a stable economy in the world. The
GDP of China increased by 2.9% as compared with the
previous year, representing a slower growth rate, but China

ranked first in the world in terms of GDP growth rate.

Driven by China’s economy which was stable and moving
in a positive direction and national policies to encourage
natural gas exploration, development and import, the
natural gas consumption in China increased steadily in
2020. Especially in the second half of the year, as the
COVID-19 outbreak was well controlled, there was an
increase in demand in the international industrial market,
and a significant rise in the domestic and foreign demand
for industrial production in China, with a sharp increase
in the production orders, which promoted the economic
recovery. Moreover, the rare occurrence of low temperature
weather in winter during the year resulted in a strong
demand for natural gas, leading to an increase in the year-
on-year growth rate of natural gas sales volume in the fourth
quarter of 2020. Therefore, industrial and commercial gas
consumption gradually returned from negative growth at the
beginning of 2020 to the level in 2019. The data of National
Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC”) show
that in 2020, China’s apparent consumption of natural gas
reached 320 billion cubic meters, representing a year-on-

year increase of 4.2%.
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There is a profound adjustment of China’s energy profile,
in which promoting the green economy transition is one of
the key development strategies. The gradual deepening of
the natural gas reform reflects the unshakable resolution and
efforts of China for the green economy transition. In May
2019, the Measures for the Supervision and Administration
of Fair Opening of Oil and Gas Pipeline Network Facilities
were officially published, which promoted the fair opening
of oil and gas pipeline network facilities. The formal
establishment of national pipeline network companies on
9 December is one of the most significant and fundamental
reform measures in the natural gas system reform in recent
years, and will give new impetus to the whole natural
gas industry chain in China, and promote the resources
supplied by many companies through multiple channels
in the upstream and establishment of a pricing mechanism
in the natural gas market. Urban gas companies will have
diversified supplies of pipeline gas and natural gas resources
at diversified prices.

Moreover, in response to the decline in natural gas
consumption, local governments successively introduced
various policies to stabilize natural gas consumption and
promote the stable and sound development of the natural
gas industry of China, including the Catalogue of Pricing by
the Central Government, the Implementation Opinions on
Accelerating the Building of Natural Gas Reserve Capacity,
the Opinions on Accelerating the Improvement of Socialist
Market Economy in the New Era, and the Guiding Opinions
on Energy Work in 2020 (the “Guiding Opinions”).
Especially for the development of energy consumption
in China, the National Energy Administration proposes
the target of energy consumption of 2020 in the Guiding
Opinions, so as to accelerate the achievement of cleaner
and sustainable energy consumption (namely the proportion
of coal consumption decreasing to approximately 57.5% in
2020). The Guiding Opinions specifies that efforts should
be made to increase the natural gas production volume
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by 4% to 181 billion cubic meters through conventional
and unconventional methods, including accelerating
the construction of pipeline network and gas storage
infrastructure, specifying the responsibilities of upstream
gas supply enterprises and PipeChina for gas storage,
speeding up the construction of key projects of gas storage
facilities, and gradually promoting the performance of long-
term agreements and spot purchase of LNG. Considering
high dependence on imports for the total natural gas
consumption, China needs to increase domestic production
to satisfy the increasing demand of urban and industrial
users and ensure the safety of national energy, from the

perspective of long-term development.

With the continuous implementation of the “coal-to-gas”
policy in China, the progress in the overall reform of the
industry, the continuous coordination of all processes of the
natural gas industry and the steady growth of macroeconomy
of China, we believe that the natural gas market will usher
in new growth opportunities.

Energy is driving force in economic development as well as
a driver for social civilization and progress. When the macro
economy is facing significant challenges of transformation
and upgrade, the energy transition has become an
important topic at the national strategy level. The natural
gas, as the sole low-carbon and clean energy among fossil
energies, is becoming an important driver for global energy
transformation. In the World and China Energy Outlook
2050, it is predicted that China will experience a period of
rapid growth in demand for natural gas by 2040, with the
newly increased demands mainly from industry, resident,
electricity and other sectors, and China will experience a
period of steady growth in the natural gas demand from
2040 to 2050.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As at 31 December 2020, as the leading piped natural gas
supplier and operator in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province,
China, the Group had a natural gas pipeline network
totaling 645 km covering all major regions in Taicang City
and over 90% (in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline
network in Taicang City.

Taicang, as the county-level city closest to Shanghai,
actively promoted the planned connection to Shanghai for
the comprehensive integration into the Yangtze River Delta
in 2020. During the period, efforts were made to extend
Shanghai Jiamin Line northward, with the completion and
opening of the Shanghai-Nantong Railway (Phase I) and the
accelerated construction of the Shanghai-Nantong Railway
(Phase 1l). Moreover, active efforts were made to maintain
alignment with Shanghai industrial map and proactively
integrate into Shanghai Honggiao Central Business District
for deepening the construction of the Jiading-Kunshan-
Taicang collaborative innovation rim. This, along with
the inclusion of Taicang Pilot Section of Suzhou-Wuxi-
Changzhou Intercity Railway (Shanghai Jiamin Line
northward to Taicang Section) in national major projects,
the official opening of the road connecting Yuelu Road
and Jiading Chengbei Road, the completion of the Jiading-
Kunshan-Taicang Science and Technology Industrial Park,
successful completion of the presentation for coordinated
development of Shanghai and Taicang and other events,
adds momentum to the economic development of Taicang.
The data in the Government Work Report of Taicang City
2021 show that, in 2020, Taicang City recorded the gross
regional product of RMB136 billion (estimated, similarly
hereinafter), representing a year-on-year increase of 3.9%;
the average annual growth of RMB136 billion in gross
regional product; the gross regional product per capita
exceeding RMB190,000; total investment of RMB46.859
billion in fixed assets; and ranked tenth among China’s
Top 100 Counties in terms of comprehensive economic
competitiveness, and comprehensive strength. The general
public budget revenue was RMB17.1 billion, representing
an increase of 5.0%.
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In addition, the Taicang Port is an important part of
Shanghai International Shipping Center as designated by
the state, the main container port, the transshipment hub
for transport by river and sea, as well as the sole riverside
natural harbour in Jiangsu. As at the end of 2020, Taicang
Port ranked first in the province, ninth in China and 30th in
the World’s Top 100 Container Ports and became the No.1
foreign trade port along the Yangtze River, the port with the
biggest number of foreign trade routes along the Yangtze
River and the largest number of incoming and outgoing
international navigation ships in the province. The favorable
macroeconomic environment and great growth potential of
Taicang City provides the Group with an excellent business
environment and strong support for business development,
which is conducive to the steady growth of the Group.

Cooperation with the world’s leading natural gas
enterprises in jointly developing LNG projects

In June 2020, the Group, through China Suchuang Energy
Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Suchuang Energy”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a comprehensive
strategic cooperation framework agreement with BP, in
relation to the whole industry chain of natural gas and LNG,
and gas-fired generation, pursuant to which, BP intends to
cooperate with Suchuang Energy in jointly developing and
constructing new LNG receiving terminal projects in China.
The unique experience of BP in Guangdong Dapeng LNG
Receiving Terminal and other international LNG receiving
terminal projects will add special value to the cooperation
with Suchuang Energy in terms of both construction and
operation, and both parties wish to carry out strategic
cooperation in the following areas: (i) long-term supply of
spot LNG to Suchuang Energy or its associated companies
in China; (ii) potential equity investment in LNG receiving
terminal projects of Suchuang Energy or its associated
companies in China; (iii) joint development of domestic
LNG/natural gas market in China.
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Looking for new gas sources to break through the
limitation of gas source

On 27 July 2020, the Company entered into a cooperation
framework agreement with CNOOC Gas & Power Group for
a term of five years from the date of the agreement, for the
purpose of establishment of a cooperative relationship for
the development of LNG businesses, construction of LNG
receiving terminals, development and operation of LNG tank
container businesses, and construction of LNG refueling

stations for vehicles and vessels in Taicang Port.

The cooperation between the Group and CNOOC Gas
& Power Group will create a synergy for both parties
to seek further business cooperation in certain projects
(including the development by the Company of LNG
receiving terminals in Taicang Port and the construction
and development by the Company of LNG refueling
stations in Taicang City), which is in the interests of the
long-term development of the Group and the interests of
its shareholders as a whole. The cooperation may help
break through the current limitation of natural gas supply,
and increase the sources of natural gas supply to fill the
long-term gap in the supply of natural gas in the market, as

well as boosting the revenue and profit of the Company.
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According to the national development strategy, clean
energy including LNG will be the major energy for use
in the future. The continuous increase in the demand for
natural gas consumption, the significant seasonal differences
in consumption, short-term shortage of gas storage facilities
in China and other factors lead to the current failure of LNG
receiving terminals in operation and under construction in
China to fully satisfy and adapt to the growth of natural gas
consumption, and the market demand. In order to ensure
the steady supply of gas in Suzhou and the Yangtze River
Delta region, accelerate the upgrade of industrial structure
and capitalize on the natural advantages of Taicang Port and
the increase in the objective demand for natural gas in the
Yangtze River Delta, the Group intends to construct an LNG
receiving terminal in Taicang Port.

ADJUSTMENT OF NATURAL GAS PRICE

The Group has been in good strategic relation with
PetroChina Company Limited for more than 10 years,
and put into operation the city gateway station which is
connected with Sichuan-East Transmission Pipeline of
Sinopec in November 2015, further ensuring sufficient gas-
supply resources in areas where the Group carries out main
businesses. The purchase price of natural gas of the Group
is determined by NDRC according to the type of end users
and gateway station prices. During the year, the Group’s
average unit purchase price for piped natural gas (exclusive
of VAT) (which is calculated by dividing the total natural gas
purchase cost by the total natural gas purchase volume for
the relevant period) was RMB2.02/m*. The maximum end-
user price at which the Group could sell piped natural gas
to the end-users is determined by the Taicang Price Bureau.
The prices for industrial and commercial end-users are
generally higher than those for residential users and other
users. During the year, the Group’s average unit selling
price for piped natural gas (exclusive of VAT) was RMB2.60/

m?.
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NATURAL GAS SALE AND TRANSMISSION
BUSINESS

Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in Eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with remarkable geographic
advantages available, creating the Shanghai-Taicang one-
city effect together with Shanghai. The dynamic economic
and industrial development has brought unceasingly
increasing industrial and commercial users of natural gas to
the Group. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 627
commercial and industrial users, and approximately 260,500
residential users in Taicang, representing an increase of
32 commercial and industrial users and an increase of
approximately 10,500 residential users as compared to
those as at 31 December 2019. During the year, revenue
generated from our sale and transmission of natural gas
business was approximately RMB1,041.5 million, declining
by 13.0% compared with 2019, accounting for 88.2% of the
Group’s total revenue. Such decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in the volume of natural gas sold during the year.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 5 CNG/
LNG filling stations, including 3 stations in Guangyuan,
Sichuan, 1 station in Taicang and 1 station in Suzhou. 2
LNG/CNG filling stations in Sichuan and Taicang are under
preparation and will be completed by the end of 2021.
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NATURAL GAS PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION AND
CONNECTION BUSINESS

The Group’s natural gas pipeline construction and
connection business includes the construction and
installation of urban gas pipeline networks, as well as the
connection of the networks to the end-user pipelines for
property developers and new industrial and commercial
users. During the year, revenue generated from natural
gas pipeline construction amounted to RMB120.3 million,
representing an increase of 7.4% compared to RMB112.0
million for last year, which accounted for 10.2% of total
revenue during the year. The main reason for the increase
was that the projects completed in the year were mainly
the projects for commercial users, which had higher profit
margin than that for the pipeline projects for residential

users.

DEVELOPING INTO A COMPREHENSIVE
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
ENTERPRISE

According to the national development strategy, LNG, which
is clean energy, will be the major energy for use in the
future. According to the Three-year Action Plan for Green
Port Construction of Taicang Port, efforts will be made to
accelerate the optimization of the energy consumption
structure of the port, construct LNG refueling facilities in
and around the port area, or use LNG refueling vehicles
to provide refueling services for standard transportation
machinery in the port. In July 2020, the Group, through
Taicang Natural Gas Company Limited (“Taicang Natural
Gas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the Strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement for
Taicang Port LNG Energy Project with Taicang Port Group
Co., Ltd. (“Port Group”).
their respective advantages, make joint efforts to build a

Both parties give full play to

professional LNG functional segment in Taicang Port which
is influential in the Yangtze River Delta region, and carry
out comprehensive strategic cooperation in the development
and operation of LNG container business, joint promotion
of the construction of tank container yards, construction
of LNG receiving terminals, refueling stations and floating
refueling stations, etc.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue decreased by 11.2% from RMB1,329.9
million in 2019 to RMB1,181.1 million in 2020. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
from sales and transmission of natural gas business as a
result of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
decrease in sales volume and selling price of natural gas
during the year.

Gross profit

Our gross profit decreased by 15.6% from RMB248.5
million in 2019 to RMB209.7 million in 2020. The decrease
was primarily due to a decrease in gross profit from sale
and transmission of natural gas businesses. The decrease in
the Group’s gross profit margin from 18.7% to 17.8% was
primarily due to the decrease in gross profit margin of sale
and transmission of natural gas business as a result of slight
decrease in average unit selling price of natural gas during
the year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by 93.8% from RMB10.4
million in 2019 to RMB20.2 million in 2020. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in interest income during
the year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 5.0% from
RMB82.2 million in 2019 to RMB86.3 million in 2020,
which was mainly due to the increase in consulting service

fee for business expansion during the year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by 9.1% from RMB12.3 million
in 2019 to RMB11.2 million in 2020. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in weighted average borrowing
balances in 2020.
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Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates decreased by 337.8% from
a gain of RMB580,000 in 2019 to a loss of RMB1,379,000
in 2020. The significant decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in revenue of natural gas heating business of
one of our associated companies in 2020.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 9.7% from RMB48.9
million in 2019 to RMB44.1 million in 2020, primarily
attributable to our decreased taxable income for the year in
2020. Our effective tax rate increased from 39.1% in 2019
to 44.8% in 2020.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2020, profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB54.4 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 22.4% from approximately
RMB70.2 million for 2019.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB466,212,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB441,656,000) of which cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB245,766,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB367,671,000). Total borrowings were
approximately RMB310,050,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB348,078,000). The amount of bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were denominated in
RMB and Hong Kong dollar, and bore interest ranging from
2.05% to 6.08% per annum. Except for RMB234,680,000
borrowings which are repayable within one year, the rest of
balances are not repayable within one year.
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As at 31
ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 1.86
(31 December 2019: 1.86) and net debt to equity ratio (net
debt/equity) was approximately 4.13% (31 December 2019:

December 2020, the Group’s current

The Group’s balance of cash and cash equivalents exceeded
the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings in 2019, as
such, no debt-to-equity ratio was presented). The Group
has sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet
its commitments and working capital requirements. This
strong cash position enables the Group to explore potential
investment and business development opportunities to

expand its business in China.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As all of the Group’s businesses are situated in the PRC,
substantially all of its income and expenses are denominated
in RMB. The exchange fluctuation during the year mainly
arose from appreciation of RMB against the US dollar kept
in Hong Kong, and such cash was generated from the fund
raising activities of the Group in the past few years. The
Group will closely monitor the interest rate and exchange
rate of the market and make appropriate responses when
necessary.

Contingent liabilities
There have been no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020.
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Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting
periods are as follows:

BEERA

RBEMR - ARESERETEEUANG
BRYAKENRITRE - RERSHKR - K
SECEREENRmAERNT

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
ARET T ARETT
Pledged deposits EHEATFR 36,200 64,450
Equity investments designated BERAEFARR
at fair value through profit or loss ~ HIIRAIZE 33,382 -
69,582 64,450
Capital commitments BRI
The Group had the following capital commitments at the ZAREBRFRNERNEIENT ¢
end of the year:
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Contracted, but not provided for: EETAIE KA E -
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB KRR 16,961 22,367
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Affected by the COVID-19 outbreak, there was a decline
followed by a rise in the energy industry in China last year.
In particular, the growth in natural gas consumption in the
first quarter turned negative for the first time in history.
However, as the outbreak was gradually put under control,
domestic production and the economy recovered quickly.
The PRC government requires the accelerated fostering of
a new development paradigm with “domestic circulation”
as the mainstay, and therefore the increase in domestic
demand becomes a driving force behind the steady upturn
of the economy. The rapid industrial and commercial
growth in China lay a strong foundation for the sustainable
growth of energy consumption.

During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, the central
government will stay the course for environmental
governance, and will continuously promote energy structure
optimization and adjustment. The governance of industrial
enterprises with high pollution and high energy consumption
as well as the replacement of fire coal with clean energy
will remain the focus of work, in which natural gas will play
an important role. The NDRC pointed out in the Opinions
on Accelerating the Utilization of Natural Gas that efforts
will be made to increase the primary energy consumption
proportion of natural gas to approximately 15% by 2030.
According to the latest forecast of China Energy News (1
EIBEJR¥R), the proportion of coal consumption in China’s
energy consumption will drop rapidly, from 60% in 2018 to
35% in 2040, and the total reduction will be basically offset
by the increase in the consumption of renewable energy and
natural gas.
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Under the policy for making efforts to develop natural gas
as an alternative energy source in China, the natural gas
industry ushers in a golden period of development. On
the whole, the natural gas industry continues to develop
continuously and steadily. The natural gas industry of China

will develop in a positive direction in 2021.

Attracting new industrial customers, by new gas
sources from LNG tank container businesses

The natural gas consumption population, the total supply
and consumption of natural gas in cities in China increase
continuously, with the promotion of clean energy under
the national policy and the improvement in urbanization.
However, the insufficient construction of gas reserve peak
shaving facilities, the less connectivity of the pipeline
network and the smaller scale of construction, as well as
the larger growth rate of the downstream demand lead
to the failure of existing LNG receiving terminals under
operation and construction in China to fully meet and adapt
to the natural gas consumption growth and market demand,
and therefore a supply gap in the natural gas market is
inevitable. The NDRC expected that the gap between natural
gas supply and demand in China will reach approximately
175 billion m* by 2023.
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Jiangsu Province, a natural gas consumption powerhouse,
and where the Group is located, has vigorously implemented
the “coal-to-gas” policy and the gas power generation
policy. For example, in 2020, the apparent consumption of
natural gas in Jiangsu Province for the year was 30.7 billion
cubic meters, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.0%.
In 2021, the natural gas consumption in Jiangsu Province
is estimated to exceed the level in the previous year. The
data of the Jiangsu Energy Regulatory Office of National
Energy Administration show that in January 2021 alone,
the consumption of natural gas as urban gas and industrial
fuel was 1.66 billion cubic meters, representing a year-on-
year increase of 28.7%; the consumption of natural gas for
power generation was 0.7 billion cubic meters, representing
a year-on-year increase of 5.6%. Taking Southern Suzhou
and Shanghai, both of which are the main natural gas
consumption regions in coastal areas, as examples, it is
expected that by 2025, the natural gas consumption will
reach 43.3 billion m®. Since there is no natural gas resource
in Jiangsu Province, the main gas sources are west-to-east
gas transmission, Sichuan to Eastern China gas transmission,
Hebei Nanjing Pipeline and surrounding LNG receiving
terminals. In 2020, the comprehensive gas supply capacity
is 25.8 billion m*, while the demand in Jiangsu Province is
35 billion m?, with a gap of 9.2 billion m* which needs to
be filled up by other gas resources. It is expected that the
gap will further increase to 11.4 billion m* by 2025.

Considering the construction pace of natural gas supply
infrastructure in and around Jiangsu Province being far
lower than the growth rate of market demand, the Group
will capitalize on the advantages of Taicang Port to
construct LNG receiving and storage facilities, so as to
acquire downstream users within the economic radius of
300 km which may be covered by the LNG tank container
business. The Group has cooperated with large LNG trade
distributors and engaged them to acquire downstream users.
In the future, the Group can also supply gas directly to
downstream users, so as to maintain and increase its share

in the downstream market.
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During the period, the Group sold 82.2 tons of LNG,
representing an increase of 63.5 tons compared with the
same period of last year, laying a foundation for the future
tank container business of the Group. In order to push the
current industry limit and ensure the steady supply of gas in
Suzhou and the Yangtze River Delta region, it is necessary
for the Group to further explore gas sources, expand the

market and promote business diversification.

Exploration of gas resources

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s
LNG output was 13.329 million tons in 2020, representing
a steady year-on-year increase of 14.4%. In the past year,
the oil and gas exploration and development were in good
condition. The National Energy Administration pointed
out that China continuously accelerated the construction
of pipeline, gas storage, LNG receiving terminal and other
main projects in the field of natural gas. The shipping
expansion also becomes a key development project in

regions along the Yangtze River.

In February 2021, in order to reflect the spirit of oil and
gas system reform, Jiangsu Energy Regulatory Office and
Jiangsu Development & Reform Commission formulated the
Implementation Rules for Supervision of Fair Access to LNG
Receiving Terminals in Jiangsu to promote the fair access to
LNG receiving terminals in Jiangsu, ensure the stable supply
of natural gas, and standardize and fairly allow relevant
market behaviors, which will create a good environment for
the development of the LNG industry. The Group believes
that the national policy helped accelerate the construction
of the natural gas system in the past year, which can support

energy structure optimization in the future.
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Taicang, where the Group is located, has the largest
container port along the Yangtze River, and has business
licenses for hazardous chemicals. The Group previously
established a strategic relationship with Taicang Port Group
to build relevant infrastructure facilities including LNG
receiving terminals, LNG tank and container terminals,
and storage yards in Taicang Port, so that the Group can
purchase LNG through tanks and containers and supply LNG
to users. The Group strove to obtain the LNG tank container
terminal qualification during the year. The obtaining of
the qualification by the Group will enable the Group to
increase the sources of natural gas supply to fill the supply
gap in the market. In addition, the Group has reached a
cooperation agreement with CNOOC Gas & Power Group
to import natural gas through LNG I[SO storage tanks of
CNOOC in the Haikou LNG Terminal. At the beginning of
2021, the Group successfully obtained the qualification for
using the oil and gas pipeline of China Oil & Gas Pipeline
Network Corporation, and was allowed to directly use the
pipeline transportation service for connection with upstream
enterprises, thus ensuring the gas supply. If relevant business
is carried out smoothly, the annual import of natural gas is
expected to reach 2.2 billion cubic meters, thus breaking
through the bottleneck of the limited supply of low-cost
natural gas.
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Business Development

The official introduction of the Measures for Supervision

and Administration of Fairness and Openness of Oil and
CH R E FRR N T F

MEZEHE) in recent years and the official operation

Gas Pipeline Network Facilities

of PipeChina in October promote the fairness and
openness of oil and gas pipeline network facilities, give
new impetus to the natural gas industry chain of China,
and help achieve the supply of upstream resources
by multiple entities and channels and form a pricing
mechanism for the natural gas market. This is conducive
to improving the antitrust supervision and optimizing
the oil and gas market structure, and provides the Group
with the opportunity to solve the supply bottleneck, and
helps expand its business to cover Jiangsu.

In addition, the Group is actively expanding the downstream
market, while it has supplied natural gas to the end users
in Taicang City and has conducted wholesale trade in
Kunshan and Changshu. Considering that the Group has
new low-cost natural gas sources, it can compete with the
nearby LNG receiving terminals, by supplying natural gas to
gas stations, factories and other piped natural gas businesses
in other cities within an economic operation radius of 300
kilometers.
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Meanwhile, the Group also plans to expand its LNG ISO
storage tank business to other provinces, so as to expand its
market presence. The LNG ISO storage tank business is only
one of the strategies for expanding natural gas supply, while
the target of the Group is to construct an LNG receiving
terminal with an annual capacity of 8 billion cubic meters,
so as to supply gas to power plants near Taicang and gas
enterprises in surrounding cities. Therefore, on 27 July
2020, the Company entered into a cooperation framework
agreement with CNOOC Gas & Power Group, for the
purpose of establishment of a cooperative relationship for
the development of LNG businesses, construction of LNG
receiving terminals, development and operation of LNG tank
container businesses, and construction of LNG refueling
stations for vehicles and vessels in Taicang Port. After
obtaining the approval of relevant authorities, the Group
will immediately carry out relevant project construction
with CNOOC.

Business Diversification

The Group also continuously invests in and explores other
businesses. On 8 January 2020, the Group and Shanghai
Fosun Tourism, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fosun
Tourism, entered into a non-binding strategic cooperation
framework agreement to establish cooperative relationships
in relation to, among others, the provision of clean energy
for tourist destination projects of Fosun Tourism and its
subsidiaries. The tourist destination project commenced in
2020, while at present, the Group mainly assists Shanghai
Fosun Tourism in the installation of the natural gas pipelines
for the project. Moreover, the Group previously signed a
strategic cooperation framework agreement with Evergrande
Group, pursuant to which the Group mainly assisted
Evergrande Group in the installation of natural gas pipelines
for the tourism project of Evergrande Group. The two
businesses may provide stable and considerable revenue
for the Group and contribute to the organic growth of the
Group.
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2021 is the first year of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. Due to
the great importance attached to the development of green
energy, it was proposed at the Central Economic Work
Conference that “effort should be made to peak carbon
dioxide emissions before 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality
before 2060”. Specific plans have been implemented in
provinces in China to accelerate green and low carbon
development. Despite the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak
on the macro economy of China, the overall economy takes
a turn for the better continuously. It is believed that with
great support from favorable national policies, the natural
gas industry of China will usher in a better development
period. Under the leadership of the Chairman, Suchuang
Gas will vertically integrate its business and expand its
access to the international market by capitalizing on the
opportunities arising from the oil and gas mechanism reform
and the economic development of the Yangtze River Delta
region. It will actively extend the industrial chain, and
strive to realize upstream and downstream integration in the
long-term planning, and accelerate the development pace
of comprehensive energy and environmental protection

enterprises.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of
415 (31 December 2019: 404) staff members in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and the United States.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB55.8 million. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to its staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated to their work and to

leverage their capabilities in serving customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
its securities.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may from
time to time pay to the Shareholders interim dividends,
half-yearly or at other suitable intervals to be settled by the
Board any dividend which may be payable at a fixed rate
or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the financial conditions and the profits of the Company.
The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
discretion of the Board and must be approved at a general
meeting of the Shareholders. In addition, no dividends shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

In accordance with the applicable requirements of the
Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, no dividend shall be declared or paid
otherwise than out of profits. No distribution or dividend
may be paid to the Shareholders out of the share premium
account unless immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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The Board shall consider, including but not limited to, the

following factors before the declaration and payment of
dividends:

(a)

(h)

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance
and conditions and liquidity position;

the Shareholder’s interests;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;

general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have any impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Company; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between

meeting the Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital

management with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board

will continue to review the Dividend Policy and reserve the

right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend

and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (the
“Listing”) on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015 (the
“Listing Date”). The key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are outlined later in this

annual report.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees, namely the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), (together, the “Board
The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective

Committees”).

terms of reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine members, consisting of four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as set out below:

Fxecutive Drrectors
Ms. Su Yi (Chairman)
Mr. Du Shaozhou
Ms. Su Wen

Mr. Li Jianyi

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Jin Bo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. Zhu Tong

Mr. Feng Yijing

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 8 to 15
of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies of
the Directors and that Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are sisters
and are daughters of Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying, of
which Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying have jointly own
and operate a number of companies, the Board members do
not have any family, financial, business or other material/
relevant relationship among themselves, and between the
Chairman and the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.
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The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board
Committee members at least three days before the meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time

after the date on which the meeting is held.

During the Year, the Board held 6 Board meetings.

Corporate Governance Report
ERERRE

ARBFREEBT ETRAUEII0AGERE
EELHEREFTEKRE =02 — B IF
HITEFHMRTE o

HRARREERBYIFATEERELD
RAIE3 IR B T ML F SR -
BARRRRBBREFGRBILAL -

e

ExeliciaTESsees  NefgEd
RBUOTNRERLABRFRERTER A
ExeflTesBNENeRBTMEL T
MAXZ22BEE  UERSLEEHRSHE
PITESEERTNERREANNKBHE

—

E_o

REMEFEREFZEEEREME © A2
Al-REBLAERN - BEMMIBESS
XHEREZARNEL AT TEFLE
FLRBEKE  UBRESA T EFREEM
BRAXHERFADERBLFEEZH - HWEFLE
EZEEREREHESE MRS SES
HTramNEERRERERMERE NS
IRMENER -

EFgenNESZEgeRNgaRE
g/ BEHRLE NEAEEZEREEE
BEEMERNEEMMERIIRE  BRE
ERENEMNHE BEEZSERNEFZ
SERRNERCHERLARBREEE
FRNAEFHATEESES - UH]
ZIREER -

/O 0
48 B o

202043 | HAIMERODERAE

45



46

Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

Attendance at Board and Board Committee
Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings held up during the Year is set
out as follows. During the year ended 31 December 2020,

the Company convened an annual general meeting.

ESENRESEZEEERNHERBR

EEERNEEFAMBTHNEBESS SR
REEZESSRNLEBRHEINAT - &
F2020F 12 A31BIEFE » ARREIT—
RRRBFRE -

Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee general
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
Exe Eh%ZEg REZEE®  FHZEe fEd
Name of directors EENE 2% 2% 2% 2% BERE
Executive Directors YTES
Ms. Su Yi (Chairman) BELL(2E) 6/6  N/A TERA 2/2 2/2 0/1
Mr. Du Shaozhou HaERELE 6/6 NATER NATER NATHEA 11
Ms. Su Wen BEat 6/6  NATER  NANER N/A TER 01
Mr. Li Jianyi FR-%H% 6/6  NATER NATER  NATER 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Xu Lei FELE 5/6 22 NATNER  NATER 0/1
Mr. Jin Bo DREE 6/6  NATER NATER NATER 0/1
Independent Non-executive BIUXHTES
Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu 5] 3/6 12 2/2 2/2 0/1
Mr. Zhu Tong K xE 4/6 212 2/2 212 0/1
Mr. Feng Yijing BEREE
(appointed on 19 June 2020)  (K2020%6 4194
EZ(T) 4/4 171 NATER NATER NATEA
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BERELE
(resigned on 18 June 2020) (R2020%6 /185
FE) 2/2 11 11 11 0/1
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Audit Committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises four
members, three of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Zhu Tong and Mr.
Feng Yijing (replacing Mr. Luk Wai Keung since 19 June
2020), and one of them is a non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Xu Lei. Mr. Zhou Qingzu, the Company’s independent
non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Feng Yijing possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications required under the
Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources

to perform its duties.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function, and with the senior
management and auditors of the Company reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, the risk management and internal control
system and financial reporting matters. It also reviewed the
financial statements of the Company, the Company’s interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, two of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhu Tong (replacing Mr. Luk Wai
Keung since 19 June 2020) and Mr. Zhou Qingzu, and one
of them is an executive Director, namely, Ms. Su Yi. Mr. Zhu
Tong, the Company’s independent non-executive Director,
has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has access to
independent professional advice, if required, and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, in which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Company and the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and made

recommendation to the Board.
The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members

at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, one of them is an executive Director,
namely Ms. Su Yi, and two of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhu Tong (replacing Mr.
Luk Wai Keung since 19 June 2020) and Mr. Zhou Qingzu.
Ms. Su Yi has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has
access to professional advice, if required, and is provided

with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

NOMINATION POLICY

The company secretary of the Company shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members. The factors which would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board
member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s

consideration and approval.

Corporate Governance Report
ERERRE

REEES

FR - REZEEBRE=-ELKE HF U
BWITES  &HZLLT  REPWMLAESE
MIEMITES BRI EE (B2020F6 A
19 BEREEEREE) RABBELE -
EUTEREARIREEESERE - REZ
BEnEREXER (WEFRE)  WERMH
FRERNBITERE -

REZEENIEZEREARITESTENR
B RENRAK - FHEBEIFRITEENE
T UEREERBRARAEEAES
SELEBER -

RAZESSERE  REZESEEES
SLZTEBRMANZIREE - BFET
RIMER - i XIERBEER EXE
& e MBERTERREER - RER
BefdmhlihERGEESTELTILCEE
B (HBR) AESSHRE T ARMA -

REHE
ARAARIMEROHARAZESSEH I
BEEFEREREREAN  UHREREE
CTER - RBLZBENARATIFAETS
REIRAZIKEA - REZEENTHER
EEREAZHEGER  RE2EZRERE
HR(EPEE) BERE  FXRER &
EERANYNSIE SIS ENCIE LRI E) b PN e
% BERERAZEREETEREEZS
RERE EFEXEZTHEARHARTF]
EBMEBEECEMEAER - RREZBEA
EhEBEEZHEETSERNALE

202043 | HAIMERODERAE

49



50

Corporate Governance Report
ERERBE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the

Board.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at
the above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall
establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and

procedures. During the Year, the Board has:

(1) established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made

relevant recommendations;

(2) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous

development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct

for Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in

the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Ms. Su Yi and Mr.
Du Shaozhou respectively with distinct responsibilities. The
chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general corporate, financial
and compliance affairs of the Group. The chief executive
officer is primarily responsible for the strategic decision
making and the management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are not appointed for a specific term of
more than three years.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment. Any new
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall than be
eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.
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Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code during the Year. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance
of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group
up to the date of annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the
Year is as follows:

KBEBHRR  2REFHIARSEINFA
EETIEESTA o s - ARRAEEIR R
BEAFHEMIHRASESREEES
TR REETRNTR -

EENRFEEXERERE

EXFATHRRENERBEY2HEERHE
ERBRABRNEHNE 2 MH MR
NHEREEFEABEAEANIEAFDN
BATRAEFESHELER - AR THRE
SRHEETRAANREMEREERENK
MERER  WEREFETRIENEEE
AER URAHEBRUFEEERAEMRNE
e

BWEERHENRLE  EFERAFERIEI
MBEET

Type of Continuous
Professional
Development
Programmes

Name of Directors BEML HEEXERAEES
Executive Directors HiTES
Ms. Su Yi BEuT A B
Mr. Du Shaozhou AR E A, B
Ms. Su Wen BRIt A, B
Mr. Li Jianyi FER-KE A, B
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Xu Lei AFELE A B
Mr. Jin Bo TREE A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BEEHEEE A, B
Mr. Zhu Tong R KL A, B
Mr. Feng Yijing BERLE

(appointed on 19 June 2020) (R2020%F6 719 HEZ(F) A, B
Mr. Luk Wai Keung EEmts

(resigned on 18 June 2020) (R2020%6 /718 HFIE) A, B
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Notes:
A:  attending training sessions and/or seminars

B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable

regulatory requirements

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2020, except for a
member of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the range from HK$2.5 million to HK$3.0 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior
management were below HK$1.5 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 9 and 10
to the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst
& Young for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:
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k-]

(RMB)

Items of auditors’ services ZE AN RSB R (ARE)
Audit services EIZIRES 2,150,000

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of
the Board to maintain an internal audit function and an
adequate risk management and internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets
and to review the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are to provide a clear
governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
a reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it
risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the senior management of the Company.
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and has the overall responsibility for monitoring design,
implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set
up and maintained a suitable and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted a Corporate Risk
Management Policy in providing direction in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an
annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that
would affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.
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Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the audit committee and the Board at least
once a year. The Board had performed an annual review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the
Listing Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours of the SFO.
Before inside information is fully disclosed to the public,
such information is kept strictly confidential. In addition, the
Group adopted the policy of disclosing relevant information
only to appropriate staff within the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the Company Secretary, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Ng also confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board. The written requisition must specify the
business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: 30th Floor, One Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road,
Hong Kong

Email: ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)” questions.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall
submit such proposals to the Board in writing for the
Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders
to provide comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders’ queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders’ communication and transparency.

There has been no change to the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
141 to 146.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.022 (equivalent to HK$0.026) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Thursday, 10
June 2021. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 28 May 2021, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Thursday, 24 June 2021
to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB19.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 308. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2020 to the date of this

annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB646,715,000, of which RMB0.022 per Share has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year (which represented
a total distribution of RMB19.9 million).
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Major customers and suppliers

In the Year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 37.0% of the total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer for the Year amounted
to 13.8% of the total sales for the Year. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 78.6%
of the total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
largest supplier for the Year amounted to 35.9% of the total

purchases for the Year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the Group
during the Year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Su Yi (Chairman)
Mr. Du Shaozhou (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Su Wen
Mr. Li Jianyi

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Jin Bo

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhou Qingzu
Mr. Zhu Tong
Mr. Feng Yijing (appointed on 19 June 2020)
Mr. Luk Wai Keung (resigned on 18 June 2020)
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association, Mr.
Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Xu Lei and Mr. Zhu Tong will retire from
office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

Further, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Feng Yijing will hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Zhu Tong
and Mr. Feng Yijing, and as at the date of this report still

considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 8 to
19 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years which
may only be terminated in accordance with the provisions
of the service contract by either party giving to the other not

less than three to six months’ prior notice in writing.

The Company has entered into an appointment letter with
Mr. Jin Bo, Mr. Zhu Tong and Mr. Feng Yijing for a term of
three years which may only be terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than three months, prior notice

in writing.
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Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’ interests in
contracts

Save as disclosed under the headings “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 41 to the financial statements, no Director, entity
connected with a director, controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision
of service to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries was made.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020

B batESN - BERNEERRBFAS L
BREINEFEARRFLARATAR
—FREE CEERERIN) BIEOREA
IEJ o

ESRERRERNEEER

BTXIBERS ] — 8 R BHRM T4
[BBERRS I IRBEEN  MBEEE EF
MEEER ERRRAEEMHBARR
ARAE -~ BEERARREEFAMEQFLE
Z P8 A B AN RAD AT 48 S AR
RFRIRTAL » SRR B 1) 75 /B R (A7
Ry RHRERTEEXIEEREREARE

S

E\

FR - BERIE R RS E AN E AR
AEBRENRBILEMNERNEAR -

EEAE
BEFRANFANERFEMBRLRFE
BRAANSEE 2 B S ERERE ) EHHE R
MITHHAR e



Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share

ordinary shares capital

held HART

B BEETRA

kA=t #8 BAY

Name of Directors BEENS Nature of interest 1

Ms. Su Yi (1) BRI (1) Beneficiary of two &
discretionary trusts

Mr. Du Shaozhou HBR%E Beneficial owner Z

Ms. Su Wen (2) Bt (2) Beneficiary of two i
discretionary trusts

Mr. Li Jianyi Fp—k4 Beneficial owner 7

(L) denotes long position

N BK

Bk

337,684,000 (L) 37.39
A A 100,000 (L) 0.01
PRETZZREA

337,684,000 (L) 37.39
BEA 96,000 (L) 0.01

(L) FTREE
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Notes:

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three
of the several eligible beneficiaries. Besides, 214,546,000
Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu Holdings
Limited which is wholly owned by Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. and
indirectly wholly-owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore)
Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Su
Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su
Wen are three of the several eligible beneficiaries.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly-owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three
of the several eligible beneficiaries. Besides, 214,546,000
Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu Holdings Limited
which is wholly owned by Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. and is
indirectly wholly-owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore)
Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Su
Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Su Wen and Ms.
Su Yi are three of the several eligible beneficiaries.
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Interests in underlying shares of the Company - equity
derivatives of the Company:
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RARRIRBERDES — NARRESEITE
TH:

Number of
underlying shares

in respect of the Percentage

share options of the

granted under the Company'’s

Scheme issued share

REZHRL capital

BREFRSR  ERRAEERT

Name of directors Espng Nature of interest EEtE WEBRAEE REHE
Ms. Su Yi HELL Beneficial owner EaAA 2,150,000 0.24%
Mr. Du Shaozhou HARLE Beneficial owner ERBEA 2,200,000 0.24%
Mr. Li Jianyi FR-%AE Beneficial owner EnfiBA 1,850,000 0.20%
Mr. Xu Lei SEEE Beneficial owner ExBBA 300,000 0.03%
Mr. Zhou Qingzu FEERE Beneficial owner ERBEEA 300,000 0.03%
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none [ b3 FTIEEE N - 72020412 8318 -

of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares
As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the
directors or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of
the Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or
more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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B2 2 <P AIE BTG AL 7 KB 52 B M0
HEAR -
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
Number of capital
ordinary BEART
shares held BRITRAH
Name 25 Nature of interest BEHME FBEEREE BAl
Mr. Su Aping (1) BT E() Interest of spouse, settlor AR - 342,034,000 (L) 37.87
and beneficiary of a 2REEFRTA
discretionary trust REBA
Ms. Zhu Yaying (2) RBEZL(Q2) Interest of spouse, settlor AL - 342,034,000 (L) 37.87
and beneficiary of a 2REFRTA
discretionary trust REBA
First Advisory Trust LIEFE (%) Trustee ZFEA 337,684,000 (L) 37.39
(Singapore) Limited (3, 6) ~ HRZA7A (3, 6)
Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings  Beneficial owner ERBEEA 214,546,000 (L) 23.76
Limited (3) Limited (3)
Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. (3) KREBAF 3) Interest of a controlled ~ ASIEEMEZ 214,546,000 (L) 23.76
corporation
Arowana Holdings Limited (3) Arowana Holdings  Interest of a controlled ~ RZIEABEM#EZ 214,546,000 (L) 23.76
Limited (3) corporation
Dazhong (Hong Kong) KB (BE) BE Beneficial owner EREBA 129,344,000 (L) 14.32
International Corporation — HRAF (4)
Limited (4)
Shanghai Dazhong Public ~ EBAFZAEEE  Interest of a controlled A IEE R 174,344,000 (L) 19.31
Utilities (Group) Co., (RE) &b corporation, beneficial 2% « B4
Limited (4) BRAE 4) owner ®EA
Action East International ~ BEE% Beneficial owner BREAA 163,040,000 (L) 18.05
Limited (5) BERAF (5)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled ~ RSEZEEMELZE 163,040,000 (L) 18.05
Growth Fund Il Growth Fund 111, corporation
L.P.(5) L.P. (5
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled ~ REZZZEEMER 163,040,000 (L) 18.05
Growth Fund Il Growth Fund Il corporation
GP, Ltd. (5) GP, Ltd. (5)
Total Honest International i &|BI Beneficial owner ERHEA 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Investment Ltd (6) REBRAF (6)
Ridge Glorious Limited (6)  Ridge Glorious Interest of a controlled ~ REEEEMER 123,138,000 (L) 13.64

Limited (6)

corporation

(L) denotes long position
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Notes:

214,546,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by Yong Sheng
Pte Ltd. and is indirectly wholly-owned by First Advisory
Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust
of which Mr. Su Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping,
Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three of the several eligible
beneficiaries. Besides, 123,138,000 Shares are beneficially
owned by Total Honest International Investment Ltd which
is wholly owned by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as
trustee for a discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and Ms. Su Yi are two of the
several eligible beneficiaries. Mr. Su Aping is the beneficial
owner of the share options granted under the Company’s
share option scheme in respect of 2,200,000 Shares issuable
under such share options. Ms. Zhu Yaying is the beneficial
owner of the share options granted under the Company’s
share option scheme in respect of 2,150,000 Shares issuable
under such share options. Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms.
Zhu Yaying. Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares and share options
in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is interested.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee for a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying and Ms. Su Yi are two of the several
eligible beneficiaries. Besides, 214,546,000 Shares are
beneficially owned by Fung Yu Holdings Limited which
is wholly owned by Yong Sheng Pte Ltd. and is indirectly
wholly-owned by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as
trustee for a discretionary trust of which Mr. Su Aping is the
settlor, and Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are
three of the several eligible beneficiaries. Ms. Zhu Yaying
is the beneficial owner of the share options granted under
the Company’s share option scheme in respect of 2,150,000
Shares issuable under such share options. Mr. Su Aping is
the beneficial owner of the share options granted under the
Company’s share option scheme in respect of 2,200,000
Shares issuable under such share options. Ms. Zhu Yaying is
the spouse of Mr. Su Aping. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
and share options in which Mr. Su Aping is interested.

(2)
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Fung Yu Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Yong Sheng
Pte Ltd., which is wholly owned by Arowana Holdings
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by First Advisory
Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust
of which Mr. Su Aping is the settlor, and Mr. Su Aping,
Ms. Su Wen and Ms. Su Yi are three of the several eligible
beneficiaries.

Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited, the A shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code
600635 and the H shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code 1635. Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited is deemed to be interested in
the same number of shares in which Dazhong (Hong Kong)
International Corporation Limited is interested. Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Limited was the
beneficial owner of 45,000,000 Shares.

Action East International Limited is wholly-owned by
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Action
East International Limited is interested.

Prax Capital China Growth Fund IIl, L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman Islands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund IIl GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Total Honest International Investment Ltd is wholly-owned
by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by First Advisory Trust (Singapore) Limited as trustee for a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor,
and Ms. Zhu Yaying, Ms. Su Yi and Ms. Su Wen are three of
the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no

person, other than the Directors and chief executive of

the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,

had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), other employees of the Group,
consultants and advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 11 March 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 11
March 2015. The scheme mandate limit was refreshed on
12 September 2017.

Principal terms of the Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out
below pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules:

(a)  Furpose
The purposes of the Scheme are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees, directors, consultants and
advisers of the Group and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

(b)  Participants
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Director,
consultant or adviser of the Group (the “Eligible

Person”).

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
scheme and percentage of issued share capital as at
327 March 2027
The number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme was 75,292,400 Shares, representing 8.34%
of the issued share of the Company as at 31 March
2021.
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Scheme

Unless approved by the Shareholders in a general
meeting (with such Eligible Person and his close
associates (or his associates if the Eligible Person
is a connected person) abstaining from voting),
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each
Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of

the Company in issue.

Any options granted to an Eligible Person who is
a substantial shareholder, or independent non-
executive Director, or their respective associates,
which will result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the
options granted and to be granted (including options
whether exercised, cancelled or still outstanding) to
such person in the period of 12 months up to and

including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such
other percentage as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange) of the issued
share capital of the Company; and

(i)~ having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each
in excess of HK$5,000,000 (or such

other amount as may from time to time be

grant,
specified by the Stock Exchange).

Such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.
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(e)

7

(g)

(h)

(7)

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The exercise period of any option granted under the
Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant option.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Scheme does not specify any minimum holding
period before the option can be exercised but the
Board has the authority to determine the minimum
holding period when the options are granted.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of options within 21
days from the date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall not be less than the greater

of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of such option;

(i) the average closing prices of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option;

and
(iii)  the nominal value of the share.
The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 11 March 2015.

(e)

(f)

g

(h)

(i)
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Movements of share options RS
Movements of the share options granted to the participants RIEZFIEIER FREA T ZEBRERTEA
pursuant to the Scheme during the Year are as follows: RSN -
Number of ordinary shares
subject to share options granted under the Scheme
REZTERLNRRESRNERRYE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name of participant share options price 2020  thePeriod the Period the Period  the Period 2020
#2020 #2020
1A1H Rk R RER RER 128318
SREFARLS ReBRERS i GESH B fif BitH RS GESIL
Directors
g=
Ms. SuYi 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
BRudt 201651 7298*
24 January 2017 2280 150,000 - - - - 150,000
201751 A24B
Mr. Du Shaozhou 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
taRLLE 201651 A298*
24 January 2017° 2280 200,000 - - - - 200,000
201751 A48
Mr. Li Jianyi 29 January 2016* 2.000 350,000 - - - - 350,000
FR-RE 201651 298¢
24 January 2017° 2.280 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
201751 A4E
Mr. Xu Lei 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
HELE 201651 4298*
24 January 2017 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201751 A48
Mr. Zhou Qingzu 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
RRERE 2016%1 298
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201751 A48
Mr. Luk Wai Keung (resigned 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - (160,000) - (40,000) -
on 18 June 2020) 2016517298
BEERE 24 January 2017 2.280 100,000 - - - (100,000 -

(M2020F6 A 18REE)  2017E1724B¢
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Number of ordinary shares
subject to share options granted under the Scheme
REZTARENBERESROEERYE

Outstanding Outstanding

as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at

Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December

Name of participant share options price 2020  thePeriod thePeriod the Period the Period 2020

#2020 #0205

1A1H R R R R 128318

SRERRIRLL ReBRERS %8 HATTE B fif Bi# RS GESIL

Other employees 29 January 2016* 2.000 13,950,000 - - - (200,000) 13,750,000
RftES 201651 298¢

(note) 24 January 2017 2.260 3,350,000 - - - - 3,350,000
(Wit) 201751 A4 B!

25 October 2017° 3.0 14,500,000 - - - - 14,500,000

2017510A258°

Other eligible participants 24 January 2017¢ 2.280 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000
ReERSRE 201751 A24B!

25 May 2017 2.466 40,000,000 - - - - 40,000,000
201755258

92,900,000 - (160,000) - (3400000 92,400,000

The exercise period is from 28 February 2017 to 28 January
2024. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2017; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2018; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2019; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2020; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2021.

The exercise period is from 28 February 2018 to 23 January
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
Options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each Grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2022.

TEHAE2017F2A28HE20244%1 728
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BB OBETEABABREZ20%E®
20192 A28 BHE : ()ETEER AR
TEZ20%#E72020F2 A28 BERIE  N(e)i&
FEARABRIEZ20%852021F2 A28
HHE -

TEHAE2018F2 A28HE2025%1 A23
He@BBHOT : @QETERBEABREZ
20% 157 2018F2 A28 HRE : (ETE
ERABREZ20%#512019F2 A28H
BB (OBETEABABREZ20%E®
202052 A28 HBE  ()ETEERARERK
T 220%H572021F2 A28 BERE + K(e)i®
FEAERABREZ20%852022F2 A28
HHE -

20205 | HAIMKBROERAAE

73



74

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

A The exercise period is from 24 May 2018 to 24 May 2021.
The vesting period is as follows: (a)
granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May 2018; (b) 33%
of the options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May

33% of the options

2019; (c) 34% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 May 2020.

© The exercise period is from 24 October 2018 to 24 October
(a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October

2025. The vesting period is as follows:

2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 October 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 24 October 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 24 October 2022.

The closing prices of the shares of the Company on 28
January 2016, 23 January 2017, 24 May 2017 and 25
October 2017 being the dates immediately before the
date of the Share Options were granted, were HK$1.99,
HK$2.28, HK$2.45 and HK$3.06 per share, respectively.

At the end of the Year, the Company had 92,400,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 92,400,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional issued capital of HK$924,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB777,638) and share
premium of HK$223,318,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB187,944,429) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of this annual report, the Company
had 92,400,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 10.23% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Connected transactions

During the Year, the Group has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions.
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Continuing connected transactions

Suchuang Group, as licensor, entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “#k
#l” and @ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a

nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

Suchuang Group further entered into a tenancy agreement
with the Group, pursuant to which Suchuang Group
agreed to lease from the Group an office premise of 2,164
square meters on 5th and 6th Floor, 116 Loujiang South
Road, Taicang City, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
for an annual rental of RMB346,500 (inclusive of tax and
management fee) for a period from 21 October 2019 to 20
October 2022. During the Year, the transaction amount
exclusive of VAT by Suchuang Group under the aforesaid
tenancy agreement amounted to RMB330,000.

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation Co.,
Ltd. entered into a vehicle leasing agreement with the
Group on 31 December 2018, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to lease from Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd. 10 vehicles for an annual fee of
RMB650,000 (inclusive of tax) for a period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Details of related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 41 to the financial statements.

Certain related party transactions set out in Note 41(b) to
the financial statements (loan repaid from Energette Capital
Corporation, rental income received from Suchuang Group
and purchase of goods from Suzhou Suling Automobile
Service), are regarded as exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Group and were exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements contained

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 31 March 2021, being the date of this

annual report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business

Except for the below, none of the Directors (other than the
independent non-executive Directors) are considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group.
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Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is principally engaged in
the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling stations, as
well as CNG and CNG refuelling stations and is controlled
by Ms. Su Yi, Ms. Su Wen and their associates. On 23
February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service and the
Company entered into a deed of first offer (the “Deed of
First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling Automobile
Service granted to the Company an irrevocable right
exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance matters
in relation to the CNG and LNG refuelling stations operated
by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service. The Deed of First
Offer was expired and the Company has not exercised its
right under the Deed of First Offer.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu
Holdings Limited has confirmed to the Company of his/
her/its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 23 February 2015. There has not been any opportunity
in any restricted business (being business which competes
or is likely to compete with the business of the Group from
time to time) being referred by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu
Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings Limited to the Company
during the Year. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition
have been complied with by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying
and Fung Yu Holdings Limited and duly enforced during the
Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company places great emphasis on its own environmental
and social performance by increasing its support on green
economy, low-carbon economy and recycling economy
and strictly controlling high-pollution and high-energy-
consumption. We have implemented policies and procedures
to ensure compliance of the regulatory requirements and our
production safety and environmental protection. Policies and
procedures are implemented to our employees, customers
and suppliers to enhance health and safety awareness during
production.
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For detailed information, please refer to the Environmental,
Social, Governance Report set out from pages 82 to 130 of
this annual report.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS FROM
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group upholds the highest standards of business ethics
that govern how we maintain our relationships with our key
stakeholders. We regularly engage and communicate with
our employees, customers and suppliers and provide rapid

and effective responses to address their needs and concerns.

Employees

Employees are considered to be one of the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The Group has always
adhered to the principle of “people first”. We emphasise
individual development of employees and understood
targets and requirements of employees in different stages of
career. We wish to give full play to the expertise of each
employees and explore the individual potential of employees
through setting appropriate positions and regular training
activities. In addition, we wish to provide employees with
a sound remuneration package system to offer guarantee
to employees in all aspects, thus achieving the target of
retaining employees and the final target of sustainable
development of the Group, and enabling employees to work
in a confident, happy and safe manner.

Customers

The Group endeavours to provide safe, reliable and
thoughtful services to fulfil our customers’ expectations
and cater to their needs. The Group has established a 24h
customer service call center to provide service information
for customers, and guarantee a quick response to customer
feedback. During the Year, the customer service center
received a total of 696 complaints mainly about the progress
of construction, equipment and other matters. All complaints
were handled in a timely manner and recorded properly.
The Group will regularly review previous complaints and
continuously make improvement. The Group observes and
respects all customer data privacy and intellectual property
rights by strictly complying with all relevant laws and
regulations.
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Suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with the suppliers is essential
to the Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing
business challenges and regulatory requirements. It can
achieve cost efficiency and promote long term commercial
benefits. For the gas pipeline construction and connection
business, the Group regularly updates our database of
approved suppliers and carries out performance reviews to
assess the quality of our suppliers’ services. For the sales of
natural gas business, the Group has been in good strategic
relation with our principal natural gas supplier for more
than 10 years. Such relation further safeguards the reliable,
stable and sufficient supply of natural gas.

COMPLIANCE STATUS WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE BUSINESS
During the Year, the Group received no reported cases
of non-compliance with applicable standards, laws
and regulations on the environment, labour standards,
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption, customer
privacy and intellectual property in China and Hong Kong.

RISKS AND PROSPECTS OF THE COMPANY

The principal risk and uncertainties facing the Company are
set out in the “Financial Overview” on pages 29 to 32 and
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
295 to 305. The future development of the Company’s
business is set out on pages 33 to 40 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares has been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 11 March 2015. Net proceeds
from the global offering (the “Global Offering”) received
by the Company were approximately RMB347.5 million
after deducting the underwriting commission and relevant
expenses. The net proceeds have been applied for the
purpose in accordance with the future plans and use of
proceeds as set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 27
February 2015 (the “Prospectus”). As at 31 December 2020,
the unutilised proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

FrIEREAE

ARAFRRDE2015F3 11 BRERRBRATE
RLE™ - EMBREHEAe REERS - AR
AINEIMRIRBE (2B E]) FEHRIEF
BARBARMKE347 588 - MEHRIBFE
BEREANAFBEA2015F2 A27 BB
ER(TBRER]) AERRETERFAER
ERZREANRBEAZ - 12020512 A31
B WARBAMEBRIEBEFERNEERPBEK
B O FERRERTT ©

As at 31 December 2020
#2020%12 A318

Percentage of Net Utilised Unutilised

Purpose total amount proceeds amount amount
bREHE ik E&H HAEA

i antt FEFE gt T8

RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREBET ARBEERL AREEHER

Acquiring and constructing CNG and ING ~ SHHEERBERAR/ 25% 86.9 71.7 15.2
refuelling stations for the sale of LNGUeEE RZ R AR
CNG/LNG for vehicular use AARRINGIR

Expanding our pipeline network and RERAMNEERER 35% 121.6 121.6 -
sale of piped natural gas to customers ARARETEEP
in our existing market HEEBAAR

Acquiring controlling interests in natural ~ WEAEMEINKAR 30% 104.2 104.2 -
gas operators outside Taicang EEAENERES

Working capital and other general LEESREM—RK 10% 34.8 34.8 -
corporate purposes ¥R

Total &zt 347.5 3323 15.2
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In relation to the unutilised net proceeds raised from
the Global Offering in an amount of approximately
RMB15.2 million (the “Unutilised Proceeds”) as at 31
December 2020, the Company intends to utilise all of the
Unutilised Proceeds for acquiring and constructing CNG
and LNG refuelling stations for the sale of CNG/LNG for
vehicular use. The Company originally intended to apply
the Unutilised Proceeds to acquire the CNG and LNG
refuelling station business operated by Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service Co., Ltd. (BRMNEZTERBERA
A]), details of which are set out in the Prospectus. The
relevant permits or approvals have not been granted for
the target business as a whole. The Company currently
intends to apply the Unutilised Proceeds as follows by
the end of 2021:

(i) approximately RMB6.0 million will be used to
construct a LNG refuelling station in Guangyuan,
Sichuan Province, the PRC; and

(ii) approximately RMB9.2 million will be used to construct
a LNG refuelling station at Taicang Port, a port located
in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Save for the aforesaid changes, there is no other change in
the use of proceeds from the Global Offering.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2021
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200 FERIE - tERER

Introduction

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or
“We”) are pleased to present the 2020 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Group (this “Report”). This
Report discloses the performance and results of the Group
in sustainable development over the past year, with the aim
of reflecting its performance in sustainable development in
an open, transparent, comprehensive and objective manner,
and enhancing the communication with stakeholders with
regard to environmental, social and governance issues,
thus continuously improving the policies, policies and
management systems of the Group.

Reporting Guide

This Report complies the mandatory disclosure
requirement and the “comply or explain” provisions of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Group’s corporate governance practice is
published in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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Reporting Principles

This Report has been prepared based on the reporting

principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “consistency” and

“balance”.

1. Materiality: The materiality of sustainable
development issues is identified and assessed through
communication with stakeholders, in consideration of
the nature and development of the Group’s business,
and the contents of this Report are determined based
on the results of the assessment.

2. Quantitative: Where practicable, the environmental
and social KPIs of the Group are disclosed in a

quantitative manner.

3. Consistency: Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
uses consistent statistical methods for meaningful

comparisons.

4. Balance: This Report impartially presents the
performance of the Group, without any undue
influence on the decisions or judgments of the report

users.
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2020 FERE - HERERRE

Reporting Scope

Based on the principle of materiality, this Report focuses on
the Group’s major businesses, including piped natural gas
sales and transmission businesses of Jiangsu Taicang Natural
Gas Company Limited (“Taicang Natural Gas”), and the
business of Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering Technology
Co., Ltd. TEBHEREIIERMBMRAF) (“Xinjiang
Dunhua”) owned as to 51% by the Group, in Kuga, Xinjiang.
The business, involving the capture, utilization, and storage
of carbon dioxide and nitrogen from industrial waste gases
generated by oil refineries, gas-fired power plants, chemical
fertilizer plants, etc., with self-owned technologies, was
officially put into operation in May 2020. The businesses
of the two companies accounted for a significant part of
the overall business of the Group and generated revenue
accounting for approximately 75% of the total revenue.
The scope of this Report is consistent with that of the 2019
annual report. We review regularly the scope of the report
to ensure the coverage over the portfolios that have a
significant impact on the overall business of the Group. The
information in this Report covers the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”), and
the performance data for 2019 are also included in this
Report for reference and comparison purposes.

Content and Data of the Report

The information and cases quoted in this Report are sourced
from relevant documents provided by departments of the
Group or from integrated statistics of operating data. This
Report was confirmed by the senior management of the
Group and was approved for publication by the board of
directors on 31 March 2021.
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Information and Feedback

This Report has been prepared in Chinese and English
for reference, and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. In case of any inconsistency
between the two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
The Group attaches great importance to the opinions of
all stakeholders and will make efforts to respond to their
opinions where practicable. We sincerely invite your
comments. If you have any questions or suggestions about
the contents of this Report or our sustainable development,
please share your valuable suggestions with us through the
following channels:

Hong Kong Address: 30th Floor, One Taikoo Place, 979
King’s Road, Hong Kong

Mainland 116 Loujiang South Road, Taicang,
Headquarters Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, 215400
Address:

Email: ir@taicanggas.com
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About Us

The Group is the dominant piped natural gas operator in
Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, China, with the exclusive
right to sell and transmit piped natural gas to users in the
Operating Area, representing over 70% of the total area
of Taicang City. In terms of length, the piped natural gas
network covers more than 90% of the natural gas pipeline
network in Taicang City.

We have expanded our piped natural gas business out
of Taicang City and established a long-term strategic
cooperation relationship with PetroChina Company
Limited (“PetroChina”), the principal natural gas supplier.
The customers of the Group mainly include wholesale
customers (namely local gas distributors) and industrial and

commercial users from the retail segment.

The Group has been committed to the development of the
clean energy of natural gas to support the construction
of a sustainable economy and living environment based
on green energy. It joined U.S. Green Building Council
(USGBC) as early as 2017. As a member of USGBC, the
Group publicizes the important role of green buildings
in environmental protection and constructs a sustainable

community, together with USGBC.
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Sustainability Policy

In the face of intensified climate change and the rise
of a low-carbon economy, the Group, as an enterprise
engaged in the clean energy business, plays an important
role in global energy transformation. We make efforts to
help promote a low-carbon future, support the national
development plans and policies of promoting the use of
clean energy. Meanwhile, we shoulder social responsibilities
and are committed to creating value for stakeholders and
the community where we operate.

We incorporate the sustainability policy and philosophy
into our daily operations, corporate management and
decision-making. We have been optimizing the management
system and information recording system for sustainable
development affairs. Persons in charge at all levels are
responsible for the implementation of relevant work, and
their relevant performance is included in the evaluation
indicators, in order to encourage them to make efforts to
perform their duties.

In addition, with the reliance of the public on public energy
supply, the safety and stability of the energy supply have
become crucial. The Group is mainly engaged in the natural
gas supply business. Our primary task is to maintain our
sustainability and ensure the safety and stability of gas
supply. We maintain a long-term cooperative relationship
with upstream natural gas suppliers to ensure the long-term
stability, reliability and adequacy of gas supply. Moreover,
we have formulated a strict internal code for gas supply
safety and provided relevant training for our employees. We
use information technology to collect, transmit and analyze
safety management and operation data, and strengthen
supervision, in order to improve safety and reduce risks, and
maintain our core competitiveness.
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In addition to maintaining a high standard of business
quality, we actively expand our business presence. There
is room for the increase in the demand for natural gas in
society, with national efforts to promote the optimization
of the energy mix, including “coal-to-gas” in the industrial
sector, “oil-to-gas” in the transportation industry, and
natural gas distributed energy. We seize the opportunities
arising out of national policies of economic development
and environmental protection, cater for the growing natural
gas market, and expand our business to the surrounding
areas of Taicang City. We make long-term development
arrangements to provide shareholders with sustained and
steady returns on investment. In addition to the operation of
CNG and LNG filling stations, in order to further invest in
the development of energy saving and emission reduction
technology, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest in
Xinjiang Dunhua in 2017. With the CCUS (Carbon Capture,
Utilization and Storage) technology of Xinjiang Dunhua,
we provide the community with purification and emission
reduction services by capturing, compressing and liquefying
carbon dioxide in industrial exhaust gas generated by oil
companies, and subsequently supplying and injecting it
into local heavy oil fields for carbon dioxide flooding and

storage.

Meanwhile, we cooperate with third-party enterprises to
promote the extensive use of clean energy. In July 2020,
Taicang Natural Gas and Taicang Port Group entered into
a strategic cooperation framework agreement with a term
of five years, for the purpose of jointly developing LNG
businesses, conducting LNG container businesses and
constructing natural gas container yards and LNG receiving

terminals in Taicang Port, Jiangsu Province.
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Risk Management

In order to effectively standardize the risk management of
the Group, we have formulated the Risk Management Policy,
which specifies the system and responsibilities of the risk
management organization. We take necessary preventive
measures in advance through the risk identification
procedures, to avoid risks, or supplementary measures
against existing risks, to minimize the losses caused by the
risks.

The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising the risk
management and internal supervision systems, promoting
the implementation and ensuring the effectiveness of the
systems, while the management of the Group communicates
closely with functional departments and is responsible
for risk control. Functional departments identify various
risks from the bottom up, comprehensively covering all
environmental, social and governance issues, including
human resources, environmental protection, operation
safety, laws and regulations, industrial policies, consumer
behavior, natural calamities and other factors, and analyze
the possibilities and potential impacts of the risks, and
finally prepare response plans for each item, based on the
analysis results and our tolerance, so as to effectively control
the potential risks. The Risk Management Committee of the
Group, which comprises the management of the Company,
summarizes the results of the risk analysis and submits the
results to the Audit Committee for review and to the Board

for approval.

Meanwhile, the management of the Group has formulated
various rules and regulations to provide specific guidance
and reference for relevant functional departments, so as
to ensure that work and business operation by employees
comply with requirements of relevant laws and regulations,
thus preventing legal risks.
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Stakeholder Communication and Engagement

The Group understands the active role of the opinions of
stakeholders in the formulation of our long-term business
strategies. Accordingly, we have always paid high attention
to the expectations and demands of all parties in relation
to environmental, social and governance issues, and
are committed to balancing the interests of all parties
and respond to their expectations. In order to effectively
understand the demands of our major stakeholders, we have
established various channels to maintain our communication
with stakeholders. We believe that effective communication
can contribute to establishing a good relationship of mutual
trust and benefit. We incorporate the expectations of

stakeholders into our decision-making and planning process.
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Materiality Assessment EEMME

We carry out materiality assessment every year to identify I fIEFETEE T HIAHBEEET S
material economic, environmental and social impacts in KEJAHE IRIBMESFE  BERARENRN
the value chain, ensure that this Report is in line with the ZAMFAEAREENERERMFHENGRE
business development of the Group and the expectations ANEBHMNFREOJIFERE TIENE
of stakeholders, and determine the scope and priority of B REX @ FEHEEARER - HBRBAT
sustainable development work as early as possible. Before R R R HEBNZEREZ N ¢

the preparation of this Report, we identify and evaluate

relevant issues and their materiality by taking the following

steps:
\
e We identify 20 issues that are most closely related to and have substantial impact
on the business of the Group, with reference to the Environmental, Social,
o and Governance Reporting Guide, industry characteristics and the results of past
Identification materiality assessment, and by industry benchmark analysis.
of Relevant . N e oL ey At L= L T S N
DO« ox i) GRS M BREARERS)  TEEERBEN BB T
ey THRTTRIBED - R H20BRARE LR IIRA E AL EORE -
% 4
\

o All stakeholders are invited to respond anonymously to our online questionnaire survey,
expressing their opinions on our sustainable development strategy and corresponding
Collection and work, and ranking the issues in order of materiality to them.
Integration

of Stakeholder IR BEESEMEUATTEN AR ERMRLAFLEEASES  ARANTHERE
Opinions RS MAAE TIEB R E R RIS BB ER M -

WEREES 4

Bo&E

=52 ~

e By analyzing the results of the questionnaire survey of our stakeholders, we sort
out the five most important sustainable development issues that need to be handled
Result and reported by the Group.
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According to the results of the online questionnaire
survey, the five major issues important to the sustainable
development of the Group include carbon emission and
energy, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
social risks in the supply chain, research and technology
development and anti-corruption. Materiality assessment
helps the Group to identify and prioritize its environmental,
social and governance issues, which helps us formulate
approaches to sustainable development in the future.
Meanwhile, we will continuously pay attention to the
demands of the market and stakeholders, adjust the
orientation and strategy of sustainable development
in a timely and targeted manner, so as to enhance our

competitiveness to meet new challenges.
Safe Operation

As natural gas is flammable and explosive, any carelessness
may result in serious accidents. In order to protect the safety
of our customers and employees, we identify potential safety
hazards during our operation, and carry out appropriate risk
management for relevant matters. With perfect engineering
design and operation rules, strict equipment and facility
maintenance systems and quality standards, we provide
customers with safe gas services, create a reliable working
environment for our employees, practically fulfill the
responsibilities as an entity responsible for safety, and give
full play to the leading role as a benchmark in the industry.
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Management System and Principle

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention
first”. The Group has formulated and implemented the
sound Safe Production Management System, which
standardizes the safe gas supply and provides rules for the
work of employees, and enables more effective supervision
and management. The safety production management covers
safe operation, patrol and inspection, explosion prevention
and fire prevention management systems, etc. The Group
has formulated a safety accident notification and handling
mechanism, so as to strengthen the corporate safety
responsibility and ensure the safety of users with a perfect
management system.

We firmly believe that only safe production can bring
the greatest benefits to an enterprise and its stakeholders.
We have always taken the “eight noes” as the safety
management objective, raised the employees’ safety
awareness, and formulated the responsibility system
for safe production. Our employees, including decision
makers, supervisors and implementers, have their respective
responsibilities in respect of safe production and play a role

of mutual supervision.
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For comprehensive achievements of the objective, disaster
prevention is the best method. We have tools including
safety management checklist and project quality control
checklist to enable front-line employees to more effectively
monitor high-risk sources, eliminate potential hazards
before accidents, prevent major accidents and ensure that
employees fully understand and perform their duties. In
addition, we adopt the “four noes” principle against any
safety accidents that have occurred, organize the analysis
of the accidents, put forward treatment opinions and
improvement measures, and supervise the implementation.
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Inspection, Repair and Monitoring

We continuously monitor, inspect and maintain equipment
to identify and alleviate potential hazards in a timely
manner. We will carry out at least one safety inspection
every two years for residential users and every year for non-
residential users such as commercial, industrial and heating

users.

At each gas terminal, qualified operators will check whether
the equipment is in normal condition and whether there
is leakage in the production area every day. Employees
on duty are required to carry out safety inspections and
maintenance according to the following guidelines, so as to
ensure the safety:

> The warehouse area, roads and access for firefighting
are kept unblocked and meet transportation,

evacuation and rescue requirements;

> Check whether the readings of flowmeters and the
pressure at the front and back of pressure regulators
are normal;

> Use portable instruments for laser remote detection
of methane to check whether there is leakage from

pressure regulators and pipelines;

> Check whether the odorant injection rate of odorizing
devices meets requirements, so as to ensure stable

gas supply and immediate detection of leakage;

> The facilities in areas with different levels of
explosion hazard have corresponding explosion-proof
performance;

> Check fire-fighting equipment, fire and power
supply sources, and lightning protection and anti-
static facilities regularly in accordance with national

standards to ensure that they are in normal condition;
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> Check whether maintenance tools and equipment are
sound and complete, under centralized management,

and ready for use;

> Maintain electrical equipment regularly, and carry
out replacement in a timely manner if it is found that
the insulation of equipment and lines deteriorates.

Moreover, the gas pipeline network and other distribution
facilities of the Group are managed and operated by
employees who have obtained the certification from
government authorities, so as to ensure that the natural
gas distribution and transmission stations and urban
pipeline network are maintained strictly and according to
standard. The pipelines are maintained at regular intervals
according to the requirements of the Technical Regulation
on Corrosion Control of Buried Gas Steel Pipelines in Cities
and Towns, with anticorrosion coating, cathodic protection
and interference protection tests of steel pipelines being
conducted to ensure that the gas supply system is stable
and reliable. We will also use advanced instruments and
equipment and monitoring technology, such as remote
methane detector, etc., to conduct regular inspections of
underground gas network to replace damaged or corroded
old pipelines in a timely manner, thus eliminating potential

hazards.

In addition, we have established a pipeline inspection
team led by professionals with gas business operation
qualification. The team will inspect the surrounding area of
the pipeline to identify any factors affecting the operation
of the pipeline as soon as possible. If any project is under
construction within the protection area of the gas pipeline,
the team will carry out safety monitoring on the site. The
pipeline inspection team will clearly record the findings of
the inspection and arrange treatment and repair as quickly

as possible.
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Supporting Equipment

We provide different safety equipment, including
warning signs, protective facilities, etc., according to
the characteristics and requirements of each operating
organization.

A natural gas terminal, is the point of access to urban gas,
mainly used to receive from the upstream part, the natural
gas, which is subject to dedusting, metering, odorization
and pressure stabilization, and delivered to the pipeline
network in cities, towns or industrial parks after the natural
gas pressure is adjusted to the level required by the urban
looped network of high-pressure gas or users. In addition
to the monitoring equipment required for operation, we
install security equipment such as sensors on the walls to
prevent wear and tear on gas supply equipment caused by
inadvertent human or animal intrusion. Crossing the wall
will trigger an alarm, which will be automatically notified
to the regulating and control center, so that employees on
duty can follow up and handle the matter immediately.
We will also conduct regular inspections and maintenance
to ensure the normal operation of the alarm system. In
addition, cameras have been installed in the terminal to
support the monitors and alarms of various monitoring
equipment installed in the duty room, so that the operators
in the monitoring station of the operation room can know
the general information and the operation in the production
area, which helps them know the accident effectively.
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In order to prevent major explosion accidents caused by gas
leakage and spark, combustible gas alarms and lightning
protection (electrostatic) devices have been installed in the
production area. All personnel are also required to wear
anti-static clothing and complete the antistatic procedures
before entering the natural gas terminal, so as to avoid
accidents caused by sparks. Safety instructions, and
instructions on the locations of hazards and escape routes
are also posted at a prominent position at the entrance
of the terminal, to enhance the safety awareness of all

employees and prevent accidents.
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In addition, the risk of gas leakage from the gas pipeline
network cannot be ignored. We make efforts to reduce the
possibility of gas leakage from the pipeline network. We
have equipped the gas pipeline system with a metering,
monitoring, control and data acquisition system. By
continuously monitoring the change of gas supply data, we
can identify the possibility of gas leakage from the pipeline
network. We use an infrared detector to detect the location
of pipeline damage and apply advanced technology to help

fixing the leak within the shortest time.
Occupational Safety and Training

We always put the health and safety of our employees
first. We provide our employees with adequate and
appropriate protective equipment and regularly check the
availability of equipment in accordance with the Labour
Protection Regulations of Jiangsu Province, the Management
Rules for Labour Protection Supplies of Employers and
other regulations. We also strictly monitor the use of the
equipment and require our employees to wear safety

helmets at work to ensure their safety.

In addition to providing sufficient hardware equipment,
we also provide safety education training and briefing
sessions for our employees to enhance their work safety
awareness and promote the safety culture in the workplace.
We communicate occupational safety information to our
employees through internal communication platforms, safety
drills and other channels. The new employees holding
special positions are required to obtain the operation
certificate of special operator and receive safety training
before taking up the post, so as to ensure that holders of the
certificate can perform their duties safely and properly.
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Emergency Plan

As gas supply is a high-risk business, we pay great attention
to safety. We should make preparation in advance to
deal with unexpected accidents. Accordingly, we have
formulated the Emergency Plan for Safety Accidents, which
is amended every two years as necessary and filed with
government authorities. We have formulated responsive
measures for potential accidents, such as terrorist attacks
and gas leakage accidents, so that employees have rules to
follow in an emergency. In order to improve our ability to
respond to different accidents, we arrange at least one safety
drills for our staff every year, and will also conduct joint
drills with local governments and other companies to learn
from each other and continuously improve systems and

measures.

Explosion arising out of gas leak may lead to a serious chain
reaction, affecting the gas supply to users and even causing
casualties and property losses. In order to handle abnormal
situation as early as possible and prevent a broader crisis,
the Group implements two-level management, with daily
operation monitoring of natural gas terminals, and 24-
hour monitoring of the operation of natural gas terminals,
regulator stations and pipelines by the regulating and control
center. We monitor various parameters of the operation
of the gas supply system in a real time manner, including
temperature, flow, pressure, etc. Once the data exceeds the
upper and lower limits for normal operation, the system will
automatically send an alarm to notify the on-duty employees
of the faulty equipment and its value, so as to instruct the
engineering and technical personnel to immediately follow
up and deal with the case, which enables prompt response
to the emergency and resumption of normal service.
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Drill on a Gas Leak Accident in the Community

HEMRRIRIBEIRR

In the event of any public accident, we will fully support
relevant authorities in managing the aftermath and
investigating the cause and responsibility. We will take
improvement measures against the cause of accident, and
enhance the publicity on gas safety to prevent similar
accidents according to the objective situations reported by
the media.

Response to the Outbreak

In the face of the sudden outbreak of COVID-19, we
actively responded to various deployment requirements
of the government. However, as gas services are related
to every household, we should maintain a steady supply
of gas. Therefore, we have implemented a series of
emergency measures to ensure the normal operation of
our business and safeguard the livelihood of the people.
We prepare a considerate duty roster to ensure the smooth
implementation of the work in all processes, and maintain a
24-hour customer service hotline. Although in-house safety
inspection, meter installation, natural gas connection and
other work are suspended to protect the health and safety of
our customers during the period of serious outbreak, once
receiving a call for help from a customer, we will make
efforts to help the customer even though he is in quarantine,

and our employees will take all protective measures and
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wear safety equipment to identify the potential hazard
indoors. We also share with our employee, relevant
government policies and documents, prevention and control
knowledge, and educate them about the use of protective
equipment and appliances and notes from time to time, and
update them on the outbreak immediately. We arrange for
personnel to disinfect all departments, outlets and terminals
every day, require and supervise the employees on duty
to wear masks, take the temperature of the employees on
duty every day before their entry into the workplace, and
provide hand sanitizers and disinfectants in all toilets and
tissue paper in elevators to raise the awareness of epidemic

prevention.

After the outbreak was under control, we fully resumed
the in-house safety inspection of piped gas. When entering
the premises of the workplace, the safety inspectors have
their body temperature measured and registered. They
should wear masks during work and take relevant protective
measures before entering the house, so as to reassure the

citizen.
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Compliant Production

The Group complies with applicable laws and regulations
in relation to gas franchise rights and safe production in
the place where it operates, including but not limited to
the Urban Gas Management Regulations, the Measures for
Management of Franchises for Municipal Public Utilities,
Jiangsu Gas Management Regulations, the Measures of
Jiangsu for Management of Piped Gas Franchises, the
Measures of Suzhou on the Administration of Gas, the
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China. By reference to relevant government laws
and regulations, industry standards and practices and safety
requirements, we have formulated internal safety guidelines
and measures which will be regularly reviewed and
updated. During the Reporting Period, we were not aware
of any major accidents of the Group related to occupational
safety or subject to any major administrative sanction or
punishment due to violation of any safety production laws

or regulations.
Service to the Public

The Group makes efforts to maintain the safety of the
gas supply system and network, and diligently provides
customers with high-quality services, and stable and reliable
natural gas, so as to reward the customers with the best

products and services for their long-term support.
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Stable Gas Supply

We have formulated a sound quality management
system, and have obtained the international certification
of 1SO9001:2015 quality management system, and
continuously improved the service quality and stabilize the
gas supply to safeguard the livelihood of the people, with
standard and standardized management.

In addition to the problem of aging of ordinary equipment
and pipelines, the gas pipeline network is subject to the
impact of seasonal changes. High air temperature and less
gas consumption in summer result in greater pressure on
the pipeline. The frequent occurrence of natural disasters
such as thunder, lightning, rainstorm and typhoon in
summer is likely to result in safety accidents. Sustained
low temperatures and snowfall in winter may affect the
operation of gas equipment. Once the equipment freezes,
the water pump will not work, possibly rendering the
interruption of the gas supply system. Accordingly, we take
appropriate preventive measures in different seasons and
different weather conditions.

Summer

BEZ

e Reinforce structures during the rainy season J
to protect covered outdoor channels
NENEBEY  REBENPINEE

e Check and clean drains before and after J
heavy rains to prevent water logging
RMABRRENMBEHEKE  RE?2
o hEKR

e Give reminders to employees working

FER]

outdoors and focus on heatstroke .
prevention in key facilities
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Winter
R=E

Wrap pipelines in insulation cotton, etc., to
prevent failure caused by low temperature
REBRLFRBRS  PIHEREHRHE
Enhance anti-freezing measures for pressure
regulators, metering equipment and other
equipment susceptible to freezing
YRR  FIEREBEDZRKEINRD
R
Increase the frequency of night inspections
in the terminal, to ensure normal gas supply
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2020 ERIE - 4+ ERERBRE

Service Undertakings

The Group undertakes to provide gas users with excellent
products and services. All of our natural gas suppliers
are state-owned enterprises with strict quality control
requirements to ensure the compliant quality of gas. The
suppliers will also regularly submit gas inspection reports
to demonstrate the reliability of the product with objective
analysis results. In addition to focusing on the quality
of the gas, in order to prevent accidental interruption of
gas supply, we have various backup systems. The use of
newly-introduced pipelines of specific specifications is
subject to the issue of certificates by relevant government
authorities and acceptance inspection. In addition, the
safety management of user terminals is also very important.
We will carry out a special physical inspection for hazards
in the use of gas by users, and handle the matters or
put forward rectification suggestions depending on the
circumstances. We provide free maintenance services
for residential users and will immediately arrange for
the maintenance department to follow up any problems
or potential hazards found, and provide services for
non-residential users, including maintenance in the first
year after use, thus ensuring that the natural gas pipelines
are in good condition, and reassuring the customers in use.
We will also teach our customers how to use natural gas
properly to avoid accidents caused by misoperation. When
making gas equipment and related pipelines available for
use by our customers, we will also provide a Gas Supply
Service Guideline, which specifies relevant notes on the
use of gas, such as safety codes and methods for immediate
treatment of suspected leak of natural gas.
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We will also conduct gas safety training in the premises
of our corporate customers to enhance their awareness of
the safe use of gas, which is conducive to improving their
management of safe use of gas. We play an active role
in effectively performing the corporate responsibilities as
an entity responsible for gas safety and strictly preventing
gas accidents, by providing explanations covering the
basic knowledge of natural gas, the establishment and
improvement of the system of safe use of gas, notes on
the safe use of natural gas, etc., and describing how to
effectively prevent safety accidents in the use of natural gas
as well as the positive and effective measures which should

be taken after a gas accident, etc.
Safe Production Month

In addition, in order to further promote the safe and
stable operation of the gas industry, Taicang Natural Gas
proactively carries out activities in the community. In
June, Taicang Natural Gas carried out the “Safe Production
Month”, with the aim of firmly developing the philosophy of
safe development to prevent major risks, eliminate potential
safety hazards in a timely manner and avoid production
safety accidents. We carried out the “Gas Safety in
Community” in the community, distributing to the citizens,
natural gas supply handbooks and gifts showing common
knowledge of safe use of gas, so as to vividly convey
the safety philosophy to the residents in the community.
During the activity, we actively increased the participation
rate of the residents and encouraged them to learn safety
knowledge, by answering questions on the spot and
conducting safety inspections of suspected gas leaks in their
homes free of charge.
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2020 FERE - HERERRE

In addition to publicity in the community, we conducted
a comprehensive random inspection of potential safety
hazards for industrial users. Relevant persons in charge of
enterprises and the activity team members inspected natural
gas pipelines, regulator cabinets and gas equipment in the
factory. During the inspection, the workers used professional
detectors to check whether there was any gas leakage from
gas facilities, and publicized the general knowledge of gas
safety. Finally, the team members visited large commercial
plazas and distributed safety publicity materials to improve
the safety awareness, legal awareness and emergency
response ability of commercial users, thus further promoting
the safe and stable operation of the gas industry.
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Customer Relationship

In order to keep close communication and contact
with customers, understand and satisfy their needs,
we have different communication channels, including
WeChat official account, customer service center and
telephone follow-up. Only by gaining the trust and
support of customers can we achieve long-term and stable
development. We continuously improve our customer
service system and optimize our service process, so as to
enhance the customer experience. In recent years, we have
actively developed and used intelligent gas meters which
enable new residents to monitor the gas consumption
through their smart phones in a real time manner, thus
saving their time and providing convenience for them.
Through our WeChat official account, we also provide
inquiry and top-up services, and send gas safety knowledge
and announcements from time to time, so as to capitalize on
the benefits of the Internet to provide the most comfortable
experience for our customers.

We have the customer service center and 24-hour
maintenance hotline, responsible for providing customers
with service information and emergency assistance to
ensures timely response to and handle customer feedback.
During the Reporting Period, our customer service center
and online platform received a total of approximately 696
complaints, all of which were handled in due course,
properly recorded and followed up. After the completion of
door-to-door inspection and repair services, we will make
a follow-up call, which serves as a basis for improving our
service quality. Meanwhile, the employees of the customer
service center will regularly receive our training in product
knowledge, service and complaint handling, so that the
employees have sufficient knowledge and skills to answer

customer enquiries.
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Customer Information and Privacy

The Group is aware of customers’ concerns about personal
privacy and information security and has always had as
its mission the protection of their privacy. In accordance
with the Archives Law of the People’s Republic of China,
we have formulated the rules on internal confidentiality
management, classified information according to the
degree of confidentiality and formulated corresponding
confidentiality measures, and strictly prohibited employees
from improper access to and use of confidential information.
Before taking up their jobs, new employees are also required
to receive relevant training to understand how to properly
handle confidential and sensitive information of customers
and the Group, so as to ensure that our operations comply
with relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, we were not aware of any infringement by us of

customer privacy.
Advertisement Marketing

We proactively promote the use of natural gas and relevant
safety knowledge among the public through different
channels, such as promotional activities, advertisements
in newspapers and media, etc., so as to enhance their
alertness. Providing customers with correct and detailed
safety information and product labels is our extended
responsibility for the safety of our products and services. All
advertising publications, product labels and business-related
information of the Group are subject to the approval of the
management of the Group, and can be published only when
there is assurance that the information contained therein is
correct. During the Reporting Period, we did not recall any
product as a result of safety and health problems, and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Group did not receive
any complaints in relation to advertisement and labels
inconsistent with health and safety requirements, products
and services.
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Creation of Green Value

In the face of the development of a low-carbon economy
in the world, as a clean energy service provider, we play
an important role and make efforts to support China in
implementing the goal of reducing the carbon emission
intensity and vigorously promote the use of natural gas.
During the Reporting Period, we continued to assist large
industrial coal consumers in responding to the policies and
regulations of the government, and promoted the “coal
to gas” transformation and upgrade project to reduce the
emission of air pollutants and greenhouse gases, so as to
protect the environment.

In 2020, the business of Xinjiang Dunhua in Kuga City
was officially put into operation. This integrated gas
project for energy-saving and environmental protection is
the first environmental protection project for investment
promotion in Kuga City as well as a key energy-saving and
environmental protection project in the development zone.
In the technological process of the project, the raw materials
are mainly the exhaust gas from Sinopec Tahe Refinery (1
FALIEBIABRE), which are recycled, analyzed, compressed,
dried, refrigerated and liquefied for canning, and the liquid
carbon dioxide is transported to the downstream oilfield
for oil production by injection into wells to reduce the
viscosity of heavy oil and improve the recovery rate. In
terms of process design, the excess low-temperature heat of
the refinery is fully used as the heat source to achieve the
recycling of heat energy and the near-zero emission of waste
gas. It is expected that more than 90,000 tons of carbon
dioxide can be recycled every year. As the double-tower
recycling technology is used for the project, the recycling
efficiency is more energy-saving and environmentally
friendly, providing technical support for defending the blue
sky.
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Our natural gas sales and transmission businesses are
mainly urban underground pipeline projects, which do
not cause any material burden or adverse impact on the
environment. In pipeline cleaning, as the amount of natural
gas left in the pipeline is small, the emission of such natural
gas will not have a significant impact on the surrounding
environment. Major environmental protection laws and
regulations in relation to the operation of the Group include
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste. During the Reporting Period, we were not aware
of any major administrative sanction or punishment to
which we are subject due to violation of any environmental
protection laws or regulations.

Use of Resources and Emission

The air and greenhouse gas emissions in our daily operations
mainly arise from indirect emissions from purchased
electricity and direct emissions from the consumption
of fuels such as diesel oil and compressed natural gas
by vehicles. We actively promote the low-carbon,
environmentally-friendly and green office philosophy, and
save resources in daily operation, and take the following

green, low-carbon and energy saving measures:
Energy-saving and Emission Reduction

> Make use of natural light and wind to reduce the use

of air-conditioners and lights;
> Purchase energy-saving and environmentally-friendly

lights electrical appliances and office equipment with

priority;
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Keep the indoor air-conditioning temperature at 25°C

in summer and 18°C in winter;

Activate the setting to turn off the air-conditioners
automatically after working hours, and turn off the

air-conditioners on holidays;

Install auto-induction lights in some offices;

Post a reminder to turn off electronic devices and

equipment when leaving a room;

Use electric vehicles and vehicles powered by

compressed natural gas to reduce air pollution;

Maintain the level of brightness of computer screens
at 75 % or less and activate the setting to turn off
computer displays automatically when the computers
are not in use for 10 minutes.

Water Saving

>

Post a slogan or notice to remind employees to turn
off the tap when finished, so as to avoid waste of

water;
Use water-saving faucet facilities with low flow;

Conduct daily inspection of water supply facilities
and pipelines, and carry out a repair when any
problem is found to reduce waste of water caused by

leakage.
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Paper Consumption Reduction

> Use online platforms, promote paperless office

approvals, and reduce the use of office supplies;

> Provide collection boxes in the office to collect and
reuse single-sided paper;

> Encourage employees to use handkerchiefs and water
glasses to reduce the use of paper towels and paper
cups.

Reuse and Recycling

> Provide recycling bins to collect waste rechargeable

battery, which can reduce environmental pollution;

> Engage recyclers to collect scrap paper regularly,

which can be used for producing recycled paper;

> Choose replaceable stationeries, and reuse envelopes,

loose-leaf binders, paper bags, etc.
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Waste and Sewage Management

Due to the nature of our business, the Group will not
generate significant hazardous wastes or use a large
number of packing materials. The solid wastes generated
by us can be divided into domestic waste and industrial
waste. After collection, daily waste generated in our offices
and employee dormitories will be delivered to the urban
environmental health department for centralized treatment.
In addition, scrap iron from steel pipes and dust may
accumulate in the long-distance natural gas transportation
pipeline network after long-term use, so we will clean
pipelines from time to time and deliver non-hazardous
waste generated to a third party for treatment.

The Group does not generate industrial sewage. The
domestic sewage discharged by the Group into municipal
sewage pipelines will be treated centrally by the local
sewage treatment plant and will not adversely affect the
environment. We also do not generate industrial water
consumption. As the water for our daily use is supplied
through municipal pipelines, we do not have any difficulties

in sourcing water.
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Indicator Unit
BE 2020 2019° Efr
Total greenhouse gas emissions ' 7,187.5 1,187.8 tCO2e
BEREBHNAEE W —SE(CHEE
Direct emissions (scope 1) 268.8 310.9 tCO2e
B (8E1) WE—SE(CREE
Indirect emissions (scope 2)° 7,807.6 1,759.7 tCO2e
P (BE2)S M —RLIREE
Indirect emissions (scope 3)* 15.0 21.1 tCO2e
R (8BE3)? ME—ALREE
Greenhouse gas removals (scope 1) 903.9 903.9 tCO2e
BERERERE (BEN) W—ALIKEE
Greenhouse gas emission intensity 39.7 6.6 Kg CO2e per square meter
BEREBMEE DF—SILIREE FIK
Nitrogen oxides (NO,)” 555.5 706.8 Kg
AE(LH(NO,Y AF
Sulphur oxides (SO,)” 1.3 1.7 Kg
mELW (SO, NIy
Particulate matter (PM)” 50.9 65.2 Kg
FERLY) (PM) NIy
Total energy consumption* 9,778.7 3,259.8 Megawatt hour
BB RS TET ELB
Electricity purchased 8,788.8 2,178.1 Megawatt hour
BEEE THE T LB
Diesel oil 88.2 56.9 Megawatt hour
SH THE T FLBs
Unleaded petrol 706.1 982.4 Megawatt hour
3 UH TET RS
Compressed natural gas 195.6 42.4 Megawatt hour
BERAR FEFFLi
Energy consumption intensity 54.0 18.0 Kilowatt hour per square meter
RERRREEE TRE FIK
Total water consumption 110,038.0 72,016.0 Cubic meter
mrEKE 7K
Water consumption intensity 0.6 0.4 Cubic meter per square meter
RACHRETRE MK IR
Total non-hazardous waste produced 2.1 0.8 Tonne
Non-hazardous waste intensity 11.6 4.4 g per square meter
BEEBRRVEE 5,/ FAK
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Our disclosure in relation to air and greenhouse gas
emissions has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of “How to Prepare an ESG Report” published
by the Stock Exchange and the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition)
published by the World Resources Institute (WRI) and
the World Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD).

Greenhouse gas emission data are presented in CO2
equivalent. Scope 1 direct emissions are greenhouse gas
emissions from businesses directly controlled or managed by
the Group. Scope 2 indirect emissions are emissions from
consumption of indirect (purchased or acquired) electricity
by the Group.

Scope 3 emission data include greenhouse gas emissions
from business air travel of employees, calculated by the
Carbon Emissions Calculator of International Civil Aviation
Organization, a United Nations agency.

Total energy consumption data includes the use of
purchased electricity and other fuel, and relevant conversion
factors are calculated by reference to the Technical Note:
Conversion of fuel data to MWh published by CDP.

The scope 2 (indirect emissions) data for 2019 are
recalculated with reference to the emission factor for
purchased electricity in mainland China newly included in
“How to Prepare an ESG Report” published by the Stock
Exchange.

Water consumption, electricity consumption and related
greenhouse gas emissions have increased as Xinjiang
Dunhua put into operation in 2020.

Under the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the vehicle
usage dropped in 2020, resulting in a reduction in related
air emissions.
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2020 ERIE - 4+ ERERBRE

Supplier Management

Our business mainly depends on the provision of natural
gas by suppliers to us, and subsequent delivery to
workplaces or residences of customers. We are convinced
that maintaining a good and long-term cooperative
relationship with suppliers is conducive to improving the
stability of gas supply, excellent product quality and safe
and reliable service quality, and helps seize opportunities
more effectively and quickly, and enables us to cooperate
with suppliers in developing business and promoting social
and environmental development. In order to make suppliers
clearly understand our requirements for business partners,
we have formulated the Social Responsibility and Business
Ethics Agreement, which is required to be signed by
suppliers and covers environmental protection, occupational
health and safety, moral behavior, etc. We expect to
reduce the environmental impact of the use of resources by
requiring our suppliers to comply with environmental laws

and regulations in relation to business operations.

We have signed a long-term cooperation agreement with
upstream gas suppliers, with the aim of maintaining a
stable gas supply in the market environment with increasing
demand. PetroChina is our main gas supplier who has
established a strategic cooperation relationship with the
Group for more than ten years. In addition, we have
received natural gas from Sinopec Sichuan to Eastern China
Gas Transmission Pipeline Co., Ltd. since 2015, which has
enhanced our capacity to supply gas to end users.

In addition to natural gas suppliers, we have service
providers, machinery equipment and raw material suppliers
for our gas pipeline construction and connection business.
Our raw materials are mainly gas pipes and fittings, such
as PE pipe, steel pipe, valve and pipe connectors. As at
31 December 2020, we had 39 suppliers, all of which are
located in China.
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We carefully review all of our suppliers, and will
carry out physical inspections of the manufacturers of
important equipment to understand their production and
commissioning processes. Different audit processes will be
adopted for new and existing suppliers to ensure the quality
and safety standards of purchased materials. With regard
to new suppliers, we will visit and inspect the production
site. We will purchase materials from new suppliers only
after new suppliers pass our review. We will also evaluate
existing suppliers regularly, including qualification review,
product quality, process and internal management, and site
environment. If any problems are found, we will include
the suppliers in the watch list and communicate with them,
require them to carry out improvement. We will terminate
the cooperation with the suppliers who violate national laws
and regulations or fail to perform their obligations under
contracts.

In addition, we will cooperate with project contractors
in gas pipeline construction and installation projects.
Before confirming the cooperative relationships, we will
review the contractors, including understanding its past
safety compliance records and business cases, and carry
out bidding management for significant projects. Daily
maintenance and urgent repair are carried out by a selected
third-party project team, which is on standby around the
clock, so as to ensure gas safety in an emergency. We hope
to promote the development of a responsible supply chain
and provide quality products and services for society, with

our influence and current management methods.
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2020 FERE - HERERRE

Work Team

Employees are the most important assets of an enterprise.
We pay attention to our relationship with employees,
actively provide them with a comfortable working
environment, a friendly, equal and inclusive atmosphere,
competitive returns, training and career development
opportunities, so as to improve their practical knowledge
and professional skills and become their indispensable
accompanier in their careers.

In order to ensure that our employees understand relevant
regulations and support our continuous compliant operation,
we have formulated the Human Resources Management
Policy and the Employee Handbook, which detail our
human resources management methods. The Group adopts
a zero-tolerance attitude towards the use of child and
forced labour. In order to avoid the employment of child
and forced labour by mistake, all labor contracts are signed
by employees on a voluntary basis. During the recruitment
process, identity documents and ages of employees will be

carefully verified to exclude underage workers.

During the Reporting Period, we were not subject to major
administrative sanctions or penalties due to violation of laws
and regulations on employment, including but not limited
to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour and the
Labour Contract Regulation of Jiangsu Province.
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Recruitment

We hope to create a fair working environment and
provide our existing employees and candidates with equal
opportunities. We disallow any form of discrimination.
Under the principle of fairness, impartiality and meritocracy,
we recruit employees through various channels including
WeChat official account. We attach importance to
the diversity of our team, and provide treatment and
opportunities for employees or candidates regardless
of factors irrelevant to their working competence and
qualifications, including age, gender, skin color, race,
nationality, religious belief, sexual orientation and family
status. In terms of human resources management, including
recruitment, salary and benefits, promotion, transfer, training
and dismissal, we respect human rights and provide equal
opportunities. We strictly comply with laws and policies on
employment, and strive to develop into an enterprise that
gives its employees a sense of belonging and pride.

2020 FERE - HERERRE
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By Gender
RS
300
241 254
200
100
58 61
Male & Female %

2019 M 2020

Number of Employees by Employee Category

REREERE D

300
250
200
150
100

50
14 12 2717

I
Senior management Middle management
BRERE hRERE

2019 B 2020

The employee turnover rate and the training data for 2019 ¢
are recalculated with reference to the social KPIs specified

in How to Prepare an ESG Report published by the Stock
Exchange. Moreover, during 2019 and the Reporting Period,

all our employees were full-time employees working in
mainland China.
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Employee Turnover Rate* ETRKLLREE

By Gender (%)
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2020 FERE - HERERRE

Remuneration and Benefits

As a responsible employer, we undertake to provide our
employees with competitive remuneration and benefits to
attract and retain talents. Remunerations of our Chinese full-
time employees mainly include basic salary, duty salary,
performance salary, seniority pay, duty allowance and other
allowances. Eligible employees are entitled to benefits
including marriage leave, maternity leave, funeral leave and
breastfeeding leave. We adopt a work performance-linked
remuneration system, under which we regularly carry out
performance appraisal of employees, and give additional
rewards to outstanding employees for recognition of their
work performance, with the hope that they can continue to
make efforts to contribute to the sustainable development of
the Group. We will collect the opinions and expectations of
our employees on the Group through regular performance
appraisal. The Group regularly reviews and adjusts the
remuneration and benefits for each position, so as to ensure

market competitive remuneration and benefits.

In addition to providing employees with benefits specified
by laws, such as social security and paid annual leave, we
provide the following additional benefits:

> Birthday cake vouchers for employees;

> Festival bonus for employees on Women’s Day;

> Mooncake gift sets on Mid-Autumn Festival;

> Living allowances for employees who receive training

in other regions;

> Allowance for employees working in a desert area of
Xinjiang;
> Activities such as annual gala to promote

communication between the Group and employees
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Talent Training

We understand that training outstanding talents is one of
correct investments of an enterprise, which can strengthen
its competitiveness and more importantly promote the
personal growth of employees. Therefore, we have
formulated the Employee Training Policy, which specifies
the responsible departments and responsibilities. We
invest resources to support employees in improving their
professional knowledge and professional quality, so as to
ensure that our technicians and other employees keep up
with the times. As the gas business is highly professional,
we provide internal and external training for our employees,
as well as targeted training based on the actual needs of
different departments and functions. The training is mainly
classified into three major categories: pre-job training,
on-the-job training and professional training, such as
orientation training for new employees, safety training
and other training for special positions. With regard to
the gas technology business of Xinjiang Dunhua, we also
conduct different training to ensure that all employees
have the knowledge and skills required for daily operation.
The following table sets forth statistical data in relation to
training provided for employees during the Reporting Period.

2020 FERIE - £ EREARRE
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Statistics of Employee Training®" 2020 2019
STEIIGE 20205 20194
Total training hours 2,571 4,168
#0151 P

Average training hours per person 7.3 13.9
T8 A I B

Percentage of employees trained 67% 87%

XilEEA DL
Average training hours and percentage of employees trained by gender

BHERNE DN FORISHLZIEEBD L

Male 7.8 (79%) 16.4 (80%)
%

Female 5.4 (21%) 3.8 (20%)
L2

Average training hours and percentage of employees trained by employee category
ZREEBENI SN TEZIIRBELRZIEEBS L

Senior management 5.8 (4%) 3.2 (3%)
RAREEE

Middle management 11.8 (9%) 6.6 (9%)
hREERE

General and technical employees 7.1 (87%) 15.3 (88%)
—REEMAR

" including separated employees. " BRECBERETL -
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Operations with Honesty

We believe that the success of the Group depends on good
governance with honesty. We have formulated the Anti-
Fraud Management Rules, which specifies fraud prevention
measures, fraud investigation and reporting guidelines,
etc. We strictly prohibit our employees and partners from
offering or demanding illegal benefits in any business
activities, including corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering in any form. Meanwhile, we encourage
employees and stakeholders to pay attention to and report
any violation and misconduct. We also make effort to keep
confidential, the identity information of the whistleblower
and the information received. In addition, we provide our
employees with training from time to time to promote the
philosophies of honesty and integrity. We are committed
to complying with relevant laws and regulations including
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China. During the Reporting Period, the Group and
its employees were not involved in cases, complaints or
punishment in relation to corruption, bribery or other

misconducts.

2020 FERIE - £ EREARRE

BIEKE

HZPHBEASRENKRIERRIEINHEE
Ao RMEHIE(RZEEEERTE) ARE
EO S - SR RERESIF
HPEEREE MNAERHEEMNERES L
RESIRDAEND > BREMEANE
5 R HMEFRAREFTR
FEEE TMFNERILBRERLKE
175 BPITRROAR B RA LK R B RHR
7o Rz BPIENEMAE TRHEE
Al ERERENIED  BAOET(PE
ARKFBERE) MR EARKME R T
EHFR)FHEBMEIER - EHREHME
N AEELREEBTYESNBEHEES &
MR EMNEITRRRMSE - WAFHED °

20205F4F 3R | HAIMERODERAE

127



128

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2020

2020 FERE - HERERRE

Giving Back to the Community

With our continuous development, we have never forgotten
to industriously give back to society. We actively devote
ourselves to public welfare undertakings and perform
corporate social responsibility. We capitalize on our
professional knowledge and platform resources, and focus
on community construction and education.

In order to strengthen the warnings and education on urban
gas safety, we worked with Taicang Gas Management
Service Center (KEMMAEEREH L), Suzhou
PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Co., Ltd. (B&/MNF A
HEmEEIMA AR AR and Yangsha community in
carrying out the social practice activity of “Visit Natural Gas
Companies” for children. On that day, we led approximately
30 primary school students from Yangsha community to visit
the working area in which we explained the functions of
natural gas pipeline facilities and terminals.

After visiting the terminal, the students came to the office
building, where we gave them safety manuals, exquisite
notebooks and sweets, as well as a vivid publicity lecture
for gas safety. For the publicity lecture, we specially made
animated slides that students like. Through such form,

we introduced gas facilities, their correct use, emergency
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measures against gas leakage and other knowledge. The
students listened carefully and spoke actively. The activity
ended on a pleasant note. We know that the publicity on
the safe use of gas should cover children, so as to develop
their good safety awareness from an early age, strengthen
their self-protection and prevention awareness, and make
them the assistants of their parents in terms of safety.

2020 FERE - HERERRE
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2020 FERE - HERERRE

Moreover, the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 swept across
the country. In the fight against COVID-19, we still actively
followed the spirit of keeping watch and helping each other.
During the serious outbreak in February when there was a
shortage of epidemic prevention materials all over China,
we purchased masks from various sources at home and
abroad, and donated a total of 10,000 N95 masks in two
batches to Taicang municipal government, so as to meet the
urgent needs and make contributions to the fight against the
outbreak in China.
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Independent auditor’s report

B R BETRE

/ Ernst & Young RKEFRIE  TelE5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower ~ FEFHRAFEIHR FaxfFH: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue RIERE2212 ey.com
Ei Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited BHAMRRKROBERDBRR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 141 to 307,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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BYZBERE

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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BB R S

RREZSR (&)

Key audit matter

BEELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERRNMNEERRELEE

Expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract assets

JENE SRR E REEREEERE

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
expected credit loss of trade receivables and
contract assets. The provision rates are based on
the ageing for groupings of various customers with
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group’s historical observed default
rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. A considerable amount of
judgement and estimation is required in assessing
the realisation of those receivables, including
the creditworthiness, past collection history and
forward-looking information of the groupings of
various customers.
EREFEARBEREREAERKEZRARAREEN
BHEERE - BEXNERAEBRUBEERANZS
EEFHENNKRKETE - BERERTER BEXE
MABRELENE - EREMIZERELEERNA
ENBEEEERERAMNZER - FFEZF UK
HENER AR B ELABHEG LG BEZAEAR
FHARMNEE - BEEWGCEEKATEEER -

The carrying value of trade receivables and contract
assets were RMB157,778,000 and RMB9,208,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2020. The
expected credit loss provision of RMB6,817,000
was provided for trade receivables and contract
assets. The provision for expected credit loss of
trade receivables and contract assets is considered
as a key audit matter due to the materiality of trade
receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the high level of
management judgement and estimation involved.

R2020%F12A31H - BREEBESEFIRAREE
MEREED I AARKI57,778,000 T R ARK
9,208,0007T - B EZEARAREENEHEE
BRZEBERARKE,817,0007T - BKE SRR K
EREENTAHNGEEERZBARRABRERS
B DHRERE SRR LA REEHGRe M B®REK
MEEFEE B NERENSEHE MG -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
discussing with management on the estimation
involved in determining the amount of expected
credit loss allowance regarding to the trade
receivables and contract assets and assessing the
management’s processes and controls relating to the
estimation of the expected credit loss allowance.
BEENEZETER (AT R BEEEIRINE
RELESERNAREERMEEERREBESEN
BEE - ARFEEEEEBANEREERBREGTHRA
MR R ERTE -

We tested the model of provision matrix prepared
by the management to calculate the expected credit
loss and checked the information included in the
provision matrix which was based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates.
evaluate the appropriateness of these judgements,
we verified whether the ageing analysis for

In order to

groupings of various customers which had similar
loss patterns, historical payment patterns and
whether historical loss data were complete and
accurate.
BEECAREEERAEUGTERMEREERNOBER
TiEER BREABEELEQRNBEERAN
HEM - BFHEZFHENREN  BEFEREHA
BRUBERN  BENFEARELBREENS
Bz F AR AR DT =5 TR -
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Key audit matters (Continued)

RREZSR (&)

Key audit matter (Continued)

RAREEREE (H)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
EEETERRNMEEBRRERSEE (H)

Expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BUESHRIRE FEERREEER (&)

Related disclosures are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates”, note 24
“Trade receivables” and note 25 “Contract assets”
to the consolidated financial statements.
HAREEHHEN GRS BERERMT2.4T 2 REER
B W3 EEGa I RAEa] - 24T RKE
SRR RMF25[6REE] -

We reviewed the forward-looking information
which the Group used to calibrate the matrix, such
as the anticipation of the customers’ operation,
forecast industry situation, overall economic
conditions, etc.

BEEEEE ERERRAREMEOATEILEEM ()
WEFEEEH  TXREAER  BBEERRE) -

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of expected credit loss of trade receivables and
contract assets in the consolidated financial
statements.
EENHETRRESEREAREENTRMEEES
BREEVBRREENTHME -
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BB R S

REEZSER (&)

Key audit matter (Continued)

BREELEE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
ESETERRIMNEEERELSEE (H)

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements amounted to RMB98,782,000
as at 31 December 2020 and was allocated to
the corresponding subsidiaries acquired as each
of these acquired subsidiaries is the only cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the corresponding
combination.

7R2020F12 A31 8 @ REMBHREABENEREE
BARY98,782,0007T © I E 53 AL = AT AR B HOARBA P
BRE - IR ATRE R ZFH B AR RS
RIS BrRO i R FE R M e e — 3R S EE A B8 ([3R
SEEEM]) -

In accordance with IFRSs, management of the
Group is required to at least annually perform
impairment test for goodwill. The impairment test
of goodwill is based on the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated. The
recoverable amount of the CGU is the value in use
using cash flow projections based on a financial
budget. Management, assisted by the external
valuer, evaluated the impairment of goodwill by
comparing the recoverable amount and the carrying
value of the CGU. This matter was significant to
our audit because the impairment test process was
complex and involved significant judgements and
estimates.

REBEREVERESLER - BEEEEEEAZLSF
ETERERERNR - BERENAZNESEHEN
BeELBUNARESE ReELBMAR KE
SEOERERYHEENR S REFRANERE
B - SMNEGEMGHEEERBLRESELEMN
A] Y o) B8 % BRI (B 2R RS P B RE © f OB EDAI B
BIZE RS MEAH B MGG - UL EBEHEEK
BRMEIBEE -

Related disclosures are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of non-financial assets”, note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 16 “Goodwill” to the consolidated
financial statements which specifically explain
the key assumptions the management used for.the
determination of the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

A EERNENGE B RERNMT2.4[ ESREE
WE] - MFE3I T EE ST A k&) RMsE16
2 ZENEFFFAEEEREERSELSM
AU Bl & BB A R SRR -

We have performed the following procedures to
address the assessment of impairment of goodwill:

BEECRBATRRFREFERENTG

—  obtaining an understanding of the process of
estimating the future cash flows;

- EREFRRRASREMNBRE

— assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external appraiser used
by management;

- HEEEEMBEANINHEMZER  FEBE
KBNS

- evaluating management’s main assumptions
including discount rate and the long-term
growth rates beyond the five-year period with
the assistance of internal valuation experts;

- EABGEEERNHBHT  FEEEEMER
?)\Igﬁigﬁ(@?EEEIE%YS&EEZ%E’%‘?E%E

—  comparing the forecasts and main assumptions
used with respect to future revenues and
operating results against the historical trends
and available market data;

— BHRRRARKLEEENTRUR T ERRER
EBE LA ERNTSEBETHLE

We also assessed the disclosures on the impairment
of goodwill in the notes to the Group’s financial
statements.

BESMAHE TEBRER BEREMBRRMEOR

25 ©
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Independent auditor’s report

BYZBERE

To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Continued)

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do

SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

MR BED R

To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

BYZBERE

To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEER

HfezmEW =R

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BLEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Bt aE AR®T T ARET T
REVENUE 'ON 5 1,181,120 1,329,875
Cost of sales SHE KA (971,440) (1,081,359)
Gross profit ER 209,680 248,516
Other income and gains H A Y A B Yo 6 20,151 10,399
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko SR A (15,845) (13,187)
Administrative expenses THREAX (86,286) (82,208)
Impairment losses on financial and ~ £E&&REERE
contract assets, net E518 - FEE (1,371) (2,234)
Other expenses H AR5 (15,377) (24,641)
Finance costs Eﬁéﬁ%ﬂi 8 (11,193) (12,310)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates — &5 & A F]
(E518) /i F (1,379) 580
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AR R 7 98,380 124,915
Income tax expense et X 11 (44,116) (48,880)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 54,264 76,035
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: L;L‘F%E@{E :
Owners of the parent 7%&%/\ 54,421 70,150
Non-controlling interests 3'5? gt (157) 5,885
54,264 76,035
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hitt2HEEE
Other comprehensive loss that may ~ HEHRAIgEENHAER
be reclassified to profit or loss in BEMEMEEES
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of & & /)35 E £ /Y
foreign operations fEH =58 993 (217)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR F£EH M2 HEEE -
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HIBRB 1 993 (217)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  F£E2HE KA
FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: L;(‘F%E@{E :
Owners of the parent NGIEZSUN 55,414 69,933
Non-controlling interests iﬁ gt (157) 5,885
55,257 75,818
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBRESEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic &R
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRaM (AR¥ET) 13 0.06 0.08
Diluted BE
— For profit for the year (RMB) —Fmai(ARET) 13 0.06 0.08
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

2020 2019
2020F 20194
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Bt ek AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 14 669,991 656,249
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 88,907 92,435
Goodwill EES 16 98,782 98,782
Other intangible assets H it B & E 17 104,591 114,063
Investments in associates REEE N R E 18 129,727 137,551
Equity investments designated at BERL T E ABRR
fair value through profit or loss HRARE 19 53,255 54,147
Debt investment at fair value through  #&RAFEF A=A
profit or loss BRRE 20 95,029 =
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1R S ARSI AR Y
EHTA 21 - 95,044
Deferred tax assets BETHIRE E 22 40,388 37,888
Other non-current assets HitIEREEE 26 12,344 29,554
Total non-current assets EMBEELTE 1,293,014 1,315,713
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 23 12,115 9,046
Trade receivables JEWE SR 24 157,778 103,625
Contract assets GREBE 25 9,208 8,160
Prepayments, other receivables and FENIE - Hip e
other assets RIEREMEE 26 174,548 122,660
Amounts due from other related parties EYCE ] #3875 508 27 34,281 32,571
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEGABRE
profit or loss TRIEE 28 55,000 204,000
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1R S ARSI BR Y
BB TR 21 59,478 43,295
Cash and bank e RIRTT 29 505,066 432,121
Total current assets MBEEAHE 1,007,474 955,478
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and bills payables ENESHERARER 30 51,627 60,688
Other payables and accruals HoAth e 1< R IE I
BT E M 31 73,258 42,721
Contract liabilities ARABE 32 144,495 136,970
Amounts due to other related parties & A< EL th R Bk 07 5 IR 27 5,555 650
Deferred revenue EIEUT A 33 1,043 1,043
Interest-bearing bank and other FHRRTT R EMAER
borrowings 34 237,152 242,233
Tax payable R IE 28,132 29,517
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 541,262 513,822
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 466,212 441,656
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,759,226 1,757,369
continued/...
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBRRE
31 December 2020
2020512 H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Lk AR®T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Contract liabilities aRA&RE 32 89,412 91,638
Deferred revenue EEBA 33 12,880 13,924
Interest-bearing bank and other T RERIT R EMER
borrowings 34 72,898 105,845
Deferred tax liabilities FELEMIERE 22 28,805 27,908
Total non-current liabilities EmEaERE 203,995 239,315
Net assets BEFH 1,555,231 1,518,054
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BRRHE AREGER
the parent -
Issued capital BERITHRA 35 7,215 7,214
Reserves e 36 1,458,666 1,423,079
1,465,881 1,430,293
Non-controlling interests FEFEIE 25 89,350 87,761
TOTAL EQUITY FE AT 1,555,231 1,518,054
Su Yi Su Wen
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BLEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARHAARL
Special
Share Statutory reserve-  Exchange Non-
Issued Share  option  Merger  Capital reserve safety fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve fund fund  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
L
B&f ER EE -RR B FER
Bx  ROEE  BEE  AHEE  BABR  BRET  4EE REER  REM it Bt BnlR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARHTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R0195181A 7214 785,91 48,693 (74343) 6,231 101,116 2433 (91) 496,352 1,373,566 85,236 1,458,602
Profit for the year ERa - - - - - - - - 70150 70150 5885 76,03
Other comprehensive loss ERAMRERR
for the year:
Exchange differences related ~ ELEN5TEE
to foreign operations MERER - - - - - - - 217) - 217) - 217)
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2ENEEE
for the year - - - - - - - 217) 70,150 09,933 5,885 75818
Dividends paid to RREZEIGES
non-controlling shareholders fIRE - - - - - - - - - - (3600 (3,360
Final 2018 dividend declared ~ BERRIEE
and paid WIBERBRE - (1528 - - - - - - - 0528 - (5280
Special reserve - safety fund SRR -
RELER - - - - - - -0 - - -
Equity-settled share option WERESH
amangements (note 37) BRERi
(H37) - - 10076 - - - - - - 1076 - 1076
Transfer from retained profits BEERTEH - - - - - 14,631 - - (14,631) = = =
At 31 December 2019 and 20195128318
1 January 2020 R00F1818 7214 760,679 00,769 (74,343) 6,231 115,747 10,210 (308) 544,094 1,430,293 87,761 1,518,054
Profit for the year ERa - - - - - - - - 344 34N (157) 54,264
Other comprehensive income ~~ £EEM2ENA :
for the year:
Exchange differences related HENEREE
to foreign operations MEXZE - - - - - - - 993 - 993 - 993
Total comprehensive income £ 2EYREE
for the year - - - - - - - 993 5442 35414 (157) 55,257
Dividends paid to ERFARRR
non-controlling shareholders ke - - - - - - - - - - (900) (900)
Final 2019 dividend declared ~ 2ERREE
and paid 20195 7ERE - (2528) - - - - - - - (2528 - (2528
Capital contribution from a ~4lBAT
non-controlling shareholder FERRETE
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 2,646 2,646
Special reserve - safety fund ~ EEE(E -
REAER - - - - - S A -6 - - -
Equity-settled share option INEREGA
amangements (note 35) BhERs
(H3s) 1 M 5 - - - - - - 5456 - 56
Transfer from retained profits BEERTEH - - - - - 12,485 - - (12,485) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RO0EIAIIE 725 TEHIIT 6910+ (433 62T 12232 10844 6B 584306 1465881 89350 1555230

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — *
of RMB1,458,666,000 (2019: RMB1,423,079,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BLEFE

2020 2019
2020F 2019F
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000
fits ARET T N S
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ B&EBfERERE
Profit before tax BB 98,380 124,915
Adjustments for: &1
Finance costs BEKK 8 11,193 12,310
Share of (losses)/profits of associates HMEBERRN (BHR)/ 5 1,379 (580)
Interest income MEHRA 6 (17,666) (8,293)
Dividends from equity investments designated BERATET ABRNRA
at fair value through profit or loss REZRE 6 (83) (296)
Fair value losses/(gains): NTERE/(Yes) - 7 - (3,601)
Equity investments designated at fair value ERRATEFARZNRARE
through profit or loss 7 13,646 26,671
Debt investment at fair value through profit BATES AERNEBRE
or loss 7 (3,530) =
Financial assets at fair value through profit BRATEI RGNS REE
or loss 7 (6,829) (7,674)
COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors A AREAHERHAE
RN TR 15 (110) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE  BERIENE 7 40,611 36,385
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RREEERE 7 5,798 5,244
Amortisation of other intangible assets Rt BN AR 7 7,472 5,043
Amortisation of deferred revenue LN 3 (1,044) (913)
Impairment of goodwill BEHE 7 - 4,252
Impairment of trade receivables, net ENE SETRE 28 7 1,371 2,234
Impairment of intangible assets R AERE 7 3,353 -
Impairment of investments in associates REEREZRERE 7 321 -
Equity-settled share option expenses SRR 37 5,169 12,076
Foreign exchange losses I 5 EiE 7 8,202 1,752
167,633 213,126
Increase in trade receivables JEE S EFE M (55,524) (28,798)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets ARBE (&) B (1,048) 25,969
Increase in prepayments, other receivables BF5E - Rt RRTER
and other assets A AEEM (54,053) (29,390)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories HE ()W (3,069) 1,576
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from e B A 0B (S8),/ B
other related parties (376) 2,501
Increase in amounts due to other related parties B E & A AR 4,905 205
Decrease in trade and bills payables RRNEZEARZER D (9,061) (3,320)
Increase in other payables and accruals it e 0B [ fEEt B IS N 4,687 6,162
Increase/(decrease) contract liabilities AREEEN/(RD) 2,469 (14,173)
Increase in deferred revenue BIEMALEM - 904
Cash generated from operations REXBMERS 56,565 174,762
Interest received B A& 4,539 6,564
Tax paid ENHE (47,104) (46,457)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES S&EBAEREREFR 13,998 134,869
continued...
Bg/..
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁéi
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

2020 2019
2020F 20195
Notes RMB' 000 RMB'000
fits AR%TR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RAZRBAERLRE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BERREER
equipment (57,194) (68,949)
Purchase of intangible assets %Eﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ (2,691) (7,761)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-RANEAR - (14,339)
Loans paid to third parties mE=7iR Tf-(‘g (165,765) (72,000)
Repayments of a loan from third parties E=HERER 171,066 43,726
Loan deposits received from a third party BKE= E%?KZE@ 36,000 =
Loan to a related party AR RIS - (348)
Repayments of loan paid to a related party MBE mf@ 335 =
Investments in associates NS E R RN E - (12,500)
Purchase of equity investments designated at BERETRATET AREN
fair value through profit or loss AR E (15,000) (6,000)
Prepayments for a proposed acquisition BalERNTE - (19,375)
Dividends received from equity investments BUEER A A AR
designated at fair value through profit or loss BRARE ZRE 83 296
Interest received from loans paid to third parties BRI =7 %[ # S KEMFIE 2,556 -
Interest received from a loan paid to a related B RBER SN E KRR S
party 300 -
Dividends received from associates BB E N RRRE 6,123 4387
Increase of time deposits TEHEEN (223,100 =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERNTEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss (168,900 (540,300)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERATE: AR
fair value through profit or loss SREEMEIE 324,729 436,300
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING REEBMRASREFE
ACTIVITIES (91,458) (256,663)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ BEEBMERERE
Proceeds from issue of shares of the Company AR RITERERER E TR
due to the exercise of share options EAERE 287 -
Capital contribution from a non-controlling —ENBRAEERRRIE
shareholder of a subsidiary 2,646 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BERERED /(€M) 28,250 (64,450)
Dividends paid EftKRA (26,182) (28,642)
Interest paid ERFIE (11,282) (9,707)
Principal portion of lease payments RENFNEL A 38(c) (2,574) (2,365)
New interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #7385+ 8811 REMIEF 176,070 293,207
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ EET EHR{TEH (210,096) (110,000)
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM BEED (FR)/ FEREREFR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (42,881) 78,043
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEENAL FE
EQUIVALENTS (120,341) (43,951)
Effect of exchange rate changes, net EXEHY 250 (1,564) (1,752)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E%ﬂﬁ’ﬁﬁi&fﬁ @ 367,671 413,374
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END ERNRERALEEY
OF YEAR 29 245,766 367,671
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company was
changed from Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands to
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KYI-1108, Cayman Islands on 16
December 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, operating compressed natural gas (“CNG”)
and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) refuelling station
business, the provision of natural gas transmission,
and acting as the main contractor of construction and
connection of gas pipelines in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company are
Mr. Su Aping (Fi¥) and Ms. Zhu Yaying ((RZBZH)
(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

B 75 ¥ R B

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BLEFE

TtEREEER

BB BB D BR AR ([ARF]]) BE
RERSEEEN2ERAEN2013F7
RAaBEREHSEMKRLIAEREE
REMLAA °

K2020F12 168 - AL A
FERH A Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands®% A
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KYI-1108,
Cayman Islands °
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

1. Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

TEREEES ()

BREWBERATINESR
ARATEMBRRNEBFMOT

as follows:
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
R/ BRTEE/ ARF
1 AR EELH EMRF 2 HE FEERENE AL IRER
Direct Indirect
B A
China Suchuang Energy Co., Hong Kong, PRC Hongkong dollar 100% - Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Ltd. 06 August 2013 ("HKS")
("Suchuang Hong Kong") Limited company 200,000,000
REEEIRER (B78) ARAA TEEE 200,000,000 70 Ak
(TEe1E%]) 201358 A6H (MEml)
ARAH
Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd " Mainland China, PRC Renminbi ("RMB") - 100% Investment holding
("Suchuang Shanghai”) 01 June 2016 2,000,000/
Limited liability RMB300,000,000
company
FElmR (L&) BRARO ER ARE(TARE]) RERKR
(&8l L8)) 201656 A1H 2,000,0007C/
ERRERT AE#300,000,0007C
Taicang Natural Gas Company Limited © Mainland China, PRC RMB368,000,000/ - 100% Distribution and sale of
(“Taicang Natural Gas") 14 May 2002 RMB400,000,000 natural gas, provision of
Limited liability natural gas transmission,
company main contractor of
construction and
installation of gas
pipelines
ARMAARERAT" hEM AR H368,000,0007C,/ RARHERRR
(TREXRARL) 200245 A 14H AE#400,000,0007C REXAREZ -
EREELF {FRERR

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

TEREEES ()

BREWBATINER (&)
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (&)

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
AL/ BRITEE/ AL
1 AR EELH EMBRAZEE EEEENAALL IERH
Direct Indirect
Ef A
Suzhou Zhongyu Energy Development  Mainland China, PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Construction and
Co., Ltd. 14 May 2012 operation of natural
("Suzhou Zhongyu'") Limited liability gas refuelling stations
company
BN FRRRRARAA" PEAL AKH50,000,0007T AARMRGHRRREEL
(M) 2012958148
EREELTF
Kunshan Anda Natural Gas Mainland China, PRC RMB2,000,000 - 80% Distribution and
Development Co., Ltd. " 01 October 2016 sale of natural gas
(“Anda Natural Gas") Limited liability
company
BILZERRRERERAA" HEAL AE#2,000,0007T EERHERAR
([ZEXRRL) 2016%10A1H
AREARA
Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng Mainland China, PRC RMB20,000,000 - 51% Operation of natural
Gas Co., Ltd. " 25 March 2016 gas refuelling stations
(“Licheng Gas") Limited liability
company
BlETEEMRERAL AR PERI AK#20,000,0007C BERARMAL,
([22fR)) 201693 A25R
AREARA
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20205F12 8318 IEFEE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

AMBBET -

TEREEES ()

EEMBEATNER (&)
RAREFENBA

(%)

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
AR/ BRITEE/ AL
1 AR EELH EMBRAZEE EEEENAALL IRER
Direct Indirect
i A
Changshu City Suyu Natural Gas Mainland China, PRC RMB58,000,000 = 51% Distribution and sale
Transmission Co., Ltd. 25 March 2017 of piped natural gas
(“Changshu Suyu") Limited liability
company
FATRERARGRARLAA" HEAL AR¥58,000,0007 EXRHEEERANRA
(%*? &) 201793 R25H
BREELF
Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering Mainland China, PRC RMB30,000,000 - 51%  Promotion of technologies
Technology Co., Ltd. ™ 31 October 2017 for nitrogen and
("Xinjiang Dunhua") Limited liability carbon dioxide
company
MERERBTERMARAA" EIA AR#30,000,0007 ARR B HRITHER
([HEE]) 20174104318
AREARA
Nantong Suyou Gas Co., Ltd. Mainland China, PRC RMB2,000,000 = 100% Sale of general
(“Nantong Suyou”) 7 May 2019 dangerous chemicals
Limited liability
company
HREARRARAR PRI AR#%2,000,0007T HE-RERIER
(IR ) 201945 A7H
AREARA
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

Corporate and Group Information 1. EEREEER (&)
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EREMBATINER (8)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are RAREEWBARMFBLOT - (&)

as follows: (Continued)

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
AR,/ BRATEE/ ARF
£ AR EEBE AMBRA 2 EE FERRENE AL IRER
Direct Indirect
i A
Argus LNG LLC (“Argus LNG") United States United States dollar - 100%  LNG facility investment
14 May 2018 ("USD") 1,000
Limited liability
company
Argus LNG LLC ([ Argus LNG) %8 1,000%7 ([%7]) BIAARRIERE
2018F5A 148
AREARA
(1) The English names of these subsidiaries represent the (1) REPRFMAIHE QR EIEXNEE
best efforts made by the management of the Company to M MZEARNR BT AR LN
translate their Chinese names as they do not have official ERERNEZERANR XL EEE
English names registered in PRC. fJH -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EERA LRI ARTIMBE AT
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally DEBREFEREINBRAEEEE
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial FENEATE S HNMBAR - EFR
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details R FIEEMNBARNFAERNSE
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the BERENITR

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
for equity investments, debt investments and financial
assets which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(¢) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 /nterest Rate Benchmark Reform

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Definition of Material

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the

revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out
a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements
in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and
interpret the standards. The Conceptual Framework
includes new chapters on measurement and
reporting financial performance, new guidance
on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles
of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the

revised IFRSs are described below: (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions or other events that occurred on
or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the

revised IFRSs are described below: (Continued)

(c)

Amendments to IFRS 9, I1AS 39 and IFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”).
reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue

The amendments provide temporary

during the period of uncertainty before the
introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition,
the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group as the Group does not
have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the

revised IFRSs are described below: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
certain monthly lease payments for the leases of
the Group’s office buildings have been reduced
or waived by the lessors upon reducing the
scale of production as a result of the pandemic
and there are no other changes to the terms of
the leases. The Group has early adopted the
amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected not to
apply lease modification accounting for all rent
concessions granted by the lessors as a result of
the pandemic during the year ended 31 December
2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease
payments arising from the rent concessions of
RMB110,000 has been accounted for as a variable
lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both.
The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and

revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 8

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts*>

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’

Property, Plant and Equijpment: Proceeds
before Intended Use*

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract*
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,

Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41°
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption

° As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17

issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend
the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add
to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these

amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to
restate the comparative information. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in
December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption

now.

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall
be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 provide guidance and examples
to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments replace
the requirement to disclose “significant” accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose “material”
accounting policies. In assessing the materiality of
accounting policy information, both quantitative
and qualitative aspects need to be considered.
Entity-specific accounting policy information is
more useful for users of financial statements than
the standardised information. The amendments also
add guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting
policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 are designed to clarify the
distinction between changes in accounting estimates
and changes in accounting policies and the correction
of errors. The amendments explain how entities
use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates and state that these can include
estimation and valuation techniques. The amendments
clarify that not all estimates will meet the definition
of an accounting estimate, but rather may refer to
inputs used in developing accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

e IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

e IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or

joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from

disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or

groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

24 T ESHBERBE (&)

EBaMREE (8)

R P HERE - BRI R 5T
BEEETE BEASTIERENR
o WA SEGRERE NN ERERER
BEAEAIRERME « BE % 58% H#E17 A
R AREER12A31BETEHENSE
EREANR - HRENRME - BAEH
EHFMBANEES KEBHRRESE
ZTEEATRE SRR EP E R AR
EESERcELSENIRNESEESEN
AR MERAEBEMEEXBER

BoREZFEMKEMAT -

WEDBANGEFEARIREES
B (ReELEMMAR) W RIKE
THETE BReELEM (HREE
HEEMER) R E S B ERKREE
- REBIEE TIAER - Saim e
REBEBENENERARERE -

HEHEE WO EEREEEEM (LR
TELBEMAR)  MZELAFLE
B E  BHEXBHERNEERE
TE R ) I s S R I 51 AR TS RO BR
HE - - EHFBERXTHENHERES
HEXBNBEBEMMIREBERSESE

BB HE -

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

169



170

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20205F12 8318 IEFEE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments, debt
instruments and financial assets at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than deferred tax assets, inventories, contract assets,
financial assets and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
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24 T ESHBERBE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

174

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued) BER (&)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (vi) BEEX (a)IBATHBIA T1EHIE
a person identified in (a); HEEES

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) ( E%ﬁ%A T§%E

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZERXZERIBEEENE
which it is a part, provides key management M B AR RARERAEH
personnel services to the Group or to the M ARIREETZEEEABRR
parent of the Group. % e

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognised such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose

are as follows:

Buildings ¥
Gas pipelines MREE
Plant and machinery TR 55 Ke 1 23

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles RE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Rih - RELRPRERE
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction, which
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Operating rights

Operating rights for city pipeline networks are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
twenty-eight years.

Software copyrights

Purchased software copyrights are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
five to ten years.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights for petrochemical industry
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of fifteen years.

Customer contract

Customer contract for energy management is stated at
cost less any impairment losses and is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

sixteen years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 30 to 50 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years

Property 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment

OcCcurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of property
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of properties that are considered to

be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance

lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised

as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

24 T ESHBERBE (&)

RER A SRR
VIR £
SHAER NS RRE DAL KRS
WA RIR AT E ARSI RS
A7 -

RTHERE > SREEDBIRARE
BEENANRERERHAAEREE
BEZEeREENEBEREN - RUES
ABEXD I AEECEAAIITEES
AW EFEEABMEN D FENEWE
ZERFON - REBRQFEME (HE
MEEYFRAFEAARR) XRHK
A BESRMEE - WESAMEKD K
AEECRERAATREENERE S
BRAIRAR T XX [ WA TR | FREt BRI
BB REENE I REENLHE
fRETE ©

RE T EE ERE AN IR A FER
AEMEERDETOERTE  HE
AHRERERERSINAE KAKE
BNARSELNFE ([AEAAE R
MED) - BERESFARINEER
NMEZERMEEDBAEATFE AR
mat 8 - MAmEBHRA -

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

181



182

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can

be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including

historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets

which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings and amounts due to other related

parties.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

188

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred revenue account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

Sale of natural gas

Revenue from the sale of natural gas is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery

of the natural gas.

Construction and connection of gas pipelines

Revenue from the provision of construction and
connection of gas pipelines services is recognised
over time given that the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced or the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes

the benefits provided by the Group.

Natural gas transmission service

The Group’s provision of natural gas transmission
service generally includes a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same and that
have the same pattern of transfer to the customers.
Revenue from transmission of natural gas is
recognised at the point in time when the Group
transfers the promised service to the customer.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do

not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as

income in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to

the customer).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the

following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically

identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other

contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions”).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible
participants is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using the
Black-Scholes model, further details of which are given

in note 37 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense and other expenses, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020

24 T ESHBERBE (&)

LU BEZENN R (F

EARGEZEEHTHRAR HRB %
- MEBEKRALBFBENRBL TS
ERXH - ERE—AMSHIERBE
HEVERR) - BmM ISR BRI ED
EXK - RSB RCEE - BIREM
BEMRRR HRBEEAEEK -

RS RRNIRREEE - RN
B RBRGK - RIFERNFEXRDA
I BB AN TR I AT 2 B K o it
oh - HIREE AHNETE - ENEES
BUARD BEEN N R A FEARE
e KBEEFREMA L - BIBEF
HEmRRX

A H AR T - AR R EREE
FHESRE IR RERNER (825
REMEAEE YRS TG KRB
R B (e 2208 ) P ST - RN RERR
AW B REBARECEHNER X
R B BEE AR ER - RINETER
Pt - O RESHERRE) KT BBV R A IRA
REWEE -

SAEERANE - RITEBRENEE
MIE - RRSERINEAD B o



2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to make contributions to the local social
security bureau at rates based on certain percentage of
the average basic salaries of the employees under the
employment of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom
the defined contribution retirement plan is applicable.
Subsidiaries in Mainland China have no obligations
for the payment of pension benefits beyond the annual
contributions to the local social security bureau as set
out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
is required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the

accommodation fund.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss is translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding
corporate income taxes relating to the unremitted
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the Chinese Mainland that are subject to withholding
taxes. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities, based
upon the likely distribution level of such earnings from
these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding
tax associated with the investments in subsidiaries in
the Chinese Mainland for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB3,219,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,067,000). Further details are contained in note
22 to the financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial period, are described

below.

(i)

(ir)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the recoverable amounts
requires the Group to make an estimate of the
value in use of the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2020 was RMB98,782,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB98,782,000). Further details are given in note
16.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on ageing for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns according to sales type, customer type

and rating.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and 3. FESHHERMES (F&)
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) st TRREREZE (8)

(i) Provision for expected credit losses on trade (i) JEWE G RA A& EHELEEE

receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates.
The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the energy trading sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in note 24 and note 25 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of non-financial assets (other than

goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets and deferred
development costs are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an

indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are

3. TESHERME (&)

fhr ~EERZ (&)

(i) T HEZE (T EREE)BE

REBRE wERERFE2EE
TREERSFETMBMENR °
TNHEE FHE & EMETEREK
ARBFERAZRETRHRHH
o e e ETRERH - Ik
TR EENA P RBRRE(ER 68
AW ERETRERR - MEE

SRS ELBEMNERIEBRBER

tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2020,
impairment losses on other intangible assets and
investments in associates, respectively, amounting
to RMB3,353,000 (2019: Nil) and RMB321,000
(2019: Nil), respectively, have been recognised in
profit or loss as set out in note 17 and note 18 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) Net realisable value of inventories

(v)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated cost to be incurred to completion
and sale. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ needs and prices change when
the products’ expiration date is approaching.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end

of the reporting period.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (other than goodwill). This
estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, or competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge or amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that

have been abandoned or sold.
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3. TESHERME (&)

fhr ~EERZ (&)

(iv) 77 & /Y A]&

(v)

P FE
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MIHERELENERAGTE
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H N ERE M HBRERNEL
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(BEES)) 89 7] (& /5 F IR
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ZEFHAEEMINBER U -

F%& & 5 ) B R AT 458 P S PR 9 38
ERBRAEE - ARBIRER XL
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vi) Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fees recorded as contract liabilities and deferred
revenue
The Group receives fees from customers in
advance in exchange for the connection of
gas pipelines to the urban natural gas pipeline
network. These fees are received in advance and
gradually amortised. The Group determines the
estimated amortisation period of ten years for its
revenue recognition. This estimate is based on the
Group’s historical experience of the actual service
period and the strength of the Group’s business
relationship with each individual customer. It
could differ significantly based on the customer’s
profile, expected term of the relationship and the
strength of the customer’s business relationship
established with the Group. Generally,
amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis
for ten to twenty years. The carrying amounts of
connection fees and deferred revenue as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 32 and note 33

to the financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(vii) Deferred tax assets

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

3. TESHERME (&)

fhr ~EERZ (&)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020 was RMB40,388,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB37,888,000), details of which are set out in

note 22 to the financial statements.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is natural gas
operation. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment

analysis thereof is presented.

(vii) EAEFEIEE B

EBEERBRKIERTENRA
BEF RIS M B A E R R IR Z R ok
MIBEIER - T ERRES TER
EZHEWAOELETIBEE - E8H
BRIRNRIBEETR - ZE5E28HR
ZEMTRERRATEELERHIEER
ENELEHRBBHER REAH
BRARIENBELERIBEEER
2020F 12 A31HMEEEAAR
#40,388,0007C (20194F 12 A31
H: AR¥37,888,0007T) ' B
FIBE N I SR MIEE22 ©

MEEME » AEEES —ER HREL
ENED - BVRARER - AR UL DTS
AEBEANARELLEDE - HAE

EFEAMEED T o

& E R

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

(@) SPEBEFIHA

2020 2019
20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR® TR ARETTT

Mainland China A 1,180,977 1,327,880
Overseas I 143 1,995
1,181,120 1,329,875

The revenue geographical information above is

based on the locations of customers.

PA_E U A [ B R AR B P 5
HRIE ©

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

209



Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BIEFE

4. Segment Information (Continued) 4.

Geographical information (Continued)
(b) Non-current assets

7 EEFR (&)
iEE R ()
(b) FHBEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR® TR ARETT

Mainland China A B A 1,102,948 1,129,071
Overseas BN 1,394 1,857
1,104,342 1,130,928

The non-current asset information above is
based on the locations of the assets and excludes

financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

One single customer accounted for 13.8% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: 24.4%).

The directors have only little information about
whether a group of entities are under common control;
and therefore the assessment is made according to the
directors” best knowledge. Especially, the assessment
is not for those entities which might solely be under
the ultimate common control of the government after
taking into account the economic integration among
such entities in the economic environment with a large

number of state-owned entities in Mainland China.
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Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

5. WA
AEBMBWADSTETIAT -

Notes to Financial Statements
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2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR¥TT ARET T
Revenue from contracts with EEEAIWA
customers 1,180,825 1,330,380
Revenue from other sources E h AR A
Gross rental income from KEHER I AARZE
operating leases 3,467 3,443
1,184,292 1,333,823
Less: Government surcharges o BT 3,172) (3,948)
1,181,120 1,329,875
Revenue from contracts with EEAHWA
customers
Types of goods or services AmEREER
Sale of natural gas SHERAR 1,041,466 1,197,568
Construction and connection of BERBARARES
gas pipelines 123,504 115,366
Transmission of natural gas WX RAR 11,008 11,379
Others HAth 4,847 6,067
Total revenue from contracts with BEAE BTN
customers 1,180,825 1,330,380
Timing of revenue recognition BRWA Z R E
Goods or services transferred at REREEEEN
a point in time B R 1,057,321 1,215,014
Services transferred over time 2B R 8 R 1) AR 7S 123,504 115,366
Total revenue from contracts with BEA 4B
customers 1,180,825 1,330,380
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5. Revenue (Continued) 5.
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period.

LN )
TRIIRINRE A SR B ERA
Rk MR RER MM S -

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000

AR¥TT ARET T

Sale of natural gas HERAR 74,986 82,334
Construction and connection of EREEAKRXARES

gas pipelines 61,984 68,106

136,970 150,440

There is no revenue recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods.

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of natural gas

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the natural gas, and the payments are made in advance
or due within 30 to 90 days from delivery for different
customers.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020

I EFLEE MRS TR EL B EHER
WA e

BHEE
FARAEBRBEHNEENERB AT

BHEERRMNRAREBTK » AA
AT SRR TRE P RF1E30E90
B AR EIER -



Revenue (Continued)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Construction and connection services of gas pipelines
The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before or during rendering
the services. The remaining percentage of payment
generally should be paid upon completion of
construction and connection and the Group usually
gives customers a credit period of 180 days.

Rendering of natural gas transmission service
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the promised service to the customers and the payments

are generally made in advance.

The amount of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

5. WA (&)

BHEE (&)

BRREBEAMT EBRE
BHEANRERBEH —REMEARNE
B - BB AR RIS ARG HAR — A
AR - BEARERMEATK
BINFBRFBEAAEERTESHTE
F180KK{ZEH -

TR XXARIRT
BRURERATE RN AHRS R E
B BETRESAROA

HEN A HIEERHKRBEHNEECR
ERHIDREK) IR ZER SN
I

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBFT

Amounts expected to be recognised ~ TEHAER R AR DHE -

as revenue:

Within one year —FR 185,573 126,097

More than one year FB M —F 140,747 126,781

326,320 252,878
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Revenue (Continued)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Rendering of natural gas transmission service
(Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
construction and connection of gas pipelines, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied in the
following years. All the other amounts of transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not
include variable consideration which is constrained.

Other Income And Gains

5. LI&UK(%E)

BHEE (&)
fﬁfiﬁ% XAARTARTE (1B)

BN —FREIRBRANDEEF
HRENETHRZERSRENRRESR
MERNMEABR  EBRAOSEHERNAK
KEERET - DEERBRBEOEEZR
SERNAEEMSRAHN —FR
BRSWA - EXHIRENSEIER
SR B E A= AE o

6. HAWARUYEH

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T AREFT
Other income HA WA

Interest income ST N 17,666 8,293
Government grants I T 485 B 1,984 1,747

Dividends from equity investments EERATES AER

designated at fair value through BRI E 2 I’ B

profit or loss 83 296
Others Hith 418 63
20,151 10,399
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Profit before Tax
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7. BRBAIRR

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after NEBAOBKRE AR D&M (5T
charging/(crediting): A)
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBT R ARBTT
Cost of inventories sold HETFEMA 941,158 1,024,274
Cost of services provided R PR A 30,282 57,085
Depreciation of property, plant and N% - BB RRETE (Mit14)

equipment (note 14) 40,611 36,385
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (FiE15()

(note 15(a)) 5,798 5,244
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17) BREESE (HE17) 7,472 5,043
Impairment of goodwill* HERE - 4,252
Impairment of investments in associates* FBtE N AIARERE* (i 18)

(note 18) 321 -
Impairment of other intangible assets* ity & EERE* (M3E17)

(note 17) 3,353 -
Lease payments not included in the RTAHEREHEN

measurement of lease liabilities HEERF(FEE15(0)

(note 15(c)) 329 1,196
Auditor’s remuneration ZEME & 2,150 2,050
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEBAFS (T REMEIMEMN

directors’ and chief executive’s ESRFETRABNME) :

remuneration as set out in note 9):

Wages and salaries I8k« 42,213 31,190

Equity-settled share option expenses IR B BRI X 4,954 11,195

Pension scheme contributions BIRETEIHR 389 2,730

Social security contributions and HeRBATREEEN

accommodation benefits 3,014 3,547
Foreign exchange loss EXER 8,202 1,465
Impairment of trade receivables, net EWRE SERFURE - #5 (Fa24)

(note 24) 1,371 2,234
Gain on rent concessions as a result of ~ A ERASEHMNHE EZRUE

COVID-19 (note 15(b)) (tzE15(b)) (110) -
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7. Profit before Tax (Continued) 7. BRBIADGZF ()
2020 2019
2020 2019%
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Fair value losses/(gains): NTEEE /(W) -
Equity investments at fair value through 18R AT EF ABRNBRARE
profit or loss 13,646 26,671
Debt investment at fair value through BOHEGF ABRNERRE
profit or loss (3,530) -
Financial assets at fair value through BATEAABRNEREE
profit or loss (6,829) (7,674)
Interest income (note 6) FIBMA (FT5E6) (17,666) (8,293)
*  All items are included in “Other expenses” in the * A EEBBFAREER IEMEE KR
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other RIEMFAXIA -

comprehensive income.

8. Finance Costs 8. BB
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERANDTEIIAT

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
ARBT T ARBTT

Interest on interest-bearing EERRERAGENHNE
borrowings and contract liabilities 14,112 13,053

Interest on lease liabilities HEBBENNE (HEE15(c)
(note 15(c)) 151 193
Others HAth - 39

Total interest expense on financial ~ WIFRAFEF ABRH
liabilities not at fair value through ~ & @B BT SR B

profit or loss 14,263 13,285
Less: interest capitalised o BMERE (3,070) (975)
11,193 12,310
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Directors’ And Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

Notes to Financial Statements
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9. EERFETHAENME

Rz EHARR - BB RAEGIZE383(1)
(@) (b) ~ (O RMOIEAK AR (BKEES
MEER) ROIE280 - REFANES

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of REZITBAEBHNMESMT -
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
2020 2018
20204 2019%
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
ARBTR AR®ETT
Fees e 506 447
Other emoluments: HA < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EUREYHGR
in kind 4,478 6,242
Equity-settled share option AR AR BRIER X
expenses 215 881
4,693 7,123
5,199 7,570

The fair value of the options granted to certain
directors, which has been recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above

directors’ remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year.

BTETEENBRENATFEREEB
HAMWBEEP®R - BREE B B
£ Mt ARNFEMBRRTNSEE
RELDIEEMENRER -

FA - AEEHREREEINEME
B (ERBEIMAREEH AR EHE
& H) B A SRR -
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9. Directors’ And Chief Executive’s 9. EERFETHAENMS ()
Remuneration (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERNZN T RBILIENTEEHD
directors during the year were as follows: B|ET -
2020 20205

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total
RS EERN

ik BIRER X mat
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBTRT AR®BTR
Mr. Zhou Qingzu B A 152 9 161
Mr. Luk Wai Keung® PR Em 125 4 129
Mr. Zhu Tong K FEHE 152 - 152
Mr. Feng Yijing® HEBEED 77 = 77
506 13 519

2019 20194

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total
PARERR A E A
ik BRI X G
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTE ARETRT
Mr. Zhou Qingzu EEHEEE 149 25 174
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PERog e 4 149 25 174
Mr. Zhu Tong K k& 149 - 149
447 50 497
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER - BEENBIIENTES
independent non-executive directors during the REAMEE (20195 : &) -

year (2019: Nil).
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9.

Directors’ And Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive

9. EERFETHRABHME (H)

(b) MITESBRIFHNTES

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

directors
Salaries,
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses contributions Total
A NERGEEN  BASH
#E REWNE X&ERE BRERX Bt a3t
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMT:R
2020 20205
Executive directors: YITES
- Ms. Su Yi -HZat - 2,012 - 69 - 2,081
~ Mr. Du Shaozhou - HRRARE - 1,182 - 70 - 1,252
~ Mr. Li Jianyi -FR-%E - 525 - 54 - 579
- Ms. Su Wen -Hxat - 455 - - - 455
- 4,174 - 193 - 4,367
Non-executive directors:  FFHTEE
~ Mr. Xu Lei - HERL - 152 - 9 - 161
- Mr. Jin Bo - ®REE - 152 - - - 152
- 4,478 - 202 - 4,680

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

219



Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

9. Directors’ And Chief Executive’s 9. EERTETHAENEHNE (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) MITESRFEHNITES ()

directors (Continued)

Salaries,
allowances Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
=4 WERER &g

e REWNE FRZe OBRERS  HEEX st
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR

2019 2019F
Executive directors: HITES:
~ Mr. Su Aping® —HMTEEY = 2,054 . 149 . 2,203
- Ms. Zhu Yaying® —REELTY - 797 - 153 - 950
~ Mr. Du Shaozhou - HARRE - 1,181 - 158 - 1339
— Mr. Li Jianyi® - R4 - 162 - 193 - 355
- Ms. Su Wen® —HxaLY - 140 - - - 140
- Ms. Su Yi - HERL - 1,610 - 153 - 1,763
- 5,944 - 806 - 6,750
Non-executive directors: ~ FH{TES
~ Mr. Xu Lei —HERE - 149 - 25 - 174
- Mr. Jin Bo L ik - 149 - - - 149
- 6,242 - 831 - 7,073

(1)  Mr. Luk Wai Keung resigned as an independent (1) FEERJREEEN2020F6H18HF
non-executive director of the Company on 18 June ERRBVBLIEHNITEE B -
2020.

(2)  Mr. Feng Yijing was appointed as an independent (2) BERFTEEMN2020F6 190
non-executive director of the Company on 19 June ZERRRRIBYIFITES -
2020.

(3) Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying resigned as (3) #MFRERKRTBRLZETER2019
directors of the Company on 19 August 2019. FEHIIHBHEARRRIEE B -

(4)  Mr. Li Jianyi and Ms. Su Wen were appointed as (4) FER-EERBRELLTEN2019F
executive directors of the Company on 19 August 8R1IBBZEARRARIMITES -
2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director RER - WELSTERZTHE - B

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EEWNESESNEEAE -

during the year.
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10. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors (2019: four directors),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2019: one) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

10.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

TERESEFMES

FR ARG FNES (RE=%%
E(2019F : IBRES)) e rFIES
REXHIFE - FAW - 2 T (2019
F o —R)WEARREETREZITH
ABNERSFMNEEMSHFBOT -

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &  FZH R EYH &= 3,184 2,565
Equity-settled share option expenses At i E R BB IR A 2 124 239
3,308 2,804

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

EERTFMEENMESN TUATHA
R ASITR -

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR¥500,001 T2

AR#1,000,0007T 1 -

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001 TE
AR#2 500,0007T 1 _

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 AE#2 500,001 TLE
AR#3,000,0007T - 1
2 1

The fair value of the options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

B3 558 BRI 709 25 O R R MO IR AR A 28
TEAENABEEE - Wi ASFEH
BREMSEOIA LRI EE NI
FBIRABNSEHHES 2 We B
B -

FA-AEERERAREAZRRFAL
MERFM - 1ERRSIINAREE SN
AR E& B EEE) A R RERL AR (E
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11. Income Tax
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and

operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax

in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong and the United States
profits tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong
and the United States during the year.

The provision for current income tax in Mainland
China is based on the statutory rate of 25% (2019:
25%) of the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group as determined in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New
Corporate Income Tax Law”), except for certain group
entities which are entitled to various concessionary tax
rates or tax exemptions and reliefs.

The major components of income tax expense are as

11. FrB%H

AEBEERANEBEKE QA EMREE
B ERAERMMEENIREZE A
ERER AR N IR B R RGNS o

REFASBHSNRANATE - AREIH
BN % BLARER MRS -

HRFEAREEETER BN E|BES
PRI R T A - F U W W EE K
KBNERIEL RS -

T B A BN BT 1S 11 B 4 T AR IE 170 2008
FIATAREREMNFRECEMEF
BOE([FERMFHOE]) » HAKEF
B Bl B8 1 B O FERR B F1 PA25% (2019
F25%)MEERRAE - ETE
EREERHEAB BN EEER
BRAN o

FERE X M EBARIIT

follows:
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current tax: ENERARE IR
Income tax in the PRC for the year FARBEMEHR 45,786 51,364
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HLiA T AR A R
previous periods BN EAR TR 38 B (67) 169
Deferred tax (note 22) ERER IR (FI5E22) (1,603) (2,653)
Total tax charge for the year FARIAL 44,116 48,880
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

Income Tax (Continued) 11. 8% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit ERARERARBRE KR HHTE AR
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in i Er7E R ARE R A TE R R 5T E M BR B AT
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries B M BT IE R X BRI B R KA E A
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax THRAXHERARERANE (ALEER
rate and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., R) EERRAEIRIT
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows :
2020 2019
20204 2019%
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARETFT
Profit before tax BR Bt AL A 98,380 124,915
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEMEE 2 FIE 31,408 34,441
Lower tax rate for a specific entity BEEBZBERX (421) (120)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ~ FTE) BT BT I & 18 (932) (533)
Research and development expenses QEIGENE:EES
deductible for tax (108) =
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the — EAEEHEKIE AR A5k
distributable profits of the Group’s B 10% 5t BRI FE
PRC subsidiaries 7,152 2,067
Expenses not deductible for tax PRHIBFAX 409 1,390
Tax losses not recognised KRB 6,305 11,582
Adjustments in respect of current tax BB HEA AR AR IE AR
of previous periods (67) 169
Profits attributable to associates =GNyl 370 (116)
Total tax charge recognised ERERNERY & 44,116 48,880
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

12.

13.

Dividends

On 31 March 2021, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of RMB0.022
per ordinary share (2019: RMB0.028), subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

12. RE

R2021F3 A318  ARARIEEE:
RIBFHIKEEHE2020F12A31 8 1EF
ERAREGREBRARKO. 0227_E
(20194 : AR¥0.0287T) * 1#BHF
?E@ZK@ETHE@%%?@EKQLHE/EH
AEE -

2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AREFT
Proposed final - RMB0.022 HERAPRE - SRERR
(2019: RMB0.028) per AR#0.0227T
ordinary share (20194 : AR¥0.0287T) 19,868 25,282

Earnings Per Share Attributable To Ordinary
Equity Holders Of The Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 902,989,000
(2019: 902,924,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020

13. BRAFREERESAEAERGER

27

BREARBFTRES AR EBRER
BAELEFRNFRFANEFHITLRR
JkEF1580902,989,000 % (20194 :
902,924,0000%) 51 -

SRESENSRDREES QR EEK
BREEARGERNGEMNAE erﬁFFﬁ
MERRINEFOHEAFADRHITER
REAB AR EERERRNNE
BAEINHE R - RIRERFTA B E
BEAERDRIETEREBRSEREM
BMERERT -



Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

13. Earnings Per Share Attributable To Ordinary 13. B AR EBREZSEAELER

Equity Holders Of The Parent (Continued) BF (&)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per BRERNRE SRR TR AT EX%EST

share are based on:

=1

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTT

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, used in the

basic earnings per share calculation

R
BT ESREARREF A
SRRIEBREREA
iyl 54,421 70,150

Number of shares

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used
in the basic earnings per share

calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

gl 4=
2020 2019
20205 20194
gy
REFTEBRELRRFIE
FRBEBHITL AR
I Bk

902,989,000 902,924,000

I

h ik B 48
BEYTE —
i

S AR pnRE 19 8
B A A 55,565,199 20,000,000

958,554,199 922,924,000
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

14. Property, Plant And Equipment

14. W% - REKRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
Buildings  pipelines  machinery equipment vehicles i progress Total
filh - RER
BT MXEE HEREZ MOERE nE  HERIE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR ARBTn ARWTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2019 201951418 223,660 456,659 49,482 5,945 10,444 112,587 858,777
Additions HE = 34 2,163 822 1,636 58,293 62,948
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENBAR = = = = - 3,791 3,791
Transfers L 4,741 8,134 3,102 - - 59m) -
Disposals & - - - - (81) - (81)
At31 December 2019 #2019512A318 R
and 1 January 2020 202051718 228,401 464,627 54,747 6,767 11,999 158,694 925,435
Additions HE = = 1,129 290 1,179 51,755 54,353
Transfers L1 - 36948 5,338 1 448 (47,055) -
At 31 December 2020 2020812318 228,401 501,775 61,214 7,778 17,426 163,194 979,768
Accumulated depreciation: gitE:
At 1 January 2019 201951418 39,688 158,621 25,781 3,265 5327 - 232,882
Charge for the year ERER 6804 23293 4,333 816 1,139 - 3638
Disposals it & = = = = (81) = (81)
At 31 December 2019 #2019512A318 Rk
and 1 January 2020 200%1818 4669 181914 30,114 4,081 6,385 - 269,186
Charge for the year ERRR 8384 26176 4170 777 1,104 - 406
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 5507 208090 34284 4858 7,489 - 309797
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 181,709 282,913 24,633 2,686 5,614 158,694 056,249
At 31 December 2020 12020512318 173305 293685 26930 2920 997  16319% 669,991
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

14. Property, Plant And Equipment (Continued) 14. 9% - BERRE (&)

15.

Note: GEE
Capitalised interest expenses included in construction in AERERZTREBENENMCMBRM AT
progress of the Group are as follows (note 8): GE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’”000
ARBTT ARET T
Interest expenses capitalised ERER BRI 3,070 975
Leases 15. HE
The Group as a lessee REBEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of AEBERRERBLENRE R E
property and motor vehicles used in its operations. ZEBEBMNEESH - BRAEL KX
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the MR AR FEREE T - BER
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 30 302504 © MRZEZF LB ER K
to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made o BT GEE MR - WEHR
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of property ENHEHBBER2EIF - MIENEBR
generally have lease terms between 2 and 3 years, BER3IF o
while motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 3
years.
(a) Right-of-use assets @) EHBEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use FR - AEEERAEEENKREE
assets and the movements during the year are as REBHMT
follows:
Leasehold Motor
land  vehicles Property Total
HELH _RE LJES e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTRT AR¥ T
As at 1 January 2019 M2019%1H18 91,608 = 914 92,522
Additions NE - 3,374 1,775 5,149
Exchange realignment BEE 34, T - - 8 8
Depreciation charge TEER (2,981) (1,125) (1,138) (5,244)
As at 31 December 2019 R20195F12 8318 K
and 1 January 2020 2020F1 HA1H 88,627 2,249 1,559 92,435
Additions NE - = 2,264 2,264
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 5 = = 6 6
Depreciation charge HEER (2,979) (1,125) (1,694) (5,798)
As at 31 December 2020 72020912 A31H 85,648 1,124 2,135 88,907
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HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

15. Leases (Continued) 15. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREEA (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included FREERE (GFAGFRRITRHE
under interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) MEZETN) MEREREFH N
and the movements during the year are as follows: T
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BRAREE 3,524 732
New leases EE 2,264 5,149
Exchange gains and losses B 34, s o K% 5 1R 6 8
Accretion of interest recognised FRAE RN E 2
during the year 151 193
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2R & HF A B AT AR
from lessors REMBEHESER (110) =
Payments (BN (2,725) (2,558)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12 A31 BREEHEE 3,110 3,524
Analysed into: BIATEEDHT
Current portion BN ERER > 2,472 1,967
Non-current portion FERNEAER 7 638 1,557
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HE B ER B E 9 IR B 15 Rk i
disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements. FE34HEEE o
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

15. Leases (Continued) 15. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREEA (&)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) I8 7z HH #E 57 B 1 & 1 7 70 78 40
to leases are as follows: s

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
ARET T ARETTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERMNE 151 193
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ~ FHEEENTESEH
assets 5,798 5,244
Expense relating to short-term leases  E2G HAH & K 84 T~ 70 HA
and other leases with remaining W12 A31 B ZBiEm
lease terms ended on or before MEMAESANRY
31 December (included in (FFATTEFSR)
administrative expenses) 329 1,196
COVID-19-related rent concessions R & HFE A BFT A T AR R
from lessors SHEEHSER (110) —
Total amount recognised in RIBEPHERNESTE
profit or loss 6,168 6,633

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (d)
outflows relating to leases that have not yet
commenced are disclosed in notes 38(c) and 40(b),
respectively, to the financial statements.

HER ML K E N AFARN
HEBBENRKRSRHEES IR
BT TS 3RERHI5E38(c) & 40(b) I FE ©
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15. Leases (Continued) 15. & (&)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its properties under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB3,467,000 (2019: RMB3,443,000), details of which

are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
are as follows:

REBEALBEA
REBRBEEHSLHHBAEME -
ZEMEMERME KRB I ERE
T FRN - AKENERRBESWAR
AR#3,467,0007C (20195 : AR
3,443,0007T) © FIBEAR M EHREM T
5 o

2020912 A31H @ REBE R ARKHE
FARBEERES 7 R RELLHERN
JEWARRRIRFAEFUBM T ¢

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T R AREFTT

Within one year —FR 1,796 3,662
After one year but within two years —FREMFNR 1,346 1,699
After two years but within three years MEREBE=FN 788 1,234
After three years but within four years =FRENFRA 655 755
After four years but within five years WEREBERFEA 694 655
After five years L& - 694
5,279 8,699
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HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

16. Goodwill 16. B8
RMB’"000
ARETT
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2019 201951518 97,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B B B 1 &) 5,622
At 31 December 2019, 2019512 A31H -
1 January 2020 20201 A1ER
and 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 103,034
Accumulated impairment: R5HREE :
At 1 January 2019 7201941 H1H =
Impairment during the year FRRIE (4,252)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 72019512 A31H ~ 20204
and 31 December 2020 1A18 k2020512 A31H (4,252)
Net carrying amount: AR TEFHE -
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 R2019%12 4318 ~ 20204
and 31 December 2020 1818 K&2020%612A31H 98,782
Impairment testing of goodwill EERE R
Goodwill acquired through business combinations BREFAHESHEESKEEIATIA
is allocated to the following cash-generating units eELBEM([ReEEEM]) ETR
(“CGUs") for impairment testing: BRI -
—  Distribution and sale of natural gas of Licheng Gas - DHEHKARHEERMAR ([EER
(“Licheng Gas”) ) BIRAR
-~ Distribution and sale of natural gas of Anda — PDHENHEELTERAR ([LEXA
Natural Gas (“Anda Natural Gas”) ) KRR E
- Promotion of technologies for nitrogen and carbon — HEFE(HFEIHE])Tm k=
dioxide of Xinjiang Dunhua (“Xinjiang Dunhua”) SULIR T H#EE
- Contract energy management and distributed — BB ([EEER]) B4R eE
energy system projects of Tengxu Energy (“Tengxu REBEY>HAEREZSGIER
Energy”)
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16. Goodwill (Continued) 16. BE (&)

232

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by management. The
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections were
13.2% (2019: 13.6%) for Licheng Gas, 14.3% (2019:
15.0%) for Anda Natural Gas, 19.4% for Xinjiang
Dunhua (2019: 18.8%) and 15.4% for Tengxu Energy
(2019: 14.2%). The growth rates used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the above cash-generating units beyond
the five-year period are 2% to 3%, which are also
estimates of the rate of inflation.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the CGUs is as follows:

EERERE (8)
REELEBEMNAWE SR IHERER
BEGEELIET  FIRANBESRETE
AITERCERBH AN A FHGETE
B ARERRE  TEXAR - ¥E
HENEBERRS RETE AR
KRN E13.2% (20194 : 13.6%)
14.3% (20194 : 15.0%) * 19.4%
(20194 : 18.8%) & 15.4% (20194 :
14.2%) - ARNEE LR EABA
hFEBAERENIERER2%E3% °
S REMAMGFHRRE -

NEEZEEREEABMNEEREER
T

2020 2019
20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWT T ARBTF T

Licheng Gas BREMST 51,723 51,723
Anda Natural Gas LERAR 35,812 35,812
Xinjiang Dunhua M E 5,625 5,625
Tengxu Energy BB REIR 5,622 5,622
98,782 98,782

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the cash-generating units for 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and

its expectations for the development of the market.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.
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16. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
There was no impairment loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, an impairment
loss of RMB4,252,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as other expense, in respect
of the goodwill resulted from the acquisition of a
subsidiary of the Group, Anda Natural Gas. During
the impairment test, Anda Natural Gas was considered
as a separate cash-generating unit (“Anda Natural
Gas CGU”). The impairment charges were driven by
the lower recoverable amount of Anda Natural Gas
CGU resulting in the directors’ reassessment that
the estimated future business performance of Anda
Natural Gas CGU might not achieve the expectation
of management taking the budgeted gross margin and
estimated growth rate of distribution and sale of natural
gas into consideration.

The recoverable amount of Anda Natural Gas has been
determined based on value in use which is based on
certain key assumptions including the discount rate,
long-term growth rate and budgeted gross margin.
The carrying amount of Anda Natural Gas CGU
was determined to be higher than its recoverable
amount of RMB5,314,000 and an impairment loss
of RMB4,252,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 was recognised. The impairment loss was solely
allocated to goodwill, and as a result, the carrying
amount of goodwill was reduced. The key assumptions
used in calculation include a discount rate of 15.0%,
long-term growth rate of 3% and budgeted margin
which are consistent with market average level and
external information sources for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

16. & (1)

%%;EE{E //\IJ Fl_t (nlﬂ)
HZE2020F12 A31 H I FE W]
BEEE -

HZE2019F12 8318 ILEFE - WEAK
EE-BNBRARRERAREENRE
ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ@%EAE%4wzmmﬁ
RiFeBmkEMEHKRERERR
ﬁ@%i RRERRT - RERAR
WEABYMWESELEM ([LEXRA
RRSELEEBENM]) - EXHENRER
ERARBECELEBEMNMATINE SR
L BFEEERERSEREERAR
WBEEMERMHFHERE®E - EHT
HMEERARBEEEBUNMGERR
EBRBAVEIETEREMHTEL -

TERARM IR E SR EA
BEEBT  EUETEIEMRRAIK
B BEEMRE REEEXRKEE
ERE - HE2019F12 831 8IS
B ZREXARRSELEUMNER
BEEEEARRERNKBEESEAREK
5,314,0007C * WEERBEBEAR
#4,252,0007C * REARBEEBEEZH
SEERE  WHEEBNEREAERYD -
201912 A31H 5T EFERANEZER
HBIE15.0%m B3R K « 39%H) & B 1%
X URFAEMIGFKERINBE
BRI TBEEFEE -
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

17. Other Intangible Assets 17. Hib B EE

Intellectual

Customer ~ Operating Software property
contract rights  copyrights rights Total
BFEH Ker B RE ABER st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARMTRT AR®TR AR¥TR ARWT:R

Costs: A

At 1 January 2019 R2019%61H1H = 89,741 9,992 8,062 107,795

Additions NE = = 9,711 = 9,711

Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEI B A 10,185 = = = 10,185
At 31 December 2019 and ~ #2019512A318 %

1 January 2020 2020%1 818 10,185 89,741 19,703 8,062 127,691
Additions e = = 1,353 - 1,353
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 8318 10,185 89,741 21,056 8,062 129,044
Accumulated amortisation: Rt

At 1 January 2019 201961 A1H = 7,695 890 = 8,585

Provided during the year ENERE 169 3,646 1,056 172 5,043
At 31 December 2019 and 20195124318 K

1 January 2020 2020%1 818 169 11,341 1,946 172 13,628
Provided during the year FNEE 637 3,646 2,964 225 7,472
At 31 December 2020 720204612 A31H 806 14,987 4,910 397 21,100
Impairment: R

At 1 January 2019, R2019F1/18

31 December 2019 2019124318 K&
and 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H = = = = =

Impairment during the year — FRR{E - - 3,353 - 3,353
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 8318 - - 3,353 - 3,353
Net book value: BREFE -

At 31 December 2019 P2019412 A31H 10,016 78,400 17,757 7,890 114,063

At 31 December 2020 #2020%€12 8318 9,379 74,754 12,793 7,665 104,591
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17.

18.

Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment
provision of RMB3,353,000 was made for a software
copyright by the Group as the performance was lower

than expected.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12 A31 8 IEFE

17. HthBEEE (&)

HZE2020F12 A31 HIEFE - ARK
BRIBTETRR - ANEBEFHIRE A RE
TEEE ) AR E3,353,0007T °

Investments in Associates 18. REEE R TINIRE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Share of net assets DEEEFE 109,126 116,629
Goodwill on acquisition R o B Th 22 AR O P B 20,601 20,922
129,727 137,551

(a)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

(a) BEZERROFIBAOT :

Percentage of

Bk

Place of registration

Name of company Registered capital and operations

Voting power

Ownership
interest Principal activity

PEEL dfBA ERREELE RRE fealRE TEXH

Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Registered share - Mainland China, PRC 49% 49% Sale of gas products,
Co., Ltd.* (*Kunlun Suchuang Gas") capital of 21 July 2006 and pipeline

ENrRREREEIMRERAR" RMB117,650,000 FEIFsE construction and
(RREAMR]) HMEAARE HE2000%7 8217 maintenance

117,630,0007C HEMRER  BIR
kEEE
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas ~ Registered share - Mainland China, PRC 40% 40% Manufacture and

capital of 02 March 2009
RMB28,000,000 I3, -
AfEAARE 8200043 A2R

28,000,007

Usage Co., Ltd.* ("Kunlun Suchuang Usage”)
EMrERERRERARNAARA A
(TEmEEINA))

sale of compressed

natural gas
HERKERERAR
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REEZE R FINIRE ()
(@) Particulars of the associates are as follows: () BEEARIMEEBWT - (B

(Continued)

Percentage of
Bk
Place of registration Ownership
Name of company Registered capital and operations Voting power interest Principal activity
PEEL: afths SRRERE RERE gk TEXH
Shanghai Zhongji Suchuang New Energy Registered share - Mainland China, PRC 49% 49% Technology
Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongji Suchuang’| capital of 04 November 2017 development
LT REARERNRARRA: ([higall) RMB50,000,000 FEIR} - and new energy
afMBAARE RE2017511 A48 technology services
50,000,0007C UV

Rk

Xinjiang Dunhua Petroleum Technology Co., Ltd. Registered share Mainland China, PRC ~ Before 18 May Before 18 May Technology

(‘Dunhua Petroleum’)* capital of 09 April 2018 2020: 9.16% 2020:9.16%  promotion and
TEYERRRIRAARAR (HERR]) RMB91,400,000 FRERM After 16 May After 18 May  petr-chemical
iMRAARS RE201854A9H 2020: 8.75% 2020:8.75%  technology services
91,400,007 2020558188 2000%5A188 KEERALKER

ZH119.16% 2A916% %
200558188 2020657188
21 8.75% 21 8.75%

Beijing Beilun Energy Science and Technology Registered share  Mainland China, PRC 20% 20% Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Beilun"}* capital of 08 May 2018 promotion and new
PRt meRRRARAA (L)) RMB25,000,000 FRERM - energy technology
AMEAARE HE2018%5 78R services; gas
25,000,0007 operation business
RERRAERER
(b) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions (b) FEERFREBERFNARER
with the associates during the year are disclosed in ARG 7RI 27 &M 5T
note 27 and note 41 respectively. 414%5E -
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(c) The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following tables illustrate the

summarised financial information of the Group's

associates:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

18. REEE QT WIRE (K)
(0 AEEREEDANREREAY
AEBERTMEBEK - TRAM
AEEBERRANPRBEE -

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#EIMR

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Non-current assets EREBEE 36,734 42,465
Current assets mMENEE 110,928 112,670
Current liabilities mENEE (13,901) (18,226)
Non-current liabilities EREEFE (963) (10,726)
Net assets BEFE 132,798 126,183
Ownership interest (%) P HEFE 2 (%) 49 49
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 65,071 61,830
Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to REZ20206F12 A31HIEFE -
its shareholders amounting to RMB8,182,000 Em#malMRmEREELRE S
in the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: KEHEARES 182,000t (2019

RMB6,582,000). The Group’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB4,010,000 (2019:

RMB3,225,000).

F: AR¥6,582,0007T) ° &
SRS EREDEERAARK
4,010,0007C (20194 : AR
3,225,0007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RINIRE (&)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) ANEEBEREE QAR EWEAY
considered to be individually material to the AEERERMEBEAN - TRED
Group. The following tables illustrate the REBBEATNTBERE
summarised financial information of the Group’s (#&)

associates: (Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued) EmR&ANR (&

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000

ARBT T ARET T

Revenue LON 140,036 89,936

Profit for the year F = A 14,798 9,006
Other comprehensive income for FEEMEEK S

the year - =
Total comprehensive income for FEEPHWHERE

the year 14,798 9,006

Ownership interest (%) P A fEHE 22 (%) 49 49

Share of results DILEE 7,251 4,413
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are
considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following tables illustrate the
summarised financial information of the Group's

associates: (Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Usage

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

18. REEE QT WIRE (K)

(0 AEEREEDANREREAY
AEBERTMEBEK - TRAM
AEBMBEARNONHERE
()

B & AR A

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T AREFIT

Non-current assets EREBEE 13,924 15,615
Current assets mENEE 18,625 22,097
Current liabilities meaE (119) (2,050)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE - (371)
Net assets BEFE 32,430 35,291
Ownership interest (%) P HEFE 2 (%) 40 40
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 12,972 14,116
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

18. REFE QR RE (F)

() The Group’s investments in associates are (c) AREBREERNRNREWE B

considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following tables illustrate the

AEBERM S

summarised financial information of the Group's (&)

associates: (Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Usage (Continued) =2

mE AR A (&)

BEX - TR
AEEBERRNMBEERER

Kunlun Suchuang Usage distributed dividends RENE2020F12 A31HLEFE -

to its shareholders amounting to RMB5,285,000
in the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB2,105,000). The Group’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB2,114,000 (2019:

RMB842,000).

Em &Rl A A

AmERRELRE D
KA £ ARES5,258,0007T (2019
F: AR¥2,105,0007T) ° &

BAEREDEERXARARK

2,114,0007C (20194 : AR

842,0007T) °
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETT
Revenue WA 48,045 70,947
Profit for the year F 5 A 2,425 5,871
Other comprehensive income for FEHEMP RS
the year - _
Total comprehensive income for FETHMEER
the year 2,425 5,871
Ownership interest (%) PTG HERE 2R (%) 40 40
Share of results DL LA 970 2,348
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RINIRE (&)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) ANEEBEREE QAR EWEAY
considered to be individually material to the AEERERMEBEAN - TRED
Group. The following tables illustrate the REBEBENRHNMBEERTE
summarised financial information of the Group’s (&)

associates: (Continued)

Dunhua Petroleum HEALM
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Non-current assets EREBEE 272,518 307,644
Current assets mENEE 100,641 124,559
Current liabilities mEAE (55,943) (87,741)
Non-current liabilities EREEFE (2,850) (6,547)
Net assets BEFE 314,366 337,915
Ownership interest (%) P HEFE 2 (%) 8.75 9.16
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 27,507 30,953
Goodwill on acquisition X s B i 2 A O g 16,538 16,538
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 44,045 47,491
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REEZE R RINIRE (88)

(c) The Group’s investments in associates are
considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following tables illustrate the
summarised financial information of the Group's

associates: (Continued)

Dunhua Petroleum (Continued)

Dunhua Petroleum did not distribute dividends to
its shareholders in the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB3,493,000). The Group’s share
of the dividend distribution was nil (2019:
RMB320,000).

(c)

RE B R E 2 N R IR B R AR A E
AEBEENMEBEAN - TREM
AEEBERRNMBEERER
(#8)

HELH (E)
BHZE2020F12A31HIEFE - &
EOHMAMERFEELRESIK
(20194 : AR¥3,493,0007T) °
AEBSEBREDIKRAE (2019
F: AR¥320,0007T) °

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Revenue WA 74,453 106,666

Loss for the year FREE (37,851) (12,642)
Other comprehensive income for FEHM P E W

the year - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2HEEEERE (37,851) (12,642)

Ownership interest (%) P HEHE 22 (%) 8.75 9.16

Share of results DR EE (3,446) (1,158)
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RINIRE (&)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) ANEEBEREE QAR EWEAY
considered to be individually material to the AEERERMEBEAN - TRED
Group. The following tables illustrate the REBEBENRHNMBEERTE
summarised financial information of the Group’s (&)

associates: (Continued)

Beijing Beilun Rt
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREFIT
Non-current assets EREBEE 11,419 15,787
Current assets mENEE 75,062 96,877
Current liabilities meaE (69,271) (64,694)
Non-current liabilities EmBEAE - -
Net assets BEFE 17,210 47,970
Ownership interest (%) P HEFE 2 (%) 20 20
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 3,442 9,594
Goodwill on acquisition X s B i 2 A O g
(less cumulative impairment) OBk 25TRE) 4,063 4,384
Share of net assets DMLEEFE 7,505 13,978
Beijing Beilun distributed no dividend to its REE2020F12 A31 B IEFE -
shareholders in the year ended 31 December 2020 b R b & AR [A) B AR SR A HH AR B D Tk
(2019: Nil). (20194 : &) o
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REt&E N RINIRE (&)
(c) The Group’s investments in associates are (c) ANEEBEREE QAR EWEAY
considered to be individually material to the AEERERMEBEAN - TRED
Group. The following tables illustrate the REBEBENRHNMBEERTE
summarised financial information of the Group’s (&)

associates: (Continued)

Beijing Beilun (Continued) trdbs ()
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR®BTT ARETF T
Revenue WA 38,313 46,382
Loss for the year FNEE (30,760) (24,910)

Other comprehensive income for FEEMEEK S

the year - _
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2HEEGEETE (30,760) (24,910)
Ownership interest (%) FiT 8 #EHE 25 (%) 20 20
Share of results DIEEE (6,152) (4,982)
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)
(d) The following table illustrates the financial
information of the Group’s associate that is not
individually material:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

18. REFE QR RE (F)

(d) R AR E B A B K A AN 5k [ B
BRRIMHBER -

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Share of the associate’s loss for FRP(REE R RIEE
the year (2) (41)
Share of the associate’s total DIHEE AR 2 EBE
comprehensive loss e (2) (41)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REEREE R EIH
Group's investment in the associate & & IREAE 134 136

19. Equity Investments Designated At Fair Value

19. BER A FE ARBHRER

Through Profit or Loss =i
2019 2018
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAKRE

RAFER 33,382 48,147

Other unlisted investments, at fair value HMIE EHRAIEE
RAFER 19,873 6,000
53,255 54,147

The above equity investments at 31 December 2020
were classified as equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss as the Group has not elected
to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other

comprehensive income.

FR PN 68 B 1 R 2 123 iR Ho 4th 2 T W 2=
WRAFEER - £dltR2020F12 A
31 BE LR AR E D B RIE AT B
ABHHRARIEE o
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

20. Debt Investment At Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

20. RAVPEFABENEBRE

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AR¥EFTT

Debt investment, at fair value BREKRE AV ES=Z
(note 21(4)) (H3E21(4)) 95,029 -

21. Debt Instruments At Amortised Cost

21, BEERATRNEH TR

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Principal PN 56,074 128,232
Interests Eam 3,404 10,107
59,478 138,339

Analysed into: BRUTRED
Current i ED 59,478 43,295
Non-current IERED - 95,044

(1) The debt instruments at amortised cost at 31
December 2020 amounting to RMB28,676,000
and RMB9,244,000 were loans provided to a third
party company, with a period from 15 June 2020
to 14 June 2021 and from 25 March 2020 to 24
March 2021, respectively. The interest rate of the
loans was fixed at 5%. The loans are secured by
deposits amounting RMB36,000,000 paid by a
related party of the third party company, which
were recorded in other payables and accruals.
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RaEHRITAARY28,676,0007T
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HX&2020F3 A258BE202143
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21. Debt Instruments At Amortised Cost
(Continued)

(2)

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2020 amounting to RMB19,375,000
was a loan provided to a third party company, with
a period from 31 December 2020 to 31 December
2021 and the interest rate of the loan was fixed at
7.5%. The loan is secured by the pledge of equity

of an associate.

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2020 amounting to RMB2,183,000 was
the interest from a loan provided to a third party
company, of which the principal was received for
the year ended.

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2019 amounting to RMB95,044,000
was notes receivable due from a third party, with
a period from 20 September 2019 to 31 January
2021 and the interest rate of the notes receivable
was fixed at 8%. The renewal agreement
took effective on 17 July 2020, including the
incremental embedded convertible terms. The debt
instrument was classified as a debt investment at
fair value through profit or loss, as its contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interests. The maturity date of debt investment
is 31 January 2023.

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31
December 2019 amounting to RMB43,295,000
was a loan provided to a third party company,
with a period from 20 August 2019 to 20 August
2020 and the interest rate of the loan was fixed
at 5%. The principal and interests of the loan was
received back on March 2020.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

21. BBERAIRNEE LA (&)

(2)

72020512 A31 B # 855 A7)
RaEHITAARK19,375,0007T
ABE—REZAFRARENER
HAPR A&2020F 12 A31HE2021
F12A318 - ZEFEREEF =
7.5%E 8 c MEFUA—REER

AIRY RS R o

2020412 B 31 BIR# 55K A7)
R EBHBTAEARK2,183,0007T
BRA—REZHRAIRENERF
B BERFER ZAEHEE
B[ -

72019412 B31 BIR# 55K A5
EREB TR ARY95,044,000
TAREWR—RE=T7RAHER
=i R A2019F9 8208 E
2021F1A318 » RxEKRER
RETEMNES%EE - BHIHERN
2020F7 A17BEM - BIEEE%
MARNATERIER - BEIAERAD
FEAFAESEBEAEKIKRE
HRHEERRERETEE LA
RekHE  BEHEEINSHAR
20231 A318 -

2019412 B 31 B # 55 A7)
IRMER TE AR 43,295,0007T
AR—REZHARRENER
HABR 520198 A20H £20204 8
A208 ' ZEFIZE T HE5%5"
B > R2020F3 A ' ZERHAE
RFIBEHKE o
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

22. Deferred Tax 22, EEBLIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities RERN BEEHBEENBEZEHN
during the year are as follows: ™~
Deferred tax assets BEEBIEEE
Contract Impairment Loss
liabilities of financial available
and and Accruals — for offsetting
deferred contract and  against future
revenue assets provisions  taxable profits Total
TEERR
ARRER 2REAR EHRA LEL
112,00 BENE it WER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000
ARETT AR®TT AR®TT NS ARETR
Gross deferred tax assets at 201941 A1R#
1 January 2019 EREHEEELE 31,144 802 2,090 1133 35,169
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRETA /(MR E) Bak
profit or loss during the year B8 (M)
(note 11) 479 559 30 1,651 2,119
Gross deferred tax asses at 20195124318k
31 December 2019 and 2020%1 18
1 January 2020 EEHAEELR 31,623 1,361 2,120 2,784 37,888

Deferred tax credited to profitor loss £t AB%HETRE
LTSRSl (Rig11) (749 259 1,132 1,689 25

At 31 December 2020 120206124318 30,875 1,620 3,252 4,073 40,420
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

22. Deferred Tax (Continued) 22 EFERIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities BILERIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Withholding Impact of  acquisition of
taxes IFRS16  subsidiaries Total
ERuEEE KEKRELT
RAE16% g%
B V¥E  LATESR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT AR%TR  ARETR
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 20191 A1RH
1 January 2019 BLHEa AR = = 25,296 25,296
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss ERTABRMETHR (WE11)
during the year (note 11) 1,067 71 (1,072) 66
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wk B AR = - 2,546 2,546
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 72019412 A31 K
31 December 2019 EXHRRREER 1,067 71 26,770 27,908
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FERTARANELTHR (WE11)
during the year (note 11) 2,152 (32) (1,191) 929
Gross deferred tax liabilities at #2020%12 4318
31 December 2020 EEREREEE 3,219 39 25,579 28,837
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

22. Deferred Tax (Continued) 22 EERIE (&)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets BEIZERN  ETELEHBEEERE
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of BEE R BARRAKAER - L TAER
financial position. The following is an analysis of MR E N EERIEFRIBZRDI -

the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial

reporting purposes:

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETT
Deferred tax offset in the consolidated e BIISARR & H HY
statement of financial position EFET IR 5 32 =
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE M BN RERH
the consolidated statement of RIER IR E EEFFE
financial position 40,388 37,888
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised mAEﬁﬁ%ﬂkﬂi‘%ﬁEw
in the consolidated statement of BIETIR B EFER
financial position 28,805 27,908
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect WARFLIA T IR B ERELEHIBEE :

of the following:

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’"000

ARBT T ARETT

Tax losses not recognised ANEER IR E R 108,174 72,310
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22. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making and they are not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available in the
foreseeable future against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors
have decided to distribute certain dividends to overseas
holding companies from the distributable profits earned
by all subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020. Therefore, the Group is
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
and a deferred tax liability amounting to RMB3,219,000
was recognised regarding withholding taxes as at 31
December 2020.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investments in the subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB994.3
million as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB897.7

million).

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

22 IEFERTE (48)

HRZEEEREEFERENNE A
A MIEMRNE] BRI AT BEE £ R
P MR IAE R - WAL BERZEE
BRERRLEHIBREE °

BEPBESERENE - NP BRI
MHNEIRE B EREIMEEEME IR
MRE B ZEBAN10%TEH0R - BEARTER
200841 A1 HRRAR - WiEAR2007
F12A31BZEMEF o i HEG
SIMEE BB RDERERET RS IRAY - B

AREZAREHBENBE - iAKEM
T BEABEAE10% - Bt - AEHE
BRZENP R A KB QRN
20084F 1 A1 HRBEREIMAEFE IR
IR BN TERTS -

HZE2020F12A318ILFE - B3
RiG AR E AR E2020F1 A1BE
ﬂu0¢1zﬂ31EHWFHﬁﬁmm_P\M
FEEIRE TREEGIMNE ° A
t*K%EﬁaEﬁ@ﬂﬁMﬁﬂ]
22020512 A31 B R H B AR A
B AREIRMRESMEME - j’ﬁdﬁ
K2020% 12 A31 B FEN T ER A
Lﬁﬁ%%%%AE%&NQmmm

R2020F12A31 8 @ BIRERFER
WHBARMHENEREE=ERBAHR
BHWARE9943B5ETL (20194 © A
R#897. 788 7T) MARERBIELERIE
BfE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

23.

24.

Inventories 23. 7 &
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Construction materials B 8,163 7,329
Natural gas RAR 3,952 1,717
12,115 9,046

Trade Receivables

24. EWWE 5 R

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR%T T ARETTT

Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR X 164,595 109,071
Impairment TRE (6,817) (5,446)
157,778 103,625

The Group’s trading terms for the sale of natural gas are
payment in advance or due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery for different customers, the trading terms for
the rendering of construction and connection services
of gas pipelines are mainly on credit and the average
trade credit period are 180 days, and the trading terms
for the rendering of natural gas transmission services
are generally payment in advance. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly and
actively monitored by senior management to minimise
credit risk. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
unsecured and non-interest-bearing.
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24. Trade Receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the

end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of

loss allowance, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

24. EWWE SR (&)

HEZAHLNBREBEREBR  RNEXR
R E B IR BRE DATIAT

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Within 90 days 90H N 124,164 76,339
91 days to 180 days 91H=180H 2,956 839
181 days to 360 days 181 HZE360H 13,984 21,858
Over 360 days HBiE360H 16,674 4,589
157,778 103,625

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

FEWE BRI E R 2B T

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥TR AR¥ET T

At beginning of year RE 7] 5,446 3,212
Impairment losses, net (note 7) TEEEFRE (MHE7) 1,371 2,234
At end of year RER 6,817 5,446

The increase in the loss allowance was due to

the increase of the gross carrying amount of trade

receivables which were aged over six months.

ERBREIE N HNREBB6EAZ
FEME 5 BR AR RR (8 00 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

24. Trade Receivables (Continued) 24. EWE SRR (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on aging
for groupings of various customers with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by sales type, customer type and rating).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

AEENEHwE BN PR EREET
WMEDH - AT ERBPEEEE - BE
EDERZEABRUBERRANER
o EBAR R (AR HE R - BRPERI K
FPAR) BRI EETE © &t B AR BREL
EMERER  EEEHEENARNREB
WAl S A BE S - EATIRM RARK
REGRGRANEGERARBEXHE
e

TXESAEE R BB EEES AR

WEZEFNEERREFR

exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12H31H

Ageing
B
6-12 12-24 Over 24
0-6 months months months months Total
0E6fA o6ZE128F 12F248F #iB24MEA @5t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.2%-0.6%  1.2%-4.5%  2.0%-8.9% 10.4%-93.7%  2.0%-4.3%
Gross carrying amount B%RmE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) 127,261 12,714 19,281 5,339 164,595
Expected credit losses BHEERR
(RMB’000) (AREFT) 683 537 1,328 4,269 6,817
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
Ageing
6-12 12-24 Over 24
0-6 months months months months Total
0E6fdR 6Z1288 12E24MEF BB241EA Bt
Expected credit loss rate BHEERRX 0.2%-0.4%  2.2%-5.7%  3.6%-7.9% 20.0%-84.8%  1.9%-5.5%
Gross carrying amount @RmE
(RMB’ 000) (ARETTL) 78,159 22,796 2,958 5,158 109,071
Expected credit losses BHEERR
(RMB’ 000) (ARETFT) 288 1,128 226 3,804 5,446
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25. Contract Assets

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

25. BEEE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’"000
ARWT T ARETT
Contract assets arising from: BREERBER
Construction and connection of BEAMRES
gas pipelines 9,208 8,160
Impairment BE - -
9,208 8,160

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the construction and connection
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of construction. Upon
completion of construction and acceptance by the
customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in
contract assets in 2020 was the result of the increase in
the provision of construction and connection services
at the end of the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
allowance (2019: Nil) for expected credit losses on
contract assets was recognised. The Group’s trading
terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed in

note 24 to the financial statements.

AREESZVERABERREARY
FRBIRA - AWER B EURR AT T
FET - RIELSERI A% P BIkE - i
REBAREENSEBEN I BEERK
BH5HRA - 2020F 6 REEHLMIEA
B FERIRBEER R ARSI INATE -

HE2020F12A318BLLEEFE - &
(2019%F : EB)REREEMNBHEE
BIERREE AEBRTFORHKE
KREEB RN BREM 24 5

E’go

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

255



256
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

25. Contract Assets (Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for

contract assets as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

25. BREE (&)

R2020612 A31 0 - A AEEMHER
W El sk E R AT

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®ET T ARETTT

Within one year —F A 9,208 8,160

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on aging of trade receivables for
groupings of various customers with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by sales type, customer type and rating).
The expected credit loss rate for contract assets was
assessed to be 0.5% to 4.2%. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Based on evaluations on the expected credit
loss rate and the gross carrying amount of the balances,
the directors are of the opinion that the ECL in respect
of these balances was considered immaterial.
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26. Prepayments, Other Receivables And Other

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

26. AFIE - HBUGRER it

Assets &=
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Prepayments FaftRIE 171,547 120,566
Deposits and other receivables e & E b I IE 14,145 11,073
Prepayments for the acquisition W AR i 0 TR SRR 1,200 20,575
186,892 152,214
Impairment allowance AR - -
186,892 152,214

Classified as: 2R V=T

Current mE 174,548 122,660
Non-current ERE 12,344 29,554
186,892 152,214

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental

deposits and deposits with suppliers.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amount. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

B REMBURHREIRERERE R
HEBES -

P EESEaHASRE - 25t AL
FEERE) © B A B BT B AR ARS8 I
BES M EKRIEEM - #£2020
F&2019F 12 A31H - BIEBEHRT
HAEM -

BNRE - Rt EUBAENEMEER
EIEA B NEEEERY
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

27. Balances With Related Parties 27. BEAREE H W4 ek
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR AREBTIT

Amounts due from other related parties  FEUE {thBFE 5 FKIE

Beijing Beilun it @ 33,905 32,223
Dangerous Goods Transportation ek B 180 =
Zhongji Suchuang AR B 148 -
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#RaliE 48 =
Energette Capital Corporation Energette Capital

Corporation - 348
34,281 32,571

Amounts due to other related parties PEAS H B BAE 75 KR
Dunhua Petroleum HERM 5,500 500
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service RN R 2 7 B IR TS 55 150
5,555 650

28. Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit 28. AT {HET ABENERMEE

or Loss
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

Other unlisted investments, at fair value HEfR EHIRE -

BAFER 55,000 204,000
The above unlisted investments were wealth FiR EHRERTEAMBITETL
management products issued by banks in Mainland BHMER BHRESORSRELIEE
China. They were mandatorily classified as financial RERE RFBNR - WEHERH D ER
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their BAFEFABSNEREE °

contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

29. Cash And Bank 29. RERRTT
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR®T T ARETTT
Cash and bank [ E RiRTT 505,066 432,121
Less: Pledged for short-term B REHRITER
bank loans ifn #% 3 34 (36,200) (64,450)
Time deposits with [REIEAE iR

original maturity of =18 R ZE8fFR
more than three months (223,100) =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEFEY 245,766 367,671
Denominated in RMB AARKHE 499,711 386,417
Denominated in US$ LAEITEHE 2,345 2,524
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE 3,010 43,180
505,066 432,121

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

RITR LB ARITERNXRIUED
ME - RITEHRREEREFRDFRE
BERIFEBBEOMY EENOTENR
7 - REMRSFEEY R ERFRDN
FREEEEQFHERE

EEARBIEERLRSEMES -
AW - REFERMCINEEE G K
(HE -  SERNEEERE) ~5E
B BRI E IMNE X TR IRTT
ARBHBOHMER -
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

30. Trade And Bills Payables 30. EREZRRKREE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T AREBTIT
Trade payables FERTE Z R 51,627 31,688
Bills payable AN - 29,000
51,627 60,688

An ageing analysis of the outstanding trade and bills

payables as at the end of the year, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

BEZAHY  RERORKEERNES
RRERBEORESTAT

2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
AR¥TT ARBTF T
Within 90 days 90H A 39,490 25,087
91 to 180 days 91 HZE180H 325 33,302
181 to 360 days 181 H=360H 7,856 571
1 to 2 years 1FZE2F 2,720 412
Over 2 years 2F LA E 1,236 1,316
51,627 60,688

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENESERBTERE - —RAR180

normally settled within 180 days.
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31.

32.

Other Payables And Accruals

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

31. Hit BN AR B ER

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 20194

12A31H 12A431H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWT T AREBFT

Payroll and welfare payables JERN 5 & A& A 4,690 6,006
Accruals fEETE A 2,347 2,196
Other tax payables H At e T IE 13,966 13,400
Other payables H At FE T FRIE 52,255 21,119
73,258 42,721

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

average term of three months.

Contract Liabilities
Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Hi BN HRIBRTER - FHSH3E
H o

32. EEEE
ARAMZFENT -

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
20204 20194
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’"000
AR®T T ARET T
Short-term advances FTRITEI B PR
received from customers
Construction services BERTE 36,677 42,098
Sale of natural gas HERAR 87,651 74,986
Connection fees BEAE 20,167 19,886
144,495 136,970
Long-term advances REFEWE FAE
received from customers
Connection fees BEAE 89,412 91,638
233,907 228,608

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

261



262

Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

32. Contract Liabilities (Continued)

Contract liabilities include advances received from
customers to deliver construction services, sales
of natural gas and connection fees. The increase
in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to
the increase in short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the provision of construction
services at the end of the year.

33. Deferred Revenue

Details of deferred revenue are as follows:

32. AEEE (&)

ERABRRERARFIREEERK ZTE
WK~ RARBEEREAER 22020
FERABBEEMZEERARFRATR
PR SRS 2 2B TEU G N -

33. EEW A
RIEWA 2 F BT -

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

20204 20194

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T ARETTT

Government grants B e B 13,923 14,967
Analysed into: BRUTREDN

Current RE 1,043 1,043

Non-current JERE 12,880 13,924

13,923 14,967

Asset-related government grants are recognised over
the expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets of

twenty years.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

34. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Borrowings 34. 5t B R1T R HAE R

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
20205125318 2019F 128318
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’ 000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRE R
(%) HE  ARETR (%) 08 ARETR
Current 0
Lease liabilities (note 15(c) FE&E (HzE15(c) 2.52-6.08 2021 2472 4.64-6.08 2020 1,967
Bank loans - unsecured  $F{TEF — EHF 4.15-4.35 2021 171,000 4.785 2020 23,000
3.62% US$7,687,000 7,687,000 7(3.62%)
secured bank loan"” BERRTER - - - 3.62 2020 53,626
2.05% HK$32,980,000 32,980,000%75(2.05%)
secured bank loan"” BERBIERY 2.05 2021 27,757 410 2020 29,543
Current portion of long term & HFITE 2 NEHH
bank loans - unsecured &3 — EHH 5.39 2021 10,000 5.39 2020 5,000
2.35% HK$60,500,000  REEFZAHDH
secured bank loan® 60,500,000787C
(2.35%)
BERBIERY HIBOR* HIBOR*
+2.00 2021 25,923 +2.00 2020 27,097
Other bank borrowings - Ef#fTfE3
secured - BHERO - - - 253.7 2020 102,000
237,152 242,033
Non-current FENEH
Lease liabilities (note 15(c)) EEA(E (M3 15(0) 2.52-6.08 2022 638 4.64-6.08 2021 1,557
Bank loans - secured BOER - BEA 5.39-6.08  2022-2026 72,260 5.39-6.08  2021-2025 77,191
2.35% HK$60,500,000 60,500,000/ 7.2.35%) HIBOR*
secured bank loan BEABTER - - - +2.00 2021 27,097
72,898 105,845
310,050 348,078
*  The interest rate refers to the Hong Kong InterBank Offered o FREEBRIZFRITHEFEK -
Rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

34. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Borrowings 34. 5t ER{TR E SR (&)

(Continued)
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AREFTT
Analysed into: BIATEIEDH
Bank loans and borrowings
repayable: FEEERITERRER
Within one year or on demand — BN 234,680 240,266
In the second year s 10,000 37,098
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E==EHE
(BREEMSF) 60,000 60,000
Beyond five years BB E 2,260 7,190
306,940 344,554
Other borrowings repayable: Hh EERER
Within one year —FR 2,472 1,967
In the second year EF 638 1,557
3,110 3,524
310,050 348,078
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34. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Borrowings
(Continued)

Notes:

The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
secured by the pledges of the following assets with carrying
values at the end of the year as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

34. FTERITREMERK (F)
BIaE

ARE B FHERIT R EMERKTIARFERER
EEN T FTREV AN B E A

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
iiEs3 ARBT ARBFT
Pledge of assets: BHREE :

Pledged deposits [EEEwGEE (1) 36,200 64,450

Equity investments designated at HERAFERS ABR
fair value through profit or loss BRI E (2) 33,382 =
69,582 64,450

(1) The interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounting to RMB27,757,000 in 2020 were secured by
Group's pledged deposits (2019: RMB155,626,000).

(2) The interest-bearing bank borrowings amounting
to HK$30,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB25,923,000) in 2020 was secured by the equity
investments designated at fair value through profit or loss
with the amount of RMB33,382,000 (2019: Nil).

(3) Except for the 2.05% and 2.35% (2019: 4.10% and
4.29%) secured bank loans which are denominated in
HK$, all borrowings are in RMB.

2020 F FAFRBITREMERAR
27,757,000 T PHEHAEBENE
B EREERTF (2019F : AR
155,626,0007T) ©

2020F 5 BERTTE5£30,800,0007%8 7T
(HERHARE25,923,0007T) JhH
ETERATFEFTABZNRAEZEE A
R #33,382,000 L EHE I (20194
) o

f:2.05%%2.35% (20194 : 4.10%

K4.29%) 8 HIRRITEFIABITLEHE
S FTBERBRIHUARKERTE °
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

35. Issued Capital

35. BEITRA

Shares %)
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
HK$0.01 each RMB’ 000
BREE HE
RDEE 0.01 8T ARWTR
Authorised: ZEE
At 31 December 2019, 7201912 A318 -
1 January 2019 and 20191 H1H R
31 December 2020 202012 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 39,379
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 31 December 2018, 72018512 H31H -
1 January 2019 and 2019F1 H1H
31 December 2019 &2019F 12 A31H 902,924,000 9,029,240 7,213,776
Issue of shares under the RIR IR AT &
share option scheme (note) BT (FI5E) 160,000 1,600 1,434
At 31 December 2019, 7201912 A31H -
1 January 2019 and 20191 A1H
31 December 2020 %2020%F12A31H 903,084,000 9,030,840 7,215,210
Note: Bz -

According to the share option scheme of the Company,
160,000 shares were issued at the exercise price of HK$2 per
share due to the exercise of the share options. An amount
of RMB1,434 was credited as share capital, an amount of
RMB314,000 was credited to share premium and an amount
of RMB28,000 was transferred out from share option reserve.

The expenses recognised for the share-based payments

amounted to RMB5,169,000 and were credited to the share
option reserve.
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36. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents those reserve arose from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing. Details of
the movements in the merger reserve are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by the
Group from receiving related party loans with interest

rates below the market rate.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain
entities within the Group are required to allocate a
certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined
by their boards of directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the

registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles
of association, a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a
domestic company is required to appropriate 10% of
its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital

after such usages.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

36. %

AEERFANRBESEREZH IR
RAEDZEHRANZY -

APt
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ENRBES - ASHENEDEER
SR AREEDE -

=N
BT RARBIZIER M5 X H
M ERERG— ERE T BERAE £/ F

S o

B

EERES
RIEREEARINEEE QR AR E
R AREETHETEREARESS
REEPEAREH RS ES TIHH
WERBE RN (PR 10%) BIATE
He (DEEHEES])  EE%HEEED
MAX AR EI50% A LE o

EERBE/TADIK - HHRBRIT
R ARIEAARE R BUE R P EE TR &1 7]
RERHE R BRI BEREARD ET
BRARER AN o

BIERBARREZERER - EFEH
AMAREARINKE AR AR L4
FE10% (KEHEBTFENRTEE
%) EBETRBEE REREENER
EEZEREARN50%% - ARAIATE
BIEH A — PR - EERBREE
A REEE BT BB g E - A -
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HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

36. Reserves (Continued)

Special reserve — safety fund

Provisions for the Group’s obligations for safety
operation are based on the Group’s revenue arising
from the sale of natural gas per year in accordance
with related PRC rules and regulations. The Group
records a corresponding cost when such expenditure
for safety operation incurs. The remaining provisions
for the Group’s obligations for safety operation would
be recorded as special reserve — safety fund. The
remaining provisions would not be recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income while the Group decreases its
retained profits when it recognises the special reserve —
safety fund.

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the PRC
companies can legally distribute by way of a dividend
are determined by reference to the distributable profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP.
These profits differ from those that are reflected in these
financial statements which is prepared in accordance
with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to the
SRF as set out above.
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37. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the directors, other employees of
the Group, consultants and advisers of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 11 March 2015 and the
scheme mandate limit was refreshed on 12 September
2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from 11 March 2015.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a

general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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37. B AESTE
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RETT0OFERRFA

BRIREBEZ A E AR L 2 HARTTER
PERABAE - —&7E - AIEERA
RAIEBETZARFRD10% ° BAE(A
N2EAHEAR  REZBRERNSESE
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FRBTIENITESREFAEE - It
Hh - WP ARBMEMEERE X B LIE
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37. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 37. BRR#ETE (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, which should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of such option; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

REERE 24N E4) B BT 21
AANBEARAZINEEREB1IETLET
AR - IR BB E 2 1T EHA DR E
EETF NMSBRBAMBRERKZA
HEET104E o

BREZTEEHESET - ETFE
RIAT 2@ (i) B 10 3% TR B A A 1%
oz BREEZ P& B ERMFIZ W H
B (i)ROMNERZIABRER H A
A A AR % A EB e A RERMY
ZFHWTHE ¢ R(i) Bt 2 EME

BRI T TR A AMEUR B s B
RAGRRZER -

FARBZTE M ARITEZBRER
T

2020 2019
2020F 20194
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
hnEF1g B E i1 PR
1TEE L= 1TfEE %A
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET ) BB T
At 1 January R1A1H 2.425 92,900 2.422 95,000
Forfeited during  FRHZHK
the year 2.200 (340) 2.319 (2,100)
Exercised during ~ FRFITE
the year 2.000 (160) - -
At 31 December  ®12H31H 2.427 92,400 2.425 92,900

HZE2020F12 A31 HILFEIWERH
BN HE -

No share options were granted during the year ended
31 December 2020.

270  Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

37. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 37. BRR#ETE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share NIEBI R ARITEERENITEB L
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEHARNT
period are as follows:
2020 2020
Number of options Grant date Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE R BH THEE TREHE
‘000 HK$ per share
T BB
18,500 1-29-16 2.000 2-28-17 to 1-28-24
165518298 17528288 24518288
19,400 1-24-17 2.280 2-28-18 to 1-23-25
17618248 1852 A28 HE25F1A23R
40,000 5-25-17 2.466 5-24-18 to 5-24-21
17%5H25H 185524 HE2155A24H
14,500 10-25-17 3.060 10-24-18 to 10-24-25
17510825 H 1851024 HE25510A24H
92,400
2019 20194
Number of options Grant date Exercise price Exercise period
BAESA i B8 1T(EE 1T{EHAME
‘000 HK$ per share
T BB
18,900 1-29-16 2.000 2-28-17 to 1-28-24
16218298 1742 A28 B %2441 H28H
19,500 1-24-17 2.280 2-28-18 to 1-23-25
171248 182 H28B 2551 /23R
40,000 5-25-17 2.466 5-24-18 to 5-24-21
179F5H25H 18F5H24BE21F524H
14,500 10-25-17 3.060 10-24-18 to 10-24-25
179104258 1810 424 BE25F10A24H
92,900
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BIEFE

37. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 37. BRR#ETE (&)

272

The fair value of the share options granted during
previous years was HK$80,201,000 (HK$0.55-HK$1.18
each) in total, of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$5,812,842 (equivalent to
approximately RMB5,169,000) (2019: RMB12,076,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during previous years was estimated as at the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

RBEFERLBEREZ AFEERE
80,201,000 7T (FAR0.55BLE1.18
BIr) - HRAREEREZE2020F12 A
31RIEFERRBRERSS5,812,842
BT (HERHARYKS5,169,0007T)
(20194 : AR¥12,076,0007T) °

{F 4F DA RS A 3 MO BB AR M) A T BRI
i B BREIA N % — FEEEER
REFE - o0 R 0 IR
[t - TRIIH AR B AL
B

Share price (HK$ per share) 2.00-3.06
IRAE (BB TT)

Exercise price (HK$ per share) 2.00-3.06
111 E (BB T)

Dividend yield (%) 1.07-1.46
B B 2R (%)

Volatility (%) 33.28-39.49
REE (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.47-2.27
R IR (%)

Exercise multiple 2.8 -3.342 for directors,
(RREAET 1.5-2.86 for employees and
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37.

38.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)
No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 92,400,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 92,400,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional issued
capital of HK$924,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB777,368) and share premium of HK$223,318,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB187,944,429) (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 92,600,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
10.2% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of

Cash Flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB2,264,000 (2019: RMB5,149,000)
and RMB2,264,000 (2019: RMB5,149,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
plant and equipment.

37.

38.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

B SR ()
AEAFERBEI AR MR ER
REEE -

RMEMR  ARAIRZTEETH
£92,400,00017 M AR 1T 2 FE AR -
WMZERMRITE 2 ERERET ST
- BRARGREEARAERE  HEHY
% 1792,400,000 R AN A A1 FE SN E AR
MEEINE BEITIR A 924,000 7T (4
ERHARK777,36870) K5
223,318,000 7T (HERNHARK
187,944,42970) (RIOBREEITH) ©

RZEMBRREMEBR - ARFRN
ZetEITE T H#EH 92,600,000 H AT TE
2B - DB ARFRZE BB T
BRHAEI10.2% ©

REBRERBRME

(a) ERFBRERS
REAN  AEEHRHE REZHEEE
ZHHEAEEEREERERNIE
ReERNEDRABARK2,264,000
7L (20194 : AR¥5,149,0007T)
M AR#®2,264,0007T (20194 :
AR¥E5 149,0007T) ©
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MR
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HZE2020F12A31BIEFE

38. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of 38.
Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
2020

RERERBRME (F)

(b) RMEEHEENEENEE

20204

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

FHRBTER HESE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TR ARET R
At 1 January 2020 R2020%1 A1H 344,554 3,524
Changes from financing cash flows REHRSRENEE (34,026) (2,574)
New leases HE - 2,264
Foreign exchange movement AN (3,588) 6
Interest expense FERX 8,212 151
Interest paid classified as FHEREREME L
operating cash flows BARFIE - (151)
Interest paid BERFE (11,282) -
Interest capitalised BERER R 3,070 -
COVID-19-related rent REBAFEEMRES
concessions from lessors EEESER - (110)
At 31 December 2020 R2020512 A31H 306,940 3,110
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

38. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of 38. FEBHERERMTE (F)
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b METHEENEEMNED
activities (Continued) (&)
2019 20194

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings  Lease liabilities

AT RERITER HEEE

RMB’ 000 RMB"000

ARETT ARETT

At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 158,010 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 BRAm IR B 1 R S 2R R

F16MMTE - 732

At 1 January 2019 (restated) 20191 A1 8 (L=i) 158,010 732

Changes from financing cash flows BMEHEMENE 183,207 (2,365)

New leases g = 5,149

Foreign exchange movement SN & B 3,337 8

Interest expense FERAX 8,732 193

Interest paid classified as JItEREREREL

operating cash flows BRI E - (193)

Interest paid BEAFE (9,707) -

Interest capitalised BARCHE 975 =

At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 344,554 3,524
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38. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of
Cash Flows (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

38. REBERERMETE (F)

(c)

* Iﬁa%lﬁﬂjwu

The total cash outflow for leases included in the H)\ﬁ%/ﬁ%%ZfﬂEfﬁﬁ?ﬁ 4
statement of cash flows is as follows: BT
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Within operating activities REEBA 480 1,389
Within financing activities REEEA 2,574 2,365
3,054 3,754
39. Contingent Liabilities 39. RARERBE

There have been no significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2020.

40. Commitments
(@) The Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the year:

MN20205F12 A31 8 - REE I FEF1{q]
EARRERE -

40. EiE
RER  NEBHEREBEMT :

(a)

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETAMEREE -
Property, plant and equipment UERN B 16,961 22,367
(b) The Group has no lease contracts that were not yet (b) 72020F12H31H - $$IE,E

commenced as at 31 December 2020.
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41. Related Party Transactions
(a) Name and relationship

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

4. BEFIRS
(a) BEREE

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

BELEH EAKERE
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Associate
Em#aim SNC]
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Associate
EmER el A SUNC]
Beijing Beilun Associate
sl Sl SN

Suchuang Group (#%EI5EBEIAR A R])
#EISE

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd.
(“Dangerous Goods Transportation”)
RE#alEkmEBARAR)
RKegalehmERARAR ([BRmnEsH )

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
(BRI ERZ U IRTE)
FRMN R 2 TR RIS

Energette Capital Corporation

Energette Capital Corporation

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
PERR AR IE S A F)

Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
PR B R B 8 2 )
Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders
22 R R BR A ] ) 12 )
Company controlled by the

Controlling Shareholders
i g S O /NG
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41. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 41. RELRS (&)
(b) Apart from the transactions and balances (b) RER » REBHRRHEIBH
disclosed elsewhere in the financial FriE BN RGN RE
statements, the Group had the following EHEAEFNEARZUT !

material transactions with related parties
during the year:

2020 2019
2020F 2019%
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
Bt =E AR¥TR ARET
Associates: e NT
Transmission and sale of natural gas to BXRHEXNRRT
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em&eInR (i) 1,010 982
Kunlun Suchuang Usage EmEel A (i)(1) 275 6,363
1,285 7,345
Purchase of natural gas from B T4 aJRBEARR
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em&aInR (i) 48,147 1,096
Kunlun Suchuang Usage EmerelFlf (i)(1) 992 7,132
49,139 8,228
Consulting service income from VY= N
RELA
Beijing Beilun Itxdtm (iy(1) - 178
Rental income from KEU TR a2 B A
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em&aInR (/1) 521 521
Kunlun Suchuang Usage EmEelF A (ii)/(1) 448 448
969 969
Loan interest from KEU TR e]HEFHFIE
Beijing Beilun i m (vV)/(1) 1,982 1,980
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

41. related party transactions (Continued) 41. RELRS (&)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances (b) RER » REBHRRHEIBH
disclosed elsewhere in the financial FriE BN RGN RE
statements, the Group had the following EEHBELINEARZAOT :
material transactions with related parties (%)

during the year: (Continued)

2020 2019
2020F 20195
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Mt AR®TR ARBTT
Others: Hitr:
Loan to BT
Energette Capital Corporation Energette Capital
Corporation (vi) - 348
Loan repaid from FKEU TR A ENEER
Energette Capital Corporation Energette Capital
Corporation (vi) 335 -
Rental income from FKEL TR HE KA
Suchuang Group el xE (ii)/(2) 330 330
Purchase of goods from AU TR AR ERm
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BB Z TR RIS (iii) 584 870
Purchase of natural gas from G N 7 Ss
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service FMEE TERG (i) - 5,929
Sale of natural gas to FIL TR AT EX AR
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service EINERZE ARG (i) - 2,371
Purchase of right-of-use assets from BUTLeEERFE
BE
Dangerous Goods Transportation EhmiEh (iv) - 1,635
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

41. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties
during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually
agreed by both parties.

(i) Rental income represents considerations received
for the rental of property premises to the Group’s
associates and fellow subsidiary. The directors
confirmed that the annual rentals payable under the
relevant rent agreements had been agreed by all
parties.

(iii) The directors considered that motor vehicle fuels
are provided by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
on normal commercial terms.

(iv) The Group entered into agreements with Dangerous
Goods Transportation to rent certain motor
vehicles. The directors confirmed that the annual
rentals payable under the relevant agreements had
been agreed by both parties.

(v) The Group entered into a loan contract with Beijing
Beilun in 2018 amounting to RMB30,000,000 with
an interest rate of 6.5% per year, and the maturity
date is 31 December 2021.

(vi) The Group entered into a loan contract with
Energette Capital Corporation amounting to
US$50,000 with an interest rate of 8% per year and
the maturity date is 15 March 2021. The loan was
repaid in October 2020.
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41.FAELXRZ (&)
(b) RER - FRMBHRR A MM
ﬁﬁ ENR 5 REERI AT
EEEETNEARRZUT :
(%)

GEE

(i) ERRXZHIERRSEHLBW
TE BUERIR S AR HET T o

(i BEBAERAEBE N Z AR
EEZEHMBAREENEND K
KE -EFHREHEEEBZR
TENFERSTEETME °

(i) BEERR/EMEZE TERS HIR
[ER PR GRBIR TR -

(ivy AEERERmEHLHES

TARENWZ - EFEREBID

BETENFEERS KL W
%

(v) M20184%F » A&EBEEILRibmE]
SR A ARE30,000,007TH)
BEXER  FFEE6.5%B &R
BEAH A2021912A318 °

(vi) NEEEEnergette Capital
Corporationz] Y € #/350,0003%
THERER - FRNER8NES
FZIFAE /202163 815H - &
H2020F10 AEEE -



41. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s balances with other related
parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note

27 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

41. BELRZ (&)

(c)

ERRAE T MU REBASER
ZER [ B R T 0 R AE BR A
HBERBERMIEWRM 27 o

(d) ZAEENETEZEEEBAENR

personnel of the Group )
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000
ARBTT ARETF T
Basic salaries and other benefits AR & M EAMmEF 8,343 10,403
Equity-settled share option expenses  LA#Ez 45 & A BB AR 7 2 405 1,249

Total compensation paid to key ENF2EEEAEN

management personnel El EEE 8,748 11,652

Further details of directors’” emoluments are

included in note 9 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(i1)/(2), (b)(iii), and (b)(vi) above also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which
are exempted from the disclosure requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
Kunlun Suchuang Gas, Kunlun Suchuang Usage
and Beijing Beilun are not connected persons
according to the Listing Rules, the related party
transactions in respect of items (b)(i)/(1), (b)(ii)/
(1) and (b)(v)/(1) do not constitute continuing
connected as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BERESHFHNFBECHIINTH
WRMEEI

EXX(b)(ii)/(2) ~ (b)(iii) K (b)(vi)EHY
BESTRSIMEK ETAHRE14A
EATHRBERERS  HEHRR
BT FHRBFE14AZE TR E
RE - RIFLETRE - BmsRali
R Em&HAIFARIERIEHIIE
AL - EUL - (b)()/(1) - (b)(ii)/
(M X (b)(v)/(1) BRI EE R X 5T
R ETBRBIFEI4AZERENIHER
ER G o
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HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments By Category 42. RERESNEMIE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZemTEENREHR ZBEEEN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
2020 20205
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
ROTEFAERNEREE

Mandatorily Financial assets
designated as such at amortised cost Total
BHERE RE#HAK
RULER JIENEREE @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Equity investments designated BERATE ABRN
at fair value through profit or loss RERE 53,255 - 53,255
Debt investment at fair value BRATER AER
through profit or loss B 95,029 - 95,029
Debt instruments at amortised cost REH SRR LA - 59,478 59,478
Trade receivables BB SER - 157,778 157,778
Financial assets included in HPNEEESE
prepayments, other receivables Eth WA R
and other assets HEBENEREE - 14,145 14,145
Amounts due from other related parties  FEME MBEEHFUA - 34,281 34,281
Financial assets at fair value BRATER ABR
through profit or loss TREE 55,000 - 55,000
Cash and bank Re k& - 505,066 505,066
203,284 770,748 974,032
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42. Financial Instruments By Category 42. RERESNERITA (F)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of e TARRNREHRZREER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting ™ (&)

period are as follows: (Continued)

2020 (Continued) 2020 £ (%)
Financial liabilities TRaE
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
REBERATTE
NWEmasE
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
Trade and bills payables BT E SRR REE 51,627
Financial liabilities included in ST A EL At JE < 5RIE K
other payables and accruals EtERNERAE 52,255
Amounts due to other related parties JRE A< L At B 2 75 SR IA 5,555
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEIRTT REAM SR 310,050
419,487
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HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments By Category 42. RERESNERITA (F)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZFemTAENNRSHRZREAN

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting ™ (&)

period are as follows: (Continued)
2019 20194

ETREE

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BOFEFABENEREE

284

Mandatorily Financial assets
designated as such at amortised cost Total
BHIETE REERA
RIS JIERNRREE @zt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Equity investments at fair value RATE AR
through profit or loss RERE 54,147 - 54,147
Debt instruments at amortised cost RERNASIRHERTA = 138,339 138,339
Trade receivables REZER - 103,625 103,625
Financial assets included in SPABAFE
prepayments, other receivables Eft EWHIER
and other assets A EENEREE - 11,073 11,073
Amounts due from other related parties  EUE =5 38 = 32,571 32,571
Financial assets at fair value RRTEE AR
through profit or loss TREE 204,000 - 204,000
Cash and bank RERBIT - 432,121 432,121
258,147 717,729 975,876
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42. Financial Instruments By Category
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (Continued)

2019 (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

42. RERETWEMITA ()

BT ABERINRE R BREED
™ (&)

20194 (48)

Financial liabilities TRaE
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
REHK AT E
WEREE
RMB’" 000
ARETT
Trade payables FERTE SRR 60,688

Financial liabilities included in ST A EL At JE < 5RIE K

other payables and accruals EtERNERAE 21,119
Amounts due to other related parties JRE A< L At B 2 75 SR IA 650
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITER 348,078
430,535
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HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 43. TRMIAEAFERAFEER

Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s AEBeMTECZEEERAFE (E
financial instruments, other than those with carrying HAEEENFTESERAEZEHM T AR
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are HN) EHIET
as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values

fREE DYE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20194 20205 20194

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTT AR¥TR ARETR

Financial assets EREE
Equity investments at fair value RAFEFIABZ
through profit or loss B AR E 53,255 54,147 53,255 54,147
Debt investment at fair value BATERARR
through profit or loss WEBRE 95,029 = 95,029 =
Debt instruments at amortised %4 $55k A 51| BR &9
cost, non-current portion BBIA
(FEENEREE D) - 95,044 - 86,209
Financial assets at fair value BATER ARR
through profit or loss HerEE 55,000 204,000 55,000 204,000
203,284 258,147 203,284 258,147
Carrying amounts Fair values
SREE DNFE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 20194 2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARETR
Financial liabilities cRER
Interest-bearing bank HERITIER
borrowings (non-current (FEENERER )
portion) (other than (TREHERE)
lease liabilities) 72,260 104,288 71,586 100,983
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and bank, trade receivables, the current portion of debt
instruments at amortised cost, amounts due from other
related parties, trade and bills payables, amounts due
to other related parties, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments as
at 31 December 2020.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief

financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of debt instruments at amortised cost
and the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 was assessed to be

insignificant.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

43. TR TEAFERAFEER

(&)
EEEFER2020F12A318 * Be
RER1T - BB SR - 1R # HA AP
RAOER TAMBENS - EREMES
EHFNIE - EBNESEREREE - BN
HM@EESIE « 5T ABNMNRIE - Hitt
EWFIEREMEENEREE * 5TA
HMENRBEREAEANESRAED
ANTFEEEREEES  TZHRZE
TARGHRNEIE -

AEBMBEAFIRPBEEEE - BE
BEreMIAAFEFAENBEKLE
Fr o BB EBF ER MM SR EMESE
BeRE  NEREEH - MBI
eI ANBEEHYEEHETE
ANE2HAME - MEAVBEESE
=ML -

TREERRENAFEAZIARE
BIXBTEMNXH THNARZEEA
R - MIEREFRIEE - EFEER
FEKERA TIIERRRK

LE KAV AR ES T A KT EIRIT
BRI H A FEBBRAIE
FEERBEFAIHABAENTER
BIRA A AF REIRIBEIR KRS R E
BT RETE - B20205F12A8318 K
SEAXRFHNE SRITERELORRTE
BIWREK o

20205 | HAIRRBROERA A

287



Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEE

43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 43. TRMIAEAFERAFEER

288

Financial Instruments (Continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
investments at fair value through profit or loss have
been estimated using a market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported
by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and
strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes (“EV/EBIT”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and
size differences between the comparable companies
based on company-specific facts and circumstances.
The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding
earnings measure of the unlisted investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate

values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which
represent wealth management products issued by
banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated
the fair value of these unlisted investments by using
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms
and risks.

These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required by fair value measurement
are observable, the instruments are included in Level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instruments are included in

Level 3.
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable

(#&)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

43. TR TEAFERAFEER

AN A7R2019F K 2020F12 A31HE

inputs to the valuation of investments at fair value in =RERTAERBAEZIRFERE
Level 3 at 31 December 2020 and 2019. HERE -
At the end of
RER
Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable
Fair value techniques and unobservable inputs to fair
Financial assets 2020 2019 hierarchy key inputs inputs value
FUBR
HEFER  EXRA BAER
THEE 2020 20194 AFEER BEGAE BERAE AV ERE
Equity investments at Non-listed Non-listed  Level 3 Redemption  Redemption The higher the
fair value through equity equity probability, probability probability,
profit or loss securities securities and the higher
valuation the valuation
multiples
NSRRI SEH: ) e FEm =R BOHxR  BEfE RS IR
BARE BRAE % BRAE S fhEfEH fhiEdm
Discount The higher the
for lack of discount,
marketability the lower
the valuation
Hzm5 rngs
TR fhEEE
Average EV/ The higher
EBIT multiples  the multiples,
of peers the higher the
valuation
BES 32 fEEER -
EV/EBIT fEEYR
8
Debt investments at Non-listed Non-listed  Level 3 Backsolve from Financing The higher the
fair value through debt debt most recent probability probability,
profit or loss securities securities transaction the higher
price the valuation
YNSRI EEDN F: ) e kLW F=R EAXHB  BEMEK BEER
EHHE ERES (BT B fHE#R

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.

REMBETNERAREETEMS
Eﬂ%&mﬁ&éﬁﬁvm%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁl\%ﬁﬁ&
FNEHE -
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 43. TRMIAEAFERAFEER

Financial Instruments (Continued) (%)

Fair value hierarchy NHEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value TRETAEESRITANATEFNE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial B4 -

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFENEE

As at 31 December 2020 HZ2020F12831H

Fair value measurement using

RRATIZEANATENE

290

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXT EXFT
RRTERE BRBAE BREAE
(5-8%) (E=&) (B=4) @zt
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT T ARBTR ARB TR
Equity investments at fair value BATE AR
through profit or loss RERE 33,382 16,087 3,786 53,255
Debt investment at fair value RATE AR
through profit or loss EHRE - - 95,029 95,029
Financial assets at fair value BRATE ARRA
through profit or loss TRAE - 55,000 - 55,000
33,382 71,087 98,815 203,284
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

43. EMITEAFERAFEEER
(&)
NEEER (E)
RATEFEBHNEE : (8)

HZE2019%12 A31H

Fair value measurement using

RETHERHATEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Y| EATT
REMSHE EREAE BROAE
(B—/) (B=1) (B=4) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTTR
Equity investments at fair value BRTEGARRN
through profit or loss RARE 48,147 6,000 = 54,147
Financial assets at fair value BRATER ARRL
through profit or loss SREE - 204,000 - 204,000
48,147 210,000 - 258,147
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 43. TRMIAEAFERAFEER
Financial Instruments (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NERER (&)
The movements in fair value measurements within FA - F=RATFEF=ZEZEHAT :

Level 3 during the year are as follows:

2020
20204
RMB’ 000
ARET
Equity investments at fair value BRAFEAABRNOBRARE
through profit or loss
At 1 January ®W1HA1H -
Acquired B Ui 3,786
3,786
2020
20204
RMB’ 000
ARET R
Debt investments at fair value BRAFEFABRNESRE
through profit or loss
At 1 January ®1A1H -
Transfer from debt instruments at amortised cost EHiZ#HK AT ERER T AEZ 91,499
Gain on fair value change N EEB S 3,530
95,029
Liabilities measured at fair value: BRAFEFENEAE
The Group did not have any financial liabilities AEERFERT EEMIRAFEFEN
e

measured at fair value at the end of the year (2019: SHAE(2019F : &) -

Nil).
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

The Group did not have any financial assets disclosed

at fair value at the end of the year.

As at 31 December 2019

Notes to Financial Statements

(&)

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

DNFERER (E)
ERBERAFENEE :

43. TR TEAFERAFEER

AEBERFRL BEMZRFERESN

TREE -

HE2019%12 A31H

Fair value measurement using

RETHARATEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BAA BARY

ERTSEE BREAE BEGAE
(&) (E=8) (£=#) @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT

Debt instruments at amortised cost RHERATRNEEIA

(non-current portion) (eSS - 86,209 - 86,209
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2020

43. TR TEAFERAFEER

(&)

NP ERBR (&)
EXRBEATENAE

HZE2020F12831H

Fair value measurement using

HATHRENATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active ohservable unohservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EAT EXFT
ERTERE BREaAE BEBUAE
(-8 (F=8) (F=H) 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBFR ARBFR
Interest-bearing bank and other st BRITREMAE K
borrowings (non-current portion) (B ES)
(other than lease liabilities) (TEREHEERE) - 71,586 - 71,586
As at 31 December 2019 B Z2019%F12A31H
Fair value measurement using
RATHIRENATETE :
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EAY EATT
REMSHE BREAE BROAE
(B—/) (8=8) (B=4) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEHRER
(non-current portion) (other than (3EENERES)
lease liabilities) (TEEEERR) - 100,983 - 100,983
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and bank and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade and

bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments either for hedging or for trading purposes.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of the risks which are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term
debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using
a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. At 31 December 2020, approximately
83% (2019: 84%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after
tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
and the Group's equity.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

4. BEEREENEBEREE

AEENTIZERMTIATFZBERER
R1T - FEEBRITER - FAZXFTEHT
ENTZANRANAEENKEEEE
T AEENTAUEBEEERELD
R E BT AR BN E SRR R EE
FREEMEMEENRAE -

AEESETAMS LK EZELRSF
K| - INERR  EERR  RBE
T AR LA ERRERE o AEE I ER
BREITERYHAXBEERAENITES
MTA BEXgKTHARITCEERRA
RBREBER - BEATHAIT -

FEEB
AEEERENTSMESHRAMEEER
AEEREHMNEFENRAGHEE T
B -

AEEMNBRAERAEE R EE
BEEMAAEEHEMEKAE - XE
EWERNATES T AEREFX
R o R2020F12 A31H » REBH
83% (20194 : 84%) M BIRITENR
EEEFEFTE ©

TRIVREMBEMAZRZHRF T
RERT » REBEBRBEREN (FZE
EEEENTE) RAKBEREL X
BIEAIRER BV BRE ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31BIEFE

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

With all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit after tax and equity are affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:

4. B EREENERERIGK ()

F=E b ()
EFREBEHMASZEAZHERFTIEZNE
T BZEEEEENTE ﬁlﬁéTZ'XE.
HIBRT &S T R IR E R 2T -

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity*

BRBEERRREZ M, GRD) *
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’"000
AR®BTT ARBT T
Increase by 25 basis points #hn25 EEE (134) (216)
Decrease by 25 basis points 25 [EEE, 134 216

* Excluding retained profits

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and the majority of transactions are conducted in
RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its

foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in the
US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit after tax and equity.

*  TEEEREER

NS BB
REBNEBLINP AL - #AEN
RHHUAREET - KBOAEED
BERABETAAREIIE - RNEEL
E S ) EL NS B S L

TRINTEMEREMBAIZERRERTE
BB T - NS BRR 1R 5 A S B R
FRYEXTRABTERGEA KB
BRRE -

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity

MREL &SRR R RERE M, OR)
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWF T ARBET T

RMB/US$
Strengthened 5%
Weakened 5%

RMB/HK$
Strengthened 5%
Weakened 5%

AR¥E Ex
FH1E5%
B2 {E5%

ARY B
H1E5%
B 1E5%

4,885 2,138
(4,885) (2,138)
(1,305) (2,079)
1,305 2,079
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2020. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

4. B EREENERERIGK ()

FERERE
AEEERZFERAREEAENE=
TETRS - REBASENEE » A
RIZEERRETRINEP BLARB
EERERFR  FAMEE - 1Hh - K
SEEREERREEHNER  BE
PITTED S IR AR BRI R EK o

R 5 /B 8 5B G TF AR 5 B
TRETERAEBFEERRNEEZ
ZhEREERKE  ZEEBSRETER
RiBEE AR (BRIFEFREINKL A
LHENRIESHMER) RHR20205F12
ABTEREER BN E - 2B RS
BB EMBREE K BERE LEE
ZEERRNE=RARE -
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 44, i EREENEEREEE ()
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

&Rk (&)
REERFERFESH (B)

As at 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12831H

298

12-month
ECLs
12188 Lifetime ECLs
REGEER FRORDEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BE1 129! B&3 Bt @3t
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETR AR¥TR
Debt instruments at amortised cost  RE SR AT BREER T A
- Not yet past due - HARH 59,478 - - - 59,478
Trade receivables* eV - - - 164,595 164,595
Contract assets* AREE - - - 9,208 9,208
Amounts due from other WA BER A
related parties
- Not yet past due - HARH 34,281 - - - 34,281
Financial assets included in STABNTIE - Eft
prepayments, other receivables FUSAR £t EEH
and other assets EREE
- Normal** = IER 14,145 - - - 14,145
Cash and bank BéRET
- Not yet past due - WARH 505,066 - - - 505,066
612,970 - - 173,803 786,773
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 44, i EREENEEREEE ()
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

&Rk (&)
REERFERFESH (B)

As at 31 December 2019 HZE2019%12A31H

12-month
ECLs
12{8A Lifetime ECLs
BHEERR FESRSEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
29 BE2 BE3 BieA% @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
Debt instruments at amortised cost  RE SR AT BREER T A
- Not yet past due - HARH 138,339 - - - 138,339
Trade receivables* EWE SR = = = 109,071 109,071
Contract assets* AREE: = = = 8,160 8,160
Amounts due from other WA BER A
related parties
- Not yet past due - HARH 32,571 - - - 32,571
Financial assets included in SABAFE
prepayments, other receivables EftEWHIER
and other assets HtEENSREE
- Normal** = e 11,073 - - = 11,073
Cash and bank BéRET
- Not yet past due - HARH 432,121 - - - 432,121
614,104 - N TVAE] 731,335
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 4. BEEBEEN B ERBUER (4)

300

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements, respectively.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 49.1% (2019:
3.1%) and 52.6% (2019: 29.5%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers, respectively, within the

natural gas operation segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings and other interest-bearing borrowings.
In addition, banking facilities have been put in place
for contingency purposes.
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Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And
Policies (Continued)

as at the end of the year, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

44. BEEREENBERBER (&)

REBE SR (&)
RER » NEBRIEET AR R
TRAGEIHAGENT

On Within Within Over

demand Tyear  2to5 years 5 years Total

RER 15/ 2E55ER BB E At

RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB' 000

ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR%Trn
At 31 December 2020 2020612318

Trade and bills payables RNEFERRRE - 51,627 - - 51,627
Financial liabilities included in AR RNTIER

other payables and accruals i ERNERARE 52,255 - - - 52,255
Amounts due to other related RTEfREE R

parties 5,555 - - - 5,555
Interest-bearing bank and other st BRITREMAE K
borrowings (excluding lease (TeEEERE)

liabilities) - 238,883 81,657 2,932 323,472

57,810 290,510 81,657 2,932 432,909

On Within Within Over

demand Tyear  2to5 years 5 years Total

REX 1@ 2556 RBiBs T s

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTE  ARMTT ARETR ARETR  ARETR
At31 December 2019 #2019%12 4318

Trade payables ENEZER = 60,688 = - 60,688
Financial liabilities included in sTARRNTIER

other payables and accruals S ERNERARE 21,119 = = = 21,119
Amounts due to R EMEEATE

other related parties 650 - - - 650

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3T 8RIT{EH - 242,920 110,385 9,143 362,448

21,769 303,608 110,385 9,143 444,905
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 44.

Policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from individual equity investments included in equity
investments designated at fair value through profit or
loss (note 19) as at 31 December 2020. The Group's
listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and
their respective highest and lowest points during the

year were as follows:

BRREREENEERBUR (&)

P& AN (B 1% [ Bex

AR A (B 4% B b 2 F5 AR 2 45 BUK T K & B
BHEEEIMERNBRAESFLFE
TR ERS - F22020F12 A31H » &
SEFMASNBRAERREBRIRE D ER
BERAFEFABSE ZBAKE (M
F19) MERKRAKRE - REEMN LT
BERBBBHFRZ LT - Rk H
RIZFTmMELTE -

ERERRIAFERORZH A EER
BERE TIIEF R 52 REREE R
HERNGZHMRERHNT

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2020 2020 2019 2019

2020F 2020 20194 20195

12A318 &/ 124318 &/ &

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE - EEEH 27,231 29,056, 28,190 30,280/
21,696 24,900

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in the fair values of
the equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and after any impact on tax, based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)
Equity price risk (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

44. IR EENE ZREEEK (&)

RAE SR ()

Carrying
Change amount of Changes
in equity equity in profit
prices investments after tax
RARE BBt
RAERZE ZREME wHNEH
% RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
% ARBTR ARBTR
2020 20205
Investments listed in: KR5Stz KA :
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &% — IRERATERA
fair value through profit or loss BamRARE 10 33,382 3,338
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &% — IEE RATEFTA
fair value through profit or loss BafRARE (10) 33,382 (3,338)
2019 2019%
Investments listed in: RTEoy bz &RE :
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &8 — R A TEFA
fair value through profit or loss BRMRARE 10 48,147 4,815
Hong Kong - equity investments designated at &7 — IEERATEFTA
fair value through profit or loss BamRARE (10) 48,147 (4,815)
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 44, i EREENEEREEE ()

304

Policies (Continued)
Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders” value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital

represents total equity.
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44.

45.

Financial Risk Management Objectives And
Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

4. BBEREENEFERBEK (#)

E2EE (8&)
E@iifi C REEMBER A FEBLE
e Lt 3K 4 ’E?—?EA%‘%&E’]%“ZIV}@F A B
/\iﬂ% c ARBFEANEEHR
&%(E'TFEBAM AARKRBEESREF K
LA R pAME TS B BRRF (K R SE SREVBE 1+ 18
RAEBTRELFNEEKFE - WA
REFEILBETE (MEFE) - AR
RAGSEEEESIEKENEATHESE
EiE o  NERRFEHEERL XN

has a reasonable level of capital to support its business. o
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are
as follows:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 20194
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT AR¥ET T
Interest-bearing bank T RIRTT RHEME K
and other borrowings (note 34) (Bf5E34) 310,050 348,078
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W ReNIREEEY (245,766) (367,671)
Net debt FER 64,284 (19,593)
Total equity M AR 1,555,231 1,518,054
Net debt to equity ratio FE B X 4.13% N/A*

* The Group’s balance of cash and cash equivalents
exceeded that of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings in 2019, and therefore no net debt to equity

ratio was presented.

Events After The Reporting Period

* O R2019F 0 AEENRERIRNEEE
VSRR BIRIT REAME R - Et
WAREFNFEEE LK -

45. MEHHREE

There have been no significant events since the end of

the reporting period.

BEREHERRLBELETMNERSE
15 o
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

46. Statement Of Financial Position Of The 46. A B B B AR R R
Company
I\ S PAER A - 28 >
Information about the statement of financial position ﬁ;ﬂ?ﬁ?#&m,ﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁaﬁ
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as \ '
follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREFTTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k&R 18 26
Investments in subsidiaries NN R e 175,239 175,239
Total non-current assets MmN E EARTE 175,257 175,265
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and bank e KIRTT 1,818 3,099
Prepayments, deposits FANFIR - HE Rk
and other receivables H b e U zx T8 40,460 2,546
Amounts due from subsidiaries )= NGIE L] 462,918 562,893
Total current assets BN EE MR 505,196 568,538
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Interest-bearing bank FTERIT R EMAER
and other borrowings 25,923 27,097
Other payables H A & 5 IR 600 420
Total current liabilities mENE(EEEE 26,523 27,517
NET CURRENT ASSETS BEREBEE 478,673 541,021
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERARDER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 653,930 716,286
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & 8R7T & EAbfE 5k - 27,097
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERTE - 27,097
Net assets FEE 653,930 689,189
EQUITY Em
Issued capital B ITAR AR 7,215 7,214
Reserves & 646,715 681,975
Total equity s iR 653,930 689,189
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46. Statement Of Financial Position Of The
Company (Continued)

47

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE

46. A A TR IR R (&)
BIaE

AR RN -

Share
Share option Capital  Accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses equity
R4 R1E BRERE EXfRE 41y BEEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’" 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®ETR
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 785,961 48,693 932 (125,353) 710,233
Loss for the year EEER - = = (15,052) (15,052)
Dividends declared and paid B RIRERE (25,282) - - - (25,282)
Equity-settled AEREER
share option arrangements il e - 12,076 - - 12,076
At 31 December 2019 and R2019%12A31H
1 January 2020 R202051 7818 760,679 60,769 932 (140,405) 681,975
Loss for the year EEERE - - - (15,433) (15,433)
Dividends declared and paid BERNIEERS (25,282) - - - (25,282)
Equity-settled EREEN
share option arrangements BB L 314 5,141 - - 5,455
At 31 December 2020 ®2020%12A31R 735,711 65,910 932 (155,838) 646,715
Approval Of The Financial Statements 47. I HRR AR AE

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2021.

R R EEEEERN2021F3 A31H
HEfE B AR B o
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Financial Summary

PR

RESULTS ¥E
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184F 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETE AR®ETR ARETr AR%®TR ARETR
(Restated)
(Eq)
Revenue LN 1,181,120 1,329,875 1,102,805 967,267 740,895
Cost of sales SHEMA (971,440)  (1,081,359) (888,039) (738,282) (531,554)
Gross profit EF 209,680 248,516 214,766 228,985 209,341
Other income and gains Ht A R s 20,151 10,399 27,171 16,671 22,419
Selling and distribution costs & R MM A (15,845) (13,187) (11,990) (11,515) (10,459)
Administrative expenses TR (86,286) (82,208) (85,052) (68,672) (48,288)
Impairment losses on financial ~&BEERAREE
and contract assets, net ZREBEFE (1,371) (2,234) 902 (682) -
Other expenses Hibf (15,377) (24,641) (1,382) (12,210) (1,309
Finance costs AL A (11,193) (12,310) (5,501) (6,290) (4,524)
Share of profits of associates SRS R R R A (1,379) 580 7,099 1,911 1,543
Profit before tax BRB AR 98,380 124,915 146,013 148,198 168,723
Income tax expense FEHAEX (44,116) (48,880) (42,510) (48,058) (44,906)
Profit for the year FERF 54,264 76,035 103,503 100,140 123,817
Profit for the year WT &7 s
attributable to: FERF
Owners of the parent SYNCIEY=DN 54,421 70,150 98,621 93,902 120,681
Non-controlling interests JEPE R (157) 5,885 4,882 6,238 3,136
54,264 76,035 103,503 100,140 123,817
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND BE BER
TOTAL EQUITY EREm
Total assets EEMAE 2,300,488 2,271,191 2,040,652 1,860,285 1,659,640
Total liabilities BEEE 745,257 753,137 581,850 504,401 513,044
Total equity Enis 1,555,231 1,518,054 1,458,802 1,355,884 1,146,596
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